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Founded in 2001 and listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Limited in 2010, Sihuan Pharmaceuticals Holdings Group Ltd. (”Sihuan
Pharmaceutical” or the "Company”, together with its subsidiaries the “Group”)
(Stock Code: 00460.HK) is an international pharmaceutical company led and driven by
both innovation and generic, with an independent and leading independent research
and development ("R&D") technology platform, a rich global product pipeline and a
mature and excellent sales system. Focusing on high-growth therapeutic areas such
as oncology, metabolic diseases, medical aesthetics, anti-infectives, digestive system,
cardiovascular and cerebrovascular, Sihuan Pharmaceutical is building a leading
medical aesthetics and biopharmaceutical leader in China with a two-wheel drive
strategy of independent innovation and research and incubation to cultivate high-
growth new businesses.
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Exg((Eg58)) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD")
HITESE Executive Directors

BEEABE(ER) Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman)

S ER A (B EFERITEER) Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO"))
oK AW BE BR Dr. Zhang Jionglong

ERBELE(MFRE) Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (Chief Financial Officer (“CFO"))
PRI L Ms. Chen Yanling

FBTES Non-Executive Director

SHEBLEAE Mr. Kim Jin Ha

BUFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
FEERAE Mr. Patrick Sun

BERELE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

KtEL Dr. Zhu Xun

BWEABIME JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
EREEE Mr. Choi Yiau Chong

ERELL Ms. Mok Ming Wai

REAR AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
BRBEE Mr. Choi Yiau Chong

SHELL Ms. Mok Ming Wai

EREEE AUDIT COMMITTEE

FEEEA(ER) Mr. Patrick Sun (Chairman)

BERELE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

KtEL Dr. Zhu Xun

SHEBLEAE Mr. Kim Jin Ha
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Zhu Xun (Chairman)
Dr. Che Fengsheng

Mr. Patrick Sun

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman)
Dr. Guo Weicheng

Mr. Patrick Sun

Dr. Zhu Xun

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (Chairman)
Dr. Guo Weicheng

Mr. Patrick Sun

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
P.O. Box HM1022
Hamilton HM DX
Bermuda
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Codan Services Company Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

P.O. Box HM1022

Hamilton HM DX

Bermuda
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www.sihuanpharm.com
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0460

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention Plaza
1 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Codan Services Company Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

P.O. Box HM1022

Hamilton HM DX

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.sihuanpharm.com

STOCK CODE

0460
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2020

Sihuan Pharmaceutical and Hetero Labs Limited reached a framework
cooperation agreement in pharmaceutical manufacturing area. The two parties
will complement each other’s strengths, and Hetero’s anti-viral and anti-
infection products will be introduced to China for local production and sales,
which will enrich the Group’s R&D and product pipeline.

Commencement of Phase Il Clinical Trial in the PRC for Self-Developed
Innovative Patented Drug “Anaprazole Sodium” and Inclusion of “Huineng®”
into the National Reimbursement Drug List. The progress made by the above
products is believed to further extend and diversify the Group’s product

pipelines in the therapeutic areas of digestive system and liver related diseases.

Production approval granted for rivastigmine hydrogen tartrate capsule, the
first drug passing consistency evaluation, levetiracetam tablet and the first
registration approval granted for midazolam oromucosal solution. The above
products will create synergy with the Group’s existing sales product to further

consolidate the Group's leading market position.

Acquisition of all interests and intellectual property rights of plazomicin, a new
generation of aminoglycoside antibiotics in the Greater China Region. The
Group expects that plazomicin will generate significant economic benefits after

its launch in the Greater China Region.

Commenced clinical research of favipiravir, a drug for coronavirus disease 2019
(COVID-19), co-developed with the academy of military medical sciences of the

People’s Liberation Army.

Drug registration approval granted for Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s pediatric
compound amino acid injection (18AA-Il). The Group is the second company
in the PRC that has been granted registration approval for this product. The
Group believes the product will facilitate the Group’s development in the field
of infusion.

Capital injection by new investors into Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co.,
Ltd. (an associate of Sihuan Pharmaceutical) to accelerate capacity expansion. In
the future, the national sales of Beijing Ruiye’s products will be fully entrusted
to the Group. At the same time, the investor will give full play to its advantages
in market access and facilitate quick market launch of the products. The Group
believes that Beijing Ruiye will gradually become a leading enterprise in the
therapeutic solid-liquid double chamber infusion industry in China to meet the
medication needs of the patients in general and create considerable returns for
the Group.
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Official release of the result of large scale clinical trials after the launch of
cinepazide maleate injection which takes stroke treatment into a new era with
its verified efficacy.

Discloseable transaction — subscription by investment funds under CMG-SDIC
Capital Co., Ltd. in Xuanzhu (Shijiazhuang) Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.. After
the subscription, the two parties will be able to fully cooperate with each other
in the R&D and introduction of innovative drugs in the future. The Group
intends to apply the proceeds from the subscription to further develop the
Group's mid to late stage clinical trial product line and to introduce more late
stage product projects, as such, the Group will be able to provide newer and
better treatment solutions to patients across the PRC.

Investment in Ascendum Capital Life Technology Fund Phase |. The Group
looks forward to expand its resources in the development of innovative drugs
and accelerate the introduction of overseas innovative drugs, strengthen
its resources and the development of its international product pipeline and

accelerate its product innovation and internationalization.

Drug production approval granted for the gabapentin capsules. As a
medication used in the field of neurological diseases, the Product will create
synergy with other drugs of the Group in the relevant treatment fields, and by
providing patients with more and better quality treatment options, the Group
will further consolidate its leading market position in this field.

Approval to launch the group’s exclusive Korean botulinum toxin product
“Letybo®” in the PRC market. The introduction of Letybo® into the Group's
medical aesthetics platform will not only enrich and expand the platform'’s
product portfolio, but also reflect the Group’s product layout strategy towards
diversification and internationalization. The Group expects to expand the
market awareness of its products and brands through the implementation
of marketing projects and reasonable pricing. The Group will deepen
communication with medical institutions and doctor groups to further improve
service standards and expand market share. The Group will also develop its
ability to compete against its peers so as to outrun its competitors and to
become the leading and first-class medical aesthetics platform.

P2 % & B A R A 7] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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2019

The first self-developed anti-diabetic innovative patented new drug janagliflozin
commenced Phase Il clinical trials in China.

The first company in China that was granted drug registration approval for

compound electrolyte injection (Il) (500ml).

Production approval has been obtained for octreotide acetate injection,
ambroxol hydrochloride injection and buflomedil hydrochloride injection.

Compound amino acid injection (20AA) was granted approval for drug

registration.

Eslicarbazepine acetate received acceptance of first application for production
approval.

Early completion of self-developed patient recruitment for Phase Il clinical trial

in China for patented innovative digestive system drug anaprazole sodium.

The first company in China that has been granted drug registration approval
for “Non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag for ceftazidime/sodium
chloride injection”, “Non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag for cefodizime
“Non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag

for cefodizime sodium/sodium chloride injection”, and “Non-PVC solid-liquid

sodium/5% glucose injection”,

double chamber bag for cefuroxime sodium/sodium chloride injection”.

Acquired Phase | to Il clinical trial approval for the third generation of EGFR
inhibitor XZP-5809.

Abstracts regarding clinical trial progress of janagliflozin have been selected

for poster presentation at the American Diabetes Association’s 79th scientific
sessions.

Post-launch large-scale clinical trials of cinepazide maleate injection were

completed with efficacy verified.

Establishment of joint venture with Strides Pharma Global Pte Limited for
supplying and distributing 3 drugs in China.

Drug registration approval being granted for quetiapine fumarate ER tablet

jointly developed with PharmaDax Foshan.

F [Z 3 45 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 7
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2018

Three self-developed innovative drugs commenced Phase Il clinical trials in
China, including the only domestically developed new generation digestive
system drug anaprazole sodium, China’s first independently patented
innovative carbapenem antibiotic benapenem and innovative targeted oncology

drug pirotinib.

Phase | studies of Antihypertensive drug tylerdipine hydrochloride in healthy
individuals have finished and have initiated trials in patients.

Three self-developed innovative drugs commenced Phase | clinical trials
in China, including selective CDK4/6 inhibitor birociclib, third-generation
irreversible tyrosine kinase inhibitor XZP-3621, and PDE-5 inhibitor fadanafil.

Metformin hydrochloride tablet obtained consistency evaluation approval (the

first generic product to obtain approval through supplementary application).

Exclusive product and paediatric medicine midazolam oromucosal solution has
been included in the priority review process.

The Group has established its Global Business Development Department in
both China and the U.S.. The team is equipped with expertise in both domestic
and overseas pharmaceutical industries, and will be dedicated in exploring and
introducing leading medicinal technology in major therapeutic areas.

VU IR B B iR 5 @ B BR A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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2017

Acquired 100% equity interest in Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) Company
Limited (“Ambest Pharmaceutical (China)”) which currently holds the drug
production approvals for monoammonium glycyrrhizinate and cysteine and
sodium chloride injection and floium ginkgo extract with the brand name
“Huineng” and tertram ethypyrazine sodium chloride injection with the brand

name “Mainokang”.

Established joint venture company (“JV"”) with Austria-based pharmaceutical
company CROMA-Pharma GmbH (“Croma-Pharma”), expanding into the
aesthetic medicine market in China.

The NMPA granted approval of Phase |-l clinical trials for “birociclib”, a self-

developed innovative patented new drug.

Set up the U.S. Research and Development Centre (“U.S. R&D Centre"” or the
“Centre”) in the San Francisco Bay Area in California of the U.S.. The Centre
focuses on developing more innovative small molecule and large molecule

drugs, especially first-in-class immunotherapy.

The Group invests in PharmaDax (FoShan) Co., Ltd (“PharmaDax (FoShan)")
in phases and will hold a maximum of 51% equity interests in PharmaDax
Foshan in aggregate. PharmaDax Foshan owns advanced drug production
technique and normative drug quality control system that meets FDA
requirements. New drug applications of its U.S. FDA-approved products such as
the quetiapine fumarate ER Tablet (antipyschotic) have been submitted to the
NMPA.

F [Z 3 45 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 9
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2016

The NMPA granted approval for clinical trials of self-developed new drug
janagliflozin for diabetes treatment.

The NMPA granted approval for Phase II/ll clinical trials of imigliptin

dihydrochloride, a self-developed innovative patent drug.
Shanghai LIDE Biotech Co., Ltd., an equity participation investment, successfully

listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations System.

The NMPA granted approval for Phase I/I/lll clinical trials of self-developed
innovative patent new drugs, fadanafil.

2015

Acquired 39% equity interest in Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Ruiye”) to enrich and expand the Group’s product resources.

Shandong Xuanzhu and Covance Inc. (“Covance”) signed a long-term
partnership agreement to support the global development of the Group’s drug
candidate pipeline consisting of multiple compounds.

Phase | clinical trial of pirotinib, the first self-developed innovative patented
oncology drug commenced in the U.S.. The NMPA granted approval of Phase

I/II/11 clinical trials of pirotinib.

Clinical trial application for two self-developed innovative patent drugs,
sirotinib (another oncology drug) and fadanafil (clinically to treat BPH, ED),
were officially accepted by the NMPA.

Shandong Xuanzhu and RaQualia Pharma Inc. (“RaQualia”), entered into a
research collaboration agreement in novel analgesic drugs development and
ion-channel technology.

VU IR B B iR 5 @ B BR A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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2014

o Langfang Gaobo Jingbang received the establishment inspection report (“EIR")
issued by the U.S. FDA.

° The investigational new drug (“IND") application of pirotinib was successfully
submitted to the U.S. FDA and the clinical trial approval was granted.

. Tylerdipine hydrochloride, the self-developed innovative antihypertensive drug,
received clinical trial approval.

° The application for clinical trial approval of janagliflozin (the self-developed
innovative anti-diabetic drug) was accepted by the NMPA.

o Established cooperation with Chongging Peg-Bio Biotechnology Co., Ltd for
development of insulin products.

2013

o Obtained clinical trial approval for innovative patent drugs imiglitin

dihydrochloride and anaprazole sodium.

o The application for clinical trial approval of pirotinib (the first self-developed
oncology drug of the Group) was accepted by the National Medical Products
Administration (the “NMPA") of the PRC.

° Langfang Gaobo Jingbang passed on-site inspection by the United States of
America (“U.S.”) Food and Drug Administration (“FDA").

2012

o Langfang Gaobo Jingbang was granted the “High and New Technology
Enterprise” status.

° Obtained production approval for exclusive first-to-market generic drug
roxatidine acetate hydrochloride for injection and generic drug nalmefene
hydrochloride injection.

o Salvia miltiorrhiza and ligustrazine hydrochloride injection was launched.

o Acquired the remaining 40% equity interest in Shandong Xuanzhu which then
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

o Established cooperation with NeuroVive Pharmaceutical AB, a company listed in

Sweden, to develop, promote and sell innovative patent drugs, CicloMulsion®
and NeuroSTAT® in China.
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2011

Acquired Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sihuan”) which owns
three exclusive drug products and various exclusive drug formulations mainly
focused on CCV diseases.

Acquired 80% equity interest in Changchun Xiangtong Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“Changchun Xiangtong”) which owns both the manufacturing facility
and production license of GM1 injection and active pharmaceutical ingredient
("API").

Acquired Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sichang”) which owns
four Traditional Chinese Medicine (“TCM") CCV products with vast market
potential. In the second half of 2011, the Group sold 19% equity interest in
Jilin Sichang to Shandong Buchang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Shandong
Buchang”), a leader in China's TCM market, at a premium. The Group
will continue its cooperation with Jilin Sichang to develop more TCM CCV
products.

Oudimei, Yuanzhijiu and Yeduojia were launched.

Jilin Sihuan was granted the “High and New Technology Enterprise” status.

2010

Listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 28 October 2010.

Ranked No. 4 in the Forbes 2010 list of the most promising enterprises in the
PRC and No. 1 among pharmaceutical companies.

Completed the construction of a pharmaceutical raw material plant, Langfang
Gaobo Jingbang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Langfang Gaobo Jingbang” or

formerly known as Langfang Sihuan Gaobo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.).

Obtained a 30-year exclusive distribution rights of Yimaining.
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%2020J BB - WA EXRBEHERRN ETEENS ﬁﬁ%%ﬂmmam AR YR B
BWERZ LM ARRBAML - KRBT EATIHNSERR
“Listed Enterprises of the Year 2020"
Sihuan Pharmaceutical won the “Listed Enterprises of the Year 2020” Award in the fifth “Listed
Enterprises of the Year 2020" presented by Bloomberg Businessweek/Chinese Edition. Such Award aims
to praise listed enterprises with excellent performance and recognise their contribution to economic
stability. Sihuan Pharmaceutical differentiates itself from many listed companies in this event, reflecting
the high recognition by capital market.
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“Best Pharmaceutical and Medical Company (5 {£8 % [ B & A 7)”

Sihuan Pharmaceutical was granted the Golden Hong Kong Stock “Best Pharmaceutical and Medical

Company”  Award (&8 [REBHEKERAF] %) in the Golden Hong Kong Stock Award
Ceremony, which was co-hosted by top domestic leading Hong Kong and the U.S. stock information
platform Zhitong Finance (Z3@814%) and Hithink RoyalFlush Finance ([EfEIBBIAE). Such Award aims to

praise the Hong Kong-listed pharmaceutical and medical companies with healthy corporate governance
structure, supreme industry position, steady core businesses, capital market of great attention and huge
development potential. This award-winning by Sihuan Pharmaceutical demonstrated that the capital
market highly recognised its past good performance and had great confidence in its future development.

F%‘onzocp@tﬁ'z}ﬁu%ﬁ%soo?ﬁj
REERINNEHZXERBEETEKEAsiabrand R EHEY [ Z[E2020F B =2 Al mAE500
%@J FHE - ZAPEH AR LR RETEENMREER L - MIRBEEHAERIES00% - ZH A REME
ER - RERBNREEE TRESNEZREELETE -
“The 2nd China’s Top 500 Listed Company Brands in 2020 (5 = /£2020+ Bl £ 7 2 & 5 }&5005%)"”
Sihuan Pharmaceutical was successfully selected as the “2nd China’s Top 500 Listed Company Brands in
2020 (8520207 B £ A Al AE50058) ”, which was organised by the professional brand valuation
agency Asiabrand. The brand value of each selected company was evaluated comprehensively in above
selection. Sihuan Pharmaceutical being selected as the Top 500 Brands represents the recognition of its
significant achievements on brand establishment, service and management.

[2020F E B {EPREIE 2 |
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HiQET{ETE o
2020 Best PR Team Award (2020 [ £ {£PRE BX £8)"
Sihuan Pharmaceutical was granted the “2020 Best PR Team Award” in Gelonghui (1%[&[€) - 2020
Global Investment Carnival Award Ceremony of Listed Companies. Receiving the Award indicates
that Sihuan Pharmaceutical has maintained a transparent, active and open image through the efforts
of its team to continuously regulate operation, improve corporate governance and enhance effective
communication with the public and media, so as to improve the public’s understanding, recognition and
trust of the Company and constantly output its corporate value to market.

£ £ ) & ANNUAL REPORT 2020 13



B %5 2

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

—E-R —E—tF ZEZE-\H ZEZE-NF e 5:3
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ARETT ARETIT ARETT ARET:R AR®T R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEE Operating results
& Revenue 3,185,699 2,745,809 2,917,405 2,878,318% 2,464,226*
EF Gross profit 2,188,946 1,986,853 2,379,088 2,289,331* 1,914,449¢
R (BB) Operating profit/(loss) 2,131,156 1,688,256 2,025,943 (2,406,225)* 787,125*
BRETER AR A/ (E18)  Profit/loss) before income tax 2,152,570 1,729,075 2,012,165 (2,422,955)% 765,844+
RNRABIEAE AER Profit/(loss) attributable
w Rl (&5 1E) to owners of the Company 1,708,239 1,448,935 1,619,956 (2,717,515)% 502,569*
Fm= Profitability
ER=x Gross profit margin 68.7% 72.4% 81.5% 79.5%* 77.7%*
GEF(E518) = Net profit/(loss) margin 52.7% 53.9% 57.6% (94.3%)* 22.2%"
SREN (EB) Earnings/(loss) per share
EXREEALEELS) Basic and diluted (RMB cents) 16.8 15.3 17.1 (28.7)* 5.3%
BEEMRR Asset status
BmEE Total assets 12,187,604 13,591,863 15,443,475 12,571,436 13,043,926
ARBIERERA Equity attributable to equity
R owners of the Company 10,901,438 11,056,992 12,510,413 9,606,684 9,190,342
waR Total liabilities 1,216,511 2,255,793 2,669,112 2,629,242 3,095,201
RekBREEED Cash and cash equivalents 2,407,073 831,859 3,314,845 5,117,143 4,604,041
REL R (Z) Quick ratio (times) 5 2 2 3 2
B E(F) Current ratio (times) 5 3 3 3 3
FEEEH(A) Inventory turnover ratio (days) 78 102 177 217% 296"
ZHEWIRFAE(H)  Trade receivables turnover ratio (days) 63 69 58 48 50¢
ZHEMNERBEE(R) Trade payables turnover ratio (days) 40 43 24 31% 56"

* R-TB-TERA=-H AEEEHHEARE 2
EETHILEETAR EPBADRLRKE
BEB BE-_T-—NF+ZA=+—HLHF
EMLBRHEFTOET -

tOBENEREEBAR ’

On 3 May 2020, the Group announced the disposal of certain subsidiaries which operated
non-core businesses of the Group is classified as discontinued operations. Comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been re-presented.

Related to continuing operations only

14 VY 3R B8 BE47 % 5= B 5 PR A /] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



s

MRBHEERCRI R EE
BEXBERBENEREHES NED

Sihuan Pharmaceutical's international
innovation transformation

Pharmaceutical business and medical
aesthetic new business are

the two-wheel drive to accelerate
business development "
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Chairman and Executive Director of Sihuan Pharmaceutical

ERBE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

RHATEE

EFABE
Dr. Che Fengsheng

Time flies and the years are like a song. In a flash, we are glad to bid farewell to an
unforgettable and glorious 2020.

The year 2020 saw the sudden onset of the Coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
pandemic, a blow to China’s economic development, a stormy external environment
and a host of challenges. The more uncertain the time is, the more great companies
can be born and refined. During the days when we addressed the hardships together,
all Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s colleagues took on the responsibility together, from the
beginning of the year to start the transfer of various protective materials, to the rapid
resumption of work and production after the Spring Festival, standing shoulder to
shoulder with the Company through thick and thin. This spirit of solidarity and tiding
over the difficulties together made me deeply touched and pleased. The high level of
combativeness, cohesion and hard work spirit of Sihuan people is the most valuable
spiritual wealth of Sihuan Pharmaceutical, and also the deepest and greatest strength

of the enterprise.

We are not alone on the Great Way and the whole world is one family. After
year 2020’'s hardship, we can understand more than ever the significance of a
community with a shared future of mankind. The current global economic landscape
and the pattern of science and technology innovation are facing unprecedented
major changes. How to turn this unprecedented challenge in front of us into a
promising new opportunity and achieve the magnificent transformation of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical to innovation and high business growth will be the main goal of every
one of us in 2021.
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In 2021, Sihuan Pharma Will Continue to Lead the
Future with Innovation

China’s biopharmaceutical industry is now in a period of great waves, the various
dust and sands beneath the waves are undergoing the process of being washed
and eliminated. | believe that when the dust settles, only those companies with
a solid pipeline of innovative products and high quality of R&D, production and
commercialisation, like Sihuan Pharmaceutical, will be the final winners and lead the
Chinese pharmaceutical industry to a higher level.

In 2020, around Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s strategic objectives, the various quality
product development platforms we have carefully built up over the years have
entered the harvesting period. In the Group’s carefully laid out major therapeutic
areas including oncology, metabolism, chronic diseases, psychoneurology, digestive
diseases, anti-infectives and cardiovascular and cerebrovascular diseases, a number
of self-developed Class | innovative drugs, biosimilars and high-end generics have
entered clinical phase Ill or been approved for manufacturing, and will soon enter into
the market, bringing new high-quality product options for China’s unmet medical
needs, as well as providing important impetus and assurance for the Group’s future
revenue and earnings growth.

In 2020,
Pharmaceutical has been able to stand out from the changes and achieve innovation

against the backdrop of major changes in the industry, Sihuan

and transformation by leading with innovation and adhering to the core concept of
innovation-driven, imitation and innovation at the same time, actively forging ahead
and following the trend. In the pharmaceutical manufacturing business, Sihuan
Pharmaceutical has continued to make efforts, with its innovative drug platform
Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd (“Xuanzhu Biopharm”) breaking out, entering
into a framework agreement in January 2021 to acquire the leading innovation-driven
biological company Beijing Combio Pharmaceutical Inc. (“Combio Pharmaceutical”),
and its innovation drive continuing to increase; its generic drug R&D platform has
continued to promote the speed of product cultivation, with a number of products
being approved and evidence-based medical research continuing to advance, helping
products return to National Reimbursement Drug List (“NRDL"). A comprehensive,
professional and efficient academic marketing platform provides a strong ability
to “cash in” on new product launches. In addition, Sihuan Pharmaceutical has
carefully incubated a number of high-quality new business platforms that will lead
the way in multiple business sectors at the same time. The No. 1 botulinum toxin
product in Korea, “Letybo®”,
medical aesthetic platform Beijing MeiYan Konglian Technology Co., Ltd (“MeiYan

being exclusively distributed by Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s

Konglian”), was officially approved for launch in China at the end of 2020, making
Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s medical aesthetic business platform the first-tier medical
aesthetic platform in China. Our medical aesthetics business will become a super
accelerator for the future business growth and corporate value enhancement of
Sihuan Pharmaceutical. Our Jilin Kangtong Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (“Jilin
Kangtong”) APl platform will leverage Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s strengths in the
whole industry chain of chemical generics and our integrated strategy of "API +

16 VU IR B B iR 5 @ B BR A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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contract development and manufacturing organization (“CDMO") + Formulation”
to become a leading integrated CDMO company in the field of pharmaceutical
intermediates, APIs and high-end formulations. Our Jilin Sihuan Aokang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Aokang Yaoye") is the only qualified company to grow
and conduct scientific research on the high content cannabidiol (“CBD") of industrial
hemp in Jilin Province, and will continue to develop business landscape in the field of
high quality modern Chinese medicine.

Xuanzhu Biopharm, Our Innovative Drug R&D
Platform, Is Seeing An Explosion

China, the world’s second largest and fast-growing pharmaceutical market, is
changing from “generic-driven” to “innovation-driven” with the support of strong
national policies. Innovative R&D has always been the most important growth driver
for Sihuan Pharmaceutical. Unlike other emerging biotech companies, we have
chosen a more holistic development path — with a rich and high quality product
pipeline, Xuanzhu Biopharm is a leading international innovative drug company
that integrates R&D, clinical development, manufacturing and sales and marketing.
With a focus on major therapeutic areas such as oncology, metabolic diseases and
non-alcoholic hepatitis (NASH), Xuanzhu Biopharm has 14 innovative products in
development, many of which are in late clinical stages and have full proprietary
intellectual property rights. Its core product Birociclib, a CDK 4/6 inhibitor used for
the treatment of advanced breast cancer, entered into phase Il clinical trials with its
single-arm endline therapy. Its blockbuster product plazomicin, a new generation of
semi-synthetic aminoglycoside antibiotics (a new generation of super antibiotics), and
its self-developed new generation of digestive disease drug Anaprazole Sodium have
entered into phase Ill clinical trials. In August 2020, Xuanzhu Biopharm completed
its first round of equity financing, introducing a top-tier domestic private equity
fund CMG-SDIC Capital Co., Ltd. ("CMG-SDIC") and other private equity funds
as shareholders of the company, investing a total of RMB960 million, with a post-
investment valuation of RMB4.5 billion. In the future, both parties will engage
in comprehensive strategic cooperation in the introduction and development of
innovative drugs. With the completion of the acquisition of Combio Pharmaceutical
in early 2021, Xuanzhu Biopharm has successfully upgraded to become a leading
biopharmaceutical company in China with comprehensive independent R&D
capabilities in both small and large molecules, as well as the capability to conduct
independent R&D of bispecific antibodies and bispecific antibody drug conjugates
("ADC") drugs.
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Dedicated to building China‘’s No.1 R&D, production
and marketing platform of medical aesthetics
product

In this age of the beauty economy prevailing, there is a huge demand for medical
aesthetic services. In 2014, Sihuan Pharmaceutical started to lay out the super
track of medical aesthetics, and cooperated with Hugel, Inc. (“Hugel”), a leading
biopharmaceutical company in Korea, to exclusively distribute Hugel’s blockbuster
products, Botulinum Toxin Type A (Letybo®) and Hyaluronic Acid. Letybo® was
approved in October 2020 to officially launch in China, becoming the fourth type
A botulinum toxin product approved to launch in China market and the first of its
kind from South Korea. The market potential for this product is huge, with few
competitors and very high barriers to entry. The product has been officially launched
in mainland China in March 2021 and has received widespread attention and high
recognition from the market since its launch, with a very positive sales growth trend.
The launch of Hugel’s hyaluronic acid, which is exclusively distributed by us, and the
launch of our self-developed and manufactured Sculptra (EE8&T) and Ellanse (4
#Z&t) , are expected to take place successively at the end of the year or in the next
three years. We are in the process of planning and implementing closer and deeper
strategic cooperation with Hugel and other top-tier international medical aesthetic
product manufacturers (both at the business and equity levels); and through our
Los Angeles-based Medical Aesthetic Products R&D Center, we will bring good
quality medical aesthetic technologies and products with high technical barriers
from overseas together with a number of our self-developed and manufactured
aesthetic products into the Chinese market, so that to bring more and better product
choices to Chinese beauty seekers. | believe our medical aesthetics business will be
the strongest accelerator of business growth and corporate value enhancement for
Sihuan Pharmaceutical in the near future.

Accelerating International and Professional

Development

In 2020, led by its innovation, Sihuan Pharmaceutical successfully achieved its initial
stage of transformation into an international pharmaceutical technology company.
The Company’s highly competitive business platforms of innovative drugs, generics,
APIs/CDMO and medical aesthetics have been successfully rolled out and have
received continued attention and high recognition from the equity capital market,
with each sub-segment businesses successively gaining favor and investment from
leading private equity funds and industrial investors, and as a result, our Sihuan
Pharmaceutical’s share price has recently reached a record high.

18 VU IR B B iR 5 @ B BR A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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In 2021, Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s strategic layout is expected to blossom at multiple
points, and the powerful growth engine of an innovative international pharmaceutical
technology company is expected to start. In addition, the Group’s previous forward-
looking and strategic investments and acquisitions are gradually entering the
harvesting period. We hope that in the near future, a number of independent
and high-quality subsidiaries (including but not limited to Xuanzhu Biopharm) will
be successfully listed on the capital market one after another, which will bring a
great boost to Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s corporate value, and bring more and better
investment returns to our shareholders and investors who have always believed in us
and supported us.

Maintaining the Original Spirit of Innovation and
Entrepreneurship

| am very pleased to see that after more than 20 years of unremitting efforts by
all Sihuan people, Sihuan Pharmaceutical has successfully developed into a leading
pharmaceutical group in China with an independent and leading R&D technology
platform, with an extensive R&D product pipeline, a comprehensive, advanced and
powerful manufacturing facility and manufacturing capabilities, as well as a mature
and excellent sales system. Never forget the beginning, Sihuan Pharmaceutical
will adhere to the two-wheel drive strategy of accelerating the development of
independent R&D innovation and high-growth medical aesthetic business. In 2021, all
of us at Sihuan Pharmaceutical will work together to respond to the call of the times
and start afresh, accelerating the innovative transformation of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
with the passion and struggle of a new entrepreneur, and creating a new pattern of

international biopharmaceutical technology enterprise.
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Founded in 2001 and listed on the Hong Kong Main Board in 2010, Sihuan
Pharmaceutical (HKSE: 00460.HK) is an international pharmaceutical company
led and driven by both innovation and generic, with a leading independent R&D
technology platform, a rich global product pipeline and a mature and excellent sales
system. Focusing on high-growth therapeutic areas such as oncology, metabolic
diseases, medical aesthetics, anti-infectives, digestive system, cardiovascular and
cerebrovascular, Sihuan Pharmaceutical is building a leading medical aesthetics and
biopharmaceutical leader in China with a two-wheel drive strategy of independent

innovation on R&D and incubation to cultivate high-growth new business.

Dr. Che Fengsheng

Chairman of the Board

23 March 2021
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Industry Overview

The year 2020 was a very challenging and stressful year for many industries, with
the sudden onset of the COVID-19 pandemic leading to the greatest change that
humanity has experienced in a century. The world pattern and the international
system are undergoing profound adjustments, and all industries are undergoing
profound changes. For the pharmaceutical industry, risks and opportunities coexist
in 2020. The global healthcare system has been hit hard by the “black swan” of the
COVID-19 pandemic and the healthcare industry in particular has been thrust into the
limelight. And this is also why the pharmaceutical sector has once again become the
target of capital pursuit.

In the rapid development of the pharmaceutical industry in 2020, the National
Healthcare Security Administration has carried out a series of reforms such as the
adjustment of the NRDL and the centralized procurement of generic drugs. These
policies have caused tremendous changes in the industry structure, and the demand
for upgrading and innovation transformation of the pharmaceutical industry is

becoming increasingly urgent. Specifically as follows:

Change 1: the adjustment of the NRDL, and evidence-based medicine was
valued. The drugs that have entered the NRDL this year involve the most extensive
therapeutic areas. Except for all drugs listed in the COVID-19 diagnosis and treatment
plan, domestic PD-1 monoclonal antibodies are all included in the new NRDL. After
being included in the NRDL, the drug will be sold at a price-for-volume basis to
advance the peak sales. The NRDL has become a battleground for pharmaceutical
companies, and access to the NRDL through evidence-based medicine has also
received unprecedented attention.

Change 2: normalization of centralized procurement, consistency evaluation
is imperative. Since the first batch of centralized procurement appeared in 2018,
this year it has reached the fourth batch. After the implementation of this centralized
procurement, the market for drugs with unclear clinical value and high-priced generic
drugs has further shrunk. With the implementation of the reform of the National
Healthcare Security Administration, the number of varieties through consistency
evaluation has increased, and the range of products purchased in quantity has
continued to expand. The adjustment of the national reimbursement drug list and
centralized procurement will be normalized, and coverage will be gradually increased.
Therefore, actively passing the consistency evaluation will become the consistent
choice for pharmaceutical companies in future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Change 3: high-quality innovation has become the main line of development.
Under the background of continuous encouragement of innovation and high-end
manufacturing at the national policy level, innovative pharmaceutical companies
and innovative medical device companies have become the darlings of the times,
and high-quality innovation has become the core line of the development of today’s
pharmaceutical companies. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the importance
of pharmaceutical R&D and innovation has also been fully demonstrated. In 2020,
innovative drug companies have thrived and have entered into capital market.
Traditional pharmaceutical companies seek transformation, and to realize a more
comprehensive and international transformation in innovative forms will become the

main line of development.

Sihuan Pharmaceutical has been proactive and followed the trend since 2012 in
the context of major changes in the industry, and today has been able to highlight
the reforms and achieve innovative transformation. The Group continued to exert
its strength in the pharmaceutical business, the innovative drug platform Xuanzhu
Biopharm ushered in an explosion, and innovation-driven continued to increase; the
generic drug R&D platform continued to speed up product cultivation, a number of
products were approved, evidence-based medicine research continues to advance,
helping products return to the NRDL; the comprehensive, professional and efficient
academic marketing platform provides strong “monetization” capabilities after
new product launch. In addition, a number of high-quality new businesses carefully
incubated by the Group will simultaneously lead in multiple fields. The blockbuster
product exclusively distributed by the Group’s medical aesthetic platform, the
South Korea’s No. 1 botulinum toxin product “Letybo®”, was officially approved
for launch in China at the end of 2020. Sihuan medical aesthetic business has
thus become one of the first-tier medical aesthetic platform in China. At the same
time, the Group’s medical aesthetic business will become a super accelerator for
Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s future business growth and corporate value enhancement.
Subsidiary Jilin Kangtong'’s API platform will give full play to Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s
advantages in the entire chemical generic drug industry chain and the integrated
strategy of “API + CDMO + preparations”, and is committed to becoming a
pharmaceutical intermediate and an integrated CDMO leader in the fields of APIs and
high-end preparations. Subsidiary Aokang Yaoye has obtained the only high-content
CBD scientific research planting qualification for industrial hemp in Jilin Province, and
will continue to make efforts in the field of high-quality modern Chinese medicine.
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Group Performance

In 2020, the Group actively responded to policy changes and market challenges,
promoted the implementation of innovation and transformation strategies, continued
to increase R&D investment and investment in new business incubation with the
medical aesthetic business as the core, actively promoted industrial mergers and
acquisitions, and overseas business expansion, improved industrial layout and
product structure, and optimized corporate operations and control levels, and has
achieved many good results, especially the outstanding achievements in the new
business incubation with medical aesthetic business as the core and the innovation
and transformation with Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical as the core. In the future, the
Group will adhere to the two-wheel drive strategy of accelerating the development
of independent innovation R&D and high-growth new medical aesthetics business, to
accelerate the Group's innovative transformation and development, and build a new
pattern of international biopharmaceutical technology enterprise.

In the context of intensified external challenges, the Group's operating scale reached
RMB2,464.2 million in 2020, although its growth rate has slowed slightly due to
comprehensive factors such as industry policies and the impact of the COVID-19

pandemic.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”), the Group recorded a total
revenue of RMB2,464.2 million, a decrease of 14.4% from the total revenue of
RMB2,878.3 million in 2019. Among them, the Group’s products not under the
National Key Drug List for Monitoring and Prescription Control (Chemical and
Biological Products) (“Key Monitoring List”) recorded a revenue of RMB1,799.1
million, which increased significantly by 108.2% as compared to that in 2019,
accounting for 73.0% of the annual total revenue in 2020, representing a significant
increase of 43.0 percentage points from the 30.0% in 2019. This once again proved
the strong market demand for the Group’s products not under key monitoring list

and the Group’s superior sales capabilities and strength.

During the Year, the Group achieved a gross profit of RMB1,914.4 million, a decrease
of 16.4% from the gross profit of RMB2,289.3 million in 2019; the overall gross
profit margin was 77.7%, which was a slight decrease of 1.8 percentage points
compared with the 79.5% gross profit in 2019. This was mainly due to the sharp
decline in the sales of drugs in the original key-monitored drug lists during the Year,
and the gross profit margin of these drugs are relatively high.
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During the Year, the Group achieved a profit for the Year from continuing operations
of RMB546.8 million, a significant increase from the loss for the Year from continuing
operations of RMB2,713.3 million in 2019; the overall net profit rate was 22.2%, a
significant increase compared with the net loss rate of 94.3% in 2019, mainly due
to the significant provision made by the Group for impairment losses on goodwill,
intangible assets, investments accounted for using the equity method and property,
plant and equipment in 2019.

During the Year, the Group’'s R&D expenses were RMB729.2 million, an increase of
21.7% compared to the R&D expenses of RMB599.0 million in 2019. R&D expenses
accounted for 29.6% of the Group's total revenue.

During the Year, the Group’s R&D investment in new business incubations (including
Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s medical aesthetic business, raw materials and CDMO,
industrial hemp and Chinese medicine) increased nearly 65% comparing to 2019. The
new businesses incubated by the Group will have the opportunity to bring significant
investment returns to the Group in the next 3 to 5 years.

During the Year, the Group achieved a profit attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB473.4 million, which was a significant increase from the loss attributable to
owners of the Company of RMB2,753.3 million in 2019 (The same reason as the
increase in profit for the Year from continuing operations above). In 2020, basic
earnings per share were RMB5.0 cents (loss per share was RMB29.1 cents in 2019),
and the Board has recommended a final dividend of RMB1.3 cents per share.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB4,604.0 million, a decrease of about RMB513.1 million compared to 2019,
mainly due to the dividends paid of RMB1,444.4 million, an increase of RMB1,245.6
million comparing to 2019. The debt-to-equity ratio (that is, a percentage of
borrowings over equity attributable to the owners of the Company) is 8.2%, which
continues to remain low. The financial situation of the Group remains stable and
healthy.
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Business Review

Pharmaceutical business: adhere to independent innovation
and build an international research, production and sales
platform

Being led by innovation, the Group adheres to the core philosophy driven by both
innovation and generics, and continuously enriches its high-quality self-developed

product pipeline to achieve coverage in multiple major therapeutic areas.

Relying on the Group's high-efficiency and low-cost production platform, the Group
can not only benefit from the reduction in sales cost and increase in sales volume
brought about by centralized procurement, but also effectively cope with the price
reduction brought by centralized procurement, with unique anti-risk capabilities and
stability.

The comprehensive coverage of the sales network drives the sustainable growth of
the Group's performance, in order to maintain a stable financial position and obtain
sufficient cash flow. The Group is developing in a healthy and sound manner, which is

a bright investment spot.

1. The pharmaceutical business continues to exert strength
and adheres to the core philosophy driven by both
innovation and generic

1.1 Innovative drug: Xuanzhu Biopharm ushered in an outbreak, innovation
drive continues to ramp up
Innovative R&D has always been the most important development driver
of the Group. Unlike other emerging biotechnology and pharmaceutical
companies, the Group has chosen a more comprehensive development
path with platform advantages. While possessing a rich and high-quality
pipeline of self-developed products, Xuanzhu Biopharm, a subsidiary of
the Group, also integrates R&D, clinical development, production and

sales, and is a leading international innovative drug company.

Xuanzhu Biopharm has 14 innovative products projects under R&D, with
a pipeline covering a wide range of therapeutic areas including oncology,
metabolic disease and anti-infection, many of which are in late stage
clinical trials. The core product, Birociclib, a CDK 4/6 inhibitor used for
the treatment of advanced breast cancer, has enter into clinical trials
on three indications. Among, the single drug end-line treatment is in
phase Il clinical trial, and is planned to file for registration based on the
result of the single-drug single-arm phase Il clinical trials, which could
be marketed if approved by Center for Drug Evaluation (“CDE"”). The
blockbuster product plazomicin is in phase Il clinical trial. Plazomicin
is a new generation of semi-synthetic aminoglycoside antibiotics (a
new generation of super antibiotics) developed by Achaogen. Clinical
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applications have demonstrated that the risk of nephrotoxicity of
plazomicin is significantly lower than that of previous generations of
aminoglycoside drugs. The self-developed new generation of digestive
disease drug anaprazole sodium has completed patient enrollment of
phase Il clinical trial, and entered the stage of data cleaning, locking
and unblinding. Anaprazole sodium is the only Proton-pump inhibitors
("PPIs”) independently developed in China, and its drug safety and
symptom relief are better than similar products. Benapenem for the
treatment of complicated urinary tract infections has entered phase
Il clinical trials. Benapenem is independently developed by Xuanzhu
Biopharm and owns independent intellectual property rights. It is the
only class 1.1 carbapenem antibiotic in China. In early 2021, XZP-
5610, the 14th innovative small molecule drug independently designed
and developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm, has successfully obtained CDE
approval for clinical trials. The target indication of the drug is non-
alcoholic steatohepatitis (NASH).

Behind the pipeline of more than a dozen innovative drugs under
development, Xuanzhu Biopharm'’s innovative drug R&D processes are
supported by advanced hardware capabilities, a complete small molecule
new drug R&D platform and a complete clinical research team.

The team of scientists at Xuanzhu Biopharm has an average of 20 to 30
years of experience in overseas multinational pharmaceutical companies,
covering therapeutic areas including biology, chemistry, organic
chemistry, macromolecules, and pharmaceutical production. At the same
time, the two business development officers of Xuanzhu Biopharm in the
United States are closely monitoring and contacting the active new drug
market in Europe and the United States, which is intending to integrate
high-quality global resources and accelerate business development.
Xuanzhu Biopharm’s clinical cooperation expert team guiding the
company’s clinical development is of first-class level domestically. The
clinical development team consists of more than 230 people, including
over 90 doctors, masters, and returnees, covering all key links from
clinical development to new drug registration.
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As the world’'s second-largest and rapidly growing pharmaceutical
market, China is transforming from “generic drugs-based” to
“innovation-driven” with the support of strong national policies.
Benchmarking the world’s best molecular structure, possessing global
intellectual property rights, independent pricing power, and not relying
on contract research organization (“CRO") are the unigue advantages of
Xuanzhu Biopharm. The products developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm have
been proven to have high efficacy, effectiveness and safety.

In 2020, Xuanzhu Biopharm successfully acquired all rights and
intellectual property rights in the Greater China Region (including
China, Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China, Macau
Special Administrative Region of China, and Taiwan of China) of a new
generation of aminoglycoside antibiotic plazomicin (a new generation of
super antibiotics) developed by Achaogen Inc., a company incorporated
in the State of Delaware. Plazomicin, administered by intravenous
injection, is an aminoglycoside antibiotic approved by the US Food and
Drug Administration for the treatment of complex urinary infections.
Plazomicin will be a valuable new treatment option for patients with
severe bacterial infections. Xuanzhu Biopharm will continue to improve
and optimize its asset structure though this acquisition.

In August 2020, Xuanzhu Biopharm completed the first round of
equity financing, and introduced domestic first-tier private equity funds
including CMG-SDIC as the company’s shareholders. The total amount of
fund raised was RMB800 million, with follow-on investments of RMB160
million from additional follow-on investors, bringing the total fund
raised to RMB960 million, and the post-investment valuation reached
RMB4.5 billion. In the future, the two parties will conduct comprehensive
strategic cooperation in the introduction and R&D of innovative drugs.
At the same time, Xuanzhu Biopharm has successfully implemented
the management equity incentive plan to further increase the layout of
innovative R&D.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In early 2021, Xuanzhu Biopharm completed the signing of a framework
agreement to acquire Combio Pharmaceutical. Combio Pharmaceutical
is an innovation-driven biological company dedicated to the R&D of
multifunctional antibody drugs such as innovative bispecific antibodies
and bispecific antibody drug conjugates (“ADC"). The company has
two antibody technology platforms, “Mab Edit” (antibody editing)
and “Mebs-lg” (antibody editing bispecific antibodies), focusing
on the R&D of innovative antibody drugs such as major malignant
tumors, autoimmune diseases, and infectious diseases. The research
and development of multifunctional antibody drugs such as bispecific
antibodies and ADCs can be carried out at the same time.

Combio Pharmaceutical focuses on biological macromolecules, and owns
12 pipeline products, half of which are bispecific antibodies. The key
product, KM257, is an anti-tumor drug targeting overexpress HER-2,
which is the world’s first fucose-removed common light chain antibody
drug. It has now entered the primate safety evaluation and IND stage.
In addition, the KMD254-ADC developed by Combio Pharmaceutical
is the best-in-class bispecific ADC drug in China and overseas, which
targets cancers with low expression of HER-2, such as gastric cancer,
breast cancer and lung cancer. Combio Pharmaceutical’s HER-2 bispecific
antibody and bispecific ADC can be jointly developed with the Xuanzhu
Biopharm's existing breast cancer drugs, etc.. Leveraging the attributes
of small molecules and biologics can bring a strong biomedicine R&D
pipeline to the innovative R&D of Xuanzhu Biopharm.

The management team and R&D team of Combio Pharmaceutical have
rich experience in biopharmaceutical R&D. The team has a total of more
than 20 employees, including 4 PhDs, 2 of them were selected in the
Beijing Thousand Talents Project. Its technical management team has
more than 15 to 20 years of biopharmaceutical development experience,
and the projects participated and presided over have obtained more than
15 clinical approvals, such as China’s Nimotuzumab and the popular
Amgen’s Blinatumomab, which the team also participated in and even
hosted the project. The advisory team also includes academicians of
the Chinese Academy of Sciences, researchers, and some R&D directors
and chief scientists from multinational pharmaceutical United States
companies.
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1.2

With the completion of the acquisition, Xuanzhu Biopharm’s innovation
driving force has been further enhanced, and it will become a domestic
biomedical company with comprehensive innovative drug development
capabilities in the fields of small molecules and macromolecules. It is
believed that the acquisition will be a milestone event in the Group's
macromolecular sector, and it may play an important role in amplifying
the value of Xuanzhu Biopharm's future financing and development.

Generic drugs: Evidence-based medicine helps return to reimbursement
drug list, the consistency evaluation lays the foundation for future victory
Apart from innovative drugs, the Group also adheres to the development
mode of simultaneous imitation and innovation, and continuously
expands the Group’s advantages in generic drugs through business
collaboration and resource integration. Recently, the Group’s generic
drug R&D pipeline includes 53 generic drugs with high-tech barriers.
The technical barriers have been increased, product cultivation has
been accelerated and the coverage of existing product lines has been
effectively expanded through mergers and acquisitions and cooperation.

During the Year, a number of products of the Group obtained drug
production approvals issued by the NMPA, including rivastigmine
hydrogen tartrate capsule (1.5mg and 3.0mg), levetiracetam tablet
(0.25g and 0.5g), and gabapentin capsule, pediatric compound amino
acid injection (18AA-Il) and levetiracetam injection concentrated solution
(5ml: 0.5g). The Group's listed drug-monoammonium glycyrrhizinate
and cysteine and sodium chloride injection (Huineng®) has also officially
entered the class B scope of the NRDL.

Cinepazide maleate injection (Kelinao® 2ml:80mg/bottle) is a new
indication for the treatment of acute ischemic stroke. It was approved
by the National Medical Products Administration in October 2020. It
is currently the only approved drug in the field of stroke treatment
since the commencement of the domestic post-marketing clinical
study for drugs, which proves its clinical value as a clear therapeutic
drug for cerebrovascular diseases. In response to industry changes, the
blockbuster product, Kelinao may be able to be included in national
reimbursement drug list again in the future, achieving a substantial
rebound in sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1.3

The “non-PVC solid-liquid double-chamber infusion soft bag” (the
“Solid-liquid Double Chamber
associated company Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co, Ltd. (“Beijing

Bag”) products developed by
Ruiye”), including “non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag for
ceftazidime/sodium chloride injection”, “Non-PVC Solid-Liquid Double
Chamber Bag for Cefodizime Sodium/5% Glucose Injection” and “Non-
PVC Solid-Liquid Double Chamber Bag for Cefodizime Sodium/Sodium
Chloride Injection”, as well as “Non-PVC Solid-Liquid Double Chamber
Bag for Cefuroxime Sodium/Sodium Chloride Injection”, have obtained
drug registration approval, and it is the first and only drug manufacturer
in China that has been granted drug registration approval for the Solid-
liquid Double Chamber Bag of the series drugs by the NMPA.

At the beginning of 2021, pantoprazole sodium injection (Panzuoer®
40mg per unit) was approved by the National Medical Products
Administration to pass the quality and efficacy consistency evaluation,
and was compared with ibuprofen injection (Falanfen® 4ml: 0.4g,
Tenaan® 8ml: 0.8g) was successfully selected in the fourth batch of
national drug centralized procurement. Octreotide acetate injection (1ml:
0.05mg and Tml: 0.1mg) was approved as it passed the consistency
evaluation on quality and efficiency, which is the first enterprise passing
the consistency evaluation for this type of drug. The Group believes that
the new developments in the above generic drug business will have a
positive impact on the Group’s operating results.

Sales: A comprehensive, professional and efficient academic marketing
platform with a strong “monetization” ability of new products on the
market

After years of development, the Group already has a strong sales team, a
unique and excellent marketing model to facilitate the commercialization
of products. Relying on a professional sales team and market network
with rich experience, high performance, and comprehensive hospital
coverage, the Group has a strong “monetization” ability for new
products to be launched.
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As of the end of 2020, the Group has a professional marketing team of
more than 1,000 people, more than 3,000 distributors and more than
20,000 sales managers, nearly 40% of whom are solely responsible
for selling Sihuan products. The Group's sales network covers 14,460
hospitals, including 2,000 Class Il hospitals, 5,941 Class Il hospitals,
and 6,969 hospitals below Class Il. The breadth and depth of coverage
are in line with the Group's international positioning. The proportion of
provinces being covered is as high as 100%.

The sales staff of the Group have extremely professional qualities,
most of the relevant practitioners have a master’'s degree or above in
medicine. Through the division of labor and collaboration between
the marketing team, distributors and sales managers, the marketing
network operates efficiently with high output and cost efficiency, and
can promote innovative products, also rapidly develop and penetrate the
market through the establishment of a dedicated and large-scale direct
sales team.

Investment in mergers and acquisitions and international cooperation
to accelerate the pace of product innovation and international
transformation

While arranging its own business, the Group has not neglected to carry
out extensive development from capital investment, equity investment,
international cooperation, import and export business layout, etc.,
so as to accelerate the pace of product innovation and international

transformation.

In October 2020, the Group announced its participation in an investment
of no more than US$10 million in Phase | Fund of Ascendum Capital
Life Technology. The Group looks forward to expanding its resources in
the development of innovative drugs and accelerate the introduction of
overseas innovative drugs in China, strengthen its resources and develop
its international product pipeline and accelerate its product innovation
and internationalization.

P2 % & B A R A 7] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In August 2020, Beijing Ruiye, an associate of the Group, has introduced
Guangdong Guanrun Equity Investment Partnership and Nanjing Huiji
Equity Investment Partnership as investors for capital injection of
RMB200 million. After the capital injection, the overall valuation of
Beijing Ruiye is RMB2.9 billion. The current utilization rate of non-PVC
infusion soft bag products in China only accounts for 20%. In the future,
if promotion of the use of non-PVC products from the environmental
protection aspect occurs or initiation of mass procurement from the
perspective of drug stability, Beijing Ruiye will be the first and only
company in China to obtain the Solid-liquid Double Chamber Bag
register approvals, which has great policy advantages. The Group is also
expected to further consolidate and strengthen its leading position in the
field of antibiotic double-chamber bags in the coming year.

In February 2020, the Group and Hetero Labs Limited, a company
registered under the laws of India, reached a cooperation framework
agreement in the pharmaceutical manufacturing area. Under the terms
of the cooperation framework agreement, the cooperation includes
R&D, product registration, technology transfer, raw materials supply
and local manufacturing and commercialization of drugs in the fields of
cardiovascular, cerebrovascular, neurology and anti-infectives including
novel coronavirus (2019-nCoV), etc. The signing of the cooperation
framework agreement will achieve a win-win situation in which both
parties complement each other’s advantages and accelerate development
together.
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2.

Incubate new business and lead in multiple fields

2.1

Sihuan Medical Aesthetic: a super accelerator for future business growth
and enterprise value enhancement

In recent years, the beauty economy has become dominant. With the
rise of income level and the changing concept of medical aesthetic,
more and more people are using medical aesthetic technology to stay
young and beautiful. With the huge demand for medical aesthetic
services, the medical aesthetic industry is developing rapidly. As early as
2014, the Group has already started the layout of the medical aesthetic
track and established a cooperative relationship with Hugel, a leading

biopharmaceutical company in South Korea.

In October 2020, type A botulinum toxin for injection (Letybo® 100U,
trade name: Letybo®), a product exclusively distributed by the Group
and produced by South Korean biopharmaceutical company Hugel, has
officially received the marketing approval from the NMPA of China.
Letybo® becomes the fourth type A botulinum toxin products approved
for launch in the market of China and the first of its kind from South
Korea. In the first quarter of 2021, the Chinese Al press conference was
held for the product and start to sell in mainland China.

Letybo® 100U (trade name: Letybo®) has 99.5% of active protein content
for 900kDa complex, which is much higher than the industry purity
requirement (the requirement of KFDA is more than 95% of active
protein content for 900kDa complex). In terms of efficacy, Letybo® 100U
(trade name: Letybo®) has the same efficacy and safety as Allergan’s
Botox. In terms of quality, Letybo® 100U (trade name: Letybo®) is
produced under more stringent production standards and features
a uniform and stable-efficacy product under stricter management
standards, which makes it hard to find competitors at the same level in
the domestic market.

VU IR B B iR 5 @ B BR A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The market size of botulinum toxin products in China was approximately
US$600 million (about HK$4.66 billion) in 2019. With a penetration rate
of less than 2% of the overall medical aesthetic market in China, there
is still a large unmet market demand. With the continuous increase in
the number of beauty-loving people in China and the continuous rise
in spending power and consumption willingness of consumers, coupled
by a high acceptance of foreign medical aesthetic technologies and
products, especially those from South Korea, there exists a huge market
potential. It is expected that the sales of botulinum toxin products in
China will surge in the next five years, and sales will reach US$1.8 billion
(about HK$13.5 billion) in 2025. China will become one of the three
largest markets of botulinum toxin products globally, along with the
United States and the European Union. The Group’s goal is to shape
Letybo® into the No. 1 botulinum toxin brand in China and to achieve a
market share of over 30% in China within three years.

In the layout of the sales of Letybo® the Group has started the
preliminary work to make full preparations for the official launch
of Letybo® within this year. The core management of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical’'s medical aesthetic platform MeiYan Konglian, have
extensive industry experience. They previously held key marketing and
training positions in multinational pharmaceutical and medical aesthetic
companies such as Pfizer and Allergan, and have more than 10 years
of experience in the industry. In addition, relying on the Group’s sales
network covering more than 200 cities in China and more than 800
cooperatives institutions, Sihuan Pharmaceutical’'s medical aesthetic
platform aims to reach more than 3,000 cooperatives institutions.

As Chinese medical aesthetic product market is gradually expanding,
Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s medical aesthetic platform will layout more
medical aesthetic products. In the future, the Group will continue to
work with Hugel and other international medical aesthetic products
manufacturing enterprises more closely and to form in-depth strategic
cooperation, while products such as Sculptra and Ellance which is
under R&D will be launched. In addition, through Meiyen Laboratory
Inc established in Los Angeles, the United States, the Group will
transform overseas high-quality new medical aesthetic technologies
with high technical barriers in our Group’s laboratory, and to produce
in mainland China, in order to build up Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s medical
aesthetic platform’s product line of high quality. It is believed that
Sihuan Pharmaceutical’'s medical aesthetic platform will become the
super accelerator of the Group’s business growth and enterprise value
enhancement.
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2.2

Build industrial hemp and modern Chinese medicine industry chain base

Starting in 2018, as Jilin province is expected to become the third
province in China to liberalize the cultivation of industrial hemp, Aokang
Yaoye, a subsidiary of the Group, officially entered and gradually
developed the industrial projects of industrial hemp. Aokang Yaoye
aims at the R&D and industrialization of high-content CBD medicinal
and medical materials. With the goal of opening up the whole industrial
chain of hemp, Aokang Yaoye develops cannabinoids such as CBD for
medicinal use, great health care, medical aesthetic and food additives
from the aspects of variety, planting and extraction. It also considers the
development of biomass products such as hemp seed and fiber.

Industrial hemp in China has a promising future and continues to
be strengthened in terms of R&D, breeding, cultivation, extraction
technology and application. According to Guotai Junan Research
Institute, the total production of industrial hemp in China is expected to
exceed 100,000 tonnes in 2024, and the market size of CBD in China
is expected to reach RMB1.8 billion in 2024. Aokang Yaoye is currently
the only enterprise in Jilin province that has obtained the qualification
to grow industrial hemp with high CBD content. In addition, Aokang
Yaoye also has a strategic cooperation with the Institute of Bast
Fibre Crops of the Chinese Academy of Agricultural Sciences (“IBFC-
CAAS"), and jointly establish the “Northern Industrial Hemp Research
Center”. The center will leverage on IBFC-CAAS's full range of seed
resources and technical support, as well as Aokang Yaoye's professional
modernized Chinese medicine extraction, production, inspection and
testing capabilities, and high standard quality management system,
to start full cooperation and to increase R&D investment in areas of
pharmaceutical, medical aesthetic and foods for special medical purpose.
In addition, Aokang Yaoye has also collaborated with seven domestic
and international R&D institutions to further develop R&D projects for
industrial hemp extraction and downstream applications.

In addition, Aokang Yaoye also has 164 production varieties with
approval numbers, of which 128 varieties are national medical insurance
and four national exclusive varieties are

varieties, “Haitianyishen

Capsule”, “Niuhuang Qingnao Kaigiao Pills”, “Caoxian Hepatitis B

Capsule” and “Gandan Shuangging Granules”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2.3

Aokang Yaoye will continue to benchmark international trends and
progress in the R&D of industrial hemp applications, positioning itself
in the R&D and industrialization of high-content CBD medicinal and
medical materials, and making every effort to build a platform for the
whole industry chain from source to patient use in a safe and compliant
manner with independent intellectual property rights. With the approval
of the future industrialization certificate, Aokang Yaoye is aiming
to become the number one platform for research, production and
marketing of industrial hemp in north China.

Accelerate the “transformation” of generic drug APl supply business to
CDMO and break through the growth ceiling

At present, the competition among domestic pharmaceutical enterprises
is fierce, so the capacity optimization, industry integration and structural
upgrading of Chinese pharmaceutical enterprises will be more and more
important. Benefited from global capacity transfer and domestic policy
dividends, China’s CDMO market is expected to reach US$52.6 billion in
2024, and is expected to reach US$100 billion in the future.

During the Year, the Group integrated the business of some of its
subsidiaries and established Jilin Kangtong. Relying on the Group's
strengths in R&D and industrialization of pharmaceutical intermediates
and APIs,
chemical generic drugs and implementing the integrated strategy of

leveraging the strengths of the whole industry chain of

"APl + CDMO + Pharmaceuticals", the Group aims to cultivate a strong
presence in antiviral, anticoagulant and antifungal drugs and form series
of outstanding product features and core competitiveness. The Group
is committed to the strategic deployment of the whole industry chain
of APIs and the construction of a CDMO/CMO platform to open up
the ceiling of growth. The Group aims to become a leading integrated
CDMO company in the field of pharmaceutical intermediates and APIs.

In addition, the Group has completed the equity acquisition of Jilin
Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Aotong”) and Jilin Jiahui Chemical
Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Jiahui”) through lJilin Shengtong, a subsidiary of the
Company. Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group shall hold
100% equity interest in Jilin Aotong and 60% equity interest in Jilin
Jiahui, respectively. The acquisition will be taken as the key link in
Group's entire industry chain layout.
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The Group has been operating in the production field for many years
and has a first-class production management and operation system
in the industry, including raw material R&D, production and supply,
production equipment, production process quality control, etc., forming
a highly efficient, high quality, multi-dose and large-scale production
platform with the capability of R&D and production of APIs, advanced
intermediates, key starting materials/starting materials (“KSM/SM") and
raw materials for healthcare products. In the advanced intermediates
segment, the Group has several mature projects and has a good market
base in Japan, Korea, Europe and India, etc. Several of the top 10
pharmaceutical companies in the respective markets are long-term and
stable customers to the Group. With a highly efficient and low-cost
production platform and the advantage of a full industrial chain, the
Group not only ensures the safe and stable supply chain of API products,
but also greatly reduces the cost of raw materials, and possesses
unique risk resistance and stability of business growth, making it more
competitive in the APl market.

During the Year, the Group also completed equity investments in
Beijing ChemPion Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (”Beijing ChemPion
Biotechnology”) and Zhongrui (Inner Mongolia) Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhongrui (Inner Mongolia)”). Beijing ChemPion Biotechnology
is a leading innovator of Green safety GMP API production. Through
its continuous flow and synthetic biology technologies, it is essential
to address the safety and environmental friendliness of GMP API
manufacturing, while effectively improving land utilization and
automation, helping the Group to lead the upgrading of the API industry
made in China.

Zhongrui (Inner Mongolia) has been deeply engaged in the API industry
for more than 20 vyears, and its brand is in the leading position in
the industry. Its products cover more than 20 kinds of nicotinic acid,
nicotinamide and inositol nicotinate, which complement the products of
the Group to further increase the capacity of the Group’s APl and ensure
the stable supply of the Group’s related pharmaceutical varieties of API.
At the same time, the production base and subsidiaries of Zhongrui
(Inner Mongolia) will further supplement Jilin Kangtong's production
capacity in APl and the development of international market business.
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Prospects and Future Growth Strategies

Multi-dimensional growth logic under innovation
transformation

From the perspective of the Group’s development strategy, the Group's future growth
logic after innovation and transformation is very clear, no matter whether it is the
pharmaceutical business segment that adheres to innovation-led and generic, or the
new business segment that is incubating and will become a financial performance
accelerator. Each sector not only has its own growth logic and motivation, but can
also complement and connect with each other to support the sustainable growth of
the Group.

In the short term, in the pharmaceutical business, it is expected that a number of key
products will successively be approved by the NMPA to be listed or pass consistency
evaluations to improve the Group’s product pipeline in the high-growth therapeutic
areas. At the same time, the Group will continue to improve the evidence-based
medicine system and promote key products to be included in the diagnosis and
treatment guidelines through evidence-based research. Among them, the product
Kelinao® is expected to improve its market position through evidence-based medicine
and to be included the NRDL, which will further contribute to the Group’s revenue
growth.

In terms of new business, the medical aesthetic business itself has the characteristics
of scarcity of domestic products, large market space, and low penetration rate. At
present, the Group’s approved botulinum toxin, Letybo®, is the fourth approved
and internationally competitive blockbuster medical aesthetic product. It is expected
to rapidly increase its volume with the help of the professional and strong medical
aesthetics sales team of the Group.

In the medium and long term, in the pharmaceutical business, the CDK4/6 inhibitor
Birociclib for the treatment of advanced breast cancer in the innovative drug sector,
the self-developed digestive system innovative patent drug Anaprozole sodium and
the new generation of super antibiotic plazomicin, which have entered the late
clinical stage, is about to go on sale, and will soon enter the harvest period. In the
generic drugs sector, 53 generic drugs with high-tech barriers have completed trials
and started to apply for approvals, and will continue to be launched on the market
in the future, continuing the current sales growth momentum and bringing sustained
strong cash flow to the Group. At the same time, the global business development
centre established by the group in the United States will continue to be responsible
for the expansion and management of business projects in Mainland China and
abroad to accelerate the introduction and deployment of international projects.

F [Z 3 45 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 37



B S W AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MEBTE BXEHERABEINME
B —HETSRGTEASET S LR
BAEE B AKED HHOLRENIHEE
HFREER : 50 H - Bt AL E K
HKRBMERHER - WE—THALEE
EBEXTENERMR - LA MNRLERERS
ARAIENEE - AR BEAEEIRHY
Z+COMO+2UA | — L B B 5% i - &
SESEBETHERRHNEREN —#L
COMOZEMB F i AU H L KRB BEF S B A -
ot =

m

B

—E-EFMNMRBENBIFASIE - LA
RERAIAFARNSEEBENEL S
BROMERRBER KN ERRNBEREE
MBEBEPEURPREETEBEPLE
RV EREER REEMNBINETS - B
EFE ITERAMEBRRFPEFES - FR &
/CDMOF & 5B ABRF INEBFEEKLH
A EHEREHETFANEDR FAEEEK
BERFABLHDEBIMERMTSE 254
MEERER TE=hEMBRNEERE
HAERE N AR ARZENEEEROF
B ELEEN B REER -

—E-F - ARENHRBELEZREME
TEEBCAFLEDRENBZEENARK
ERIIEFLERZS - 1 AEEBE LN
REHBLEEETEAKAY  KE 5
Bf - B R SR ESTREEN —HBL
BENTLERERNNEEEARATS  He
RIERAREENDEEE A —ENUEK
BEREHRMIIFHMANSLERNRR
EREEEREZEHNREDR -

In terms of new business, the medical aesthetic field is a new business with potential.
On the one hand, the market is expected to explode in the Chinese botulinum toxin
market, and the sales of Letybo®, which the Group distributes, are expected to grow
rapidly; on the other hand, the Group is expected to launch hyaluronic acid and
PLLA filler products to further supplement the Group’s product layout in the medical
aesthetic industry and continue to strengthen the value that Letybo® may create.
At the same time, with the gradual implementation of Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s
“APl + CDMO + preparation” integrated strategy, the Group will gain new growth
momentum and high profitability in the integrated CDMO business in the field of
pharmaceutical intermediates and APIs.

Conclusion

In 2020, Sihuan Pharmaceutical took innovation as the lead and accelerate the
development of independent innovation R&D and high-growth new business of
medical aesthetics as the core of the two-wheel drive strategy, and successfully
realized the initial strategic transformation to an international biopharmaceutical
technology company and a leading company in the Chinese medical aesthetic
industry. The Group’s innovative drug platform, medical aesthetic platform, industrial
hemp and modern Chinese medicine platform, API/CDMO platform and other highly
competitive business platforms have been rolled out. With the advantage of its
R&D, production and marketing platform, the Group has developed China’s leading
integrated pharmaceutical group of production, marketing and R&D with a leading
independent R&D technology platform, a rich pipeline of R&D products, advanced
and powerful production facilities and intelligent manufacturing capabilities, and a

mature and outstanding sales system.

In 2021, the Group's layout is expected to blossom in more areas, and a powerful
growth engine to become an international innovative biopharmaceutical technology
company is expected to start. In addition, the Group’s strategic investment and
mergers and acquisitions will gradually enter a mature period. If the group of
independently operated subsidiaries generated by investment, mergers, incubation,
holdings, spin-offs and other methods can successfully land in the capital market, It
will bring huge boost to the Group’s corporate value, and also bring more and better
investment returns to the respected shareholders and investors who have always
believed in us and be supportive to us.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review

Revenue

Under the influence of industry policies and COVID-19 during the Year, revenue
of the Group for the Year has decreased by 14.4% to approximately RMB2,464.2
million (2019: RMB2,878.3 million). Among it, income from sales of CCV drugs,
which contributed to 56.4% of total revenue, was approximately RMB1,390.2 million
(2019: RMB2,342.7 million). It has significantly decreased by 40.7%, approximately
RMB952.5 million, whereas the remaining revenue from sales of non-CCV drugs has
sharply increased by 100.5% to approximately RMB1,074.0 million (2019: RMB535.6
million). The decreased sales of CCV drug was mainly attributable to the drop in
patient flow in hospital during the COVID-19 pandemic and products exclusion from
NRDL starting from the second half of last year. For non-CCV drugs, due to strong
sales platform, hospital coverage of the drugs has sharply increased.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales of the Group for the Year amounted to approximately RMB549.8 million
(2019: RMB589.0 million), accounting for approximately 22.3% of the total revenue.

Gross profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to approximately RMB1,914.4 million (2019:
RMB2,289.3 million). It decreased by approximately RMB374.9 million. Overall gross
profit margin slightly decreased from 79.5% for last year to 77.7% for the Year.
The lower gross profit margin was resulted from decreased sales of drugs which had
better profit margins but were captured in the key-monitored drug lists.

Other gains - net

Other gains — net for the Year decreased by approximately RMB152.6 million to
approximately RMB249.6 million (2019: RMB402.2 million). It was mainly due to a
decrease in government grants compared with last year.
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Gain on derecognition of subsidiaries

Gain on derecognition of subsidiaries for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB72.3 million (2019: Nil). The gain was related to disposals of Chonghui
Investment Limited (“Chonghui”) and Tengwei Investment Limited (“Tengwei”). For
further details, please refer to section headed “Material acquisitions and disposals”
below.

Impairment losses on non-current assets

The Group performed impairment testing on assets annually or more frequently if
events or change in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the fair value of an asset
less costs to sell and value-in-use. During the Year, no impairment on non-current
assets was required (2019: RMB3,971.5 million).

Distribution expenses

Distribution expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB368.8 million
(2019: RMB245.4 million). The increase of approximately RMB123.4 million compared
with last year was mainly due to continuing efforts in expanding and developing the
market share.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year have increased by 3.9% to approximately
RMB489.8 million (2019: RMB471.6 million) as a result of a increase in overheads and
activities of the Group.

R&D expenses

R&D expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB729.2 million (2019:
RMB599.0 million) which represented an increase of 21.7%. It was mainly
attributable to more efforts in R&D activities.

Other expenses
Other expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB34.1 million (2019:
RMB23.7 million). The increase was mainly attributable to donations contributed.

Profit before tax from continuing operations
Profit before tax from continuing operations of the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB765.8 million (2019: RMB2,423.0 million of loss).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income tax expense
Income tax expense of the Group for the Year decreased by 24.6% to approximately
RMB219.0 million (2019: RMB290.4 million). The significant decrease was mainly

attributable to lower taxable profits generated compared with last year.

Loss for the Year from discontinued operations
Loss for the Year from discontinued operations amounted to approximately RMB34.9
million (2019: RMB44.0 million). It was related to disposals of Chonghui and Tengwei.

For further details, please refer to note 32 to the financial statements.

Profit for the Year
Due to the aforesaid, profit for the Year amounted to approximately RMB511.9
million (2019: RMB2,757.3 million of loss).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB473.4 million (2019: RMB2,753.3 million of loss). In last year, the Group
recognised impairment losses on long-term assets, including goodwill, intangible
assets, investments accounted for using the equity method and property, plant and

equipment.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB38.5 million (2019: RMB4.0 million of loss).

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group maintained strong financial position. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately RMB4,604.0 million
(31 December 2019: RMB5,117.1 million). As at the same date, bank borrowings
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB719.1 million (31 December 2019:
Nil) and borrowings from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group
and a third party amounted to approximately RMB32.0 million (31 December 2019:
RMB9.0 million). Accordingly, the Group maintained net cash of over approximately
RMB3,852.9 million (31 December 2019: RMB5,108.1 million). The debt-to-equity
ratio (that is, a percentage of borrowings over equity attributable to the owners of
the Company) is 8.2%.
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In general, the Group places its excess cash into interest-bearing bank accounts. The
Group may use extra cash for short-term investments for higher returns. Thus, the
Group has entered into agreements with certain banks for surplus fund investment.
According to the terms of the agreements signed, the total amount of investment
conducted by the Group for the Year was approximately RMB18,806.6 million. The
investments made by the Group were short-term in nature and mainly consisted
of financial planning products purchased from certain state-owned banks. At
their discretion, issuing banks for the abovementioned financial planning products
may invest in financial instruments such as government bonds, discounted bank
acceptance bills and commercial acceptance bills and bank deposits. As at 31
December 2020, the Group recognised total financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately RMB332.7 million, comprising principal of investment
of approximately RMB330.0 million and approximately RMB2.7 million of interest
income, in the consolidated statement of financial position. As at the date of this
annual report, total amount of sold/redeemed investment principal amounted to
approximately RMB110.0 million.

The Group had sufficient cash as at 31 December 2020. The Directors are of the
opinion that the Group does not have any significant capital risk.
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As at 31 December 2020, inventories amounted to approximately RMB495.9 million
(31 December 2019: RMB409.6 million). The inventory turnover period for the Year
was 296 days (31 December 2019: 217 days). The increase was attributable to more

pharmaceutical ingredients kept for internal production demand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s trade receivables and notes receivable include credit sales of its products
to be paid by its distributors. Other receivables of the Group mainly consist of
prepayments to suppliers and amounts due from related parties. As at 31 December
2020, the Group's trade and other receivables were approximately RMB971.5 million
(31 December 2019: RMB630.1 million). The increase was mainly due to amounts due
from third parties.

Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment include buildings, production and
electronic equipment, vehicles and construction in progress. As at 31 December
2020, the net book value of the property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB3,053.3 million (31 December 2019: RMB2,731.0 million). The increase was

mainly attributable to expansion of existing factories and purchase of new equipment.

Goodwiill

The Group's goodwill arose from the acquisitions of subsidiaries. As at 31 December
2020, the net carrying amount of goodwill was approximately RMB12.3 million (31
December 2019: Nil).

Intangible assets

The Group’s intangible assets mainly comprise customer relationship, deferred
development costs, product development in progress and trademark and software.
The deferred development costs and product development in progress mainly related
to the acquisition of several drug R&D projects and self-development of R&D projects.
As at 31 December 2020, net intangible assets amounted to approximately RMB505.6
million (31 December 2019: RMB480.0 million).

Trade and other payables

The Group’s trade and other payables mainly consist of trade payables, deposit
payables, accrued expenses and other payables. As at 31 December 2020, trade and
other payables amounted to approximately RMB1,830.2 million (31 December 2019:
RMB1,905.8 million). The decrease of approximately RMB75.6 million was mainly
attributable to a significant reduction in accrued reimbursement to distributors,
netting off increase in payables for both inventory procurement suppliers and
acquisitions of subsidiaries.
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Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (31
December 2019: Nil).

Off-balance sheet commitments and arrangements

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had neither entered into any off-balance
sheet arrangements nor commitments to provide guarantees for any payment
obligations with any third party. The Group did not have any variable interests in
any unconsolidated entities which provide financing or liquidity funding, or generate
market risk or provide credit support, or engage in the provision of leasing or hedging
or R&D services to the Group.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total capital commitment was approximately
RMB712.5 million. It was mainly set aside for purchase of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, wealth

management products and other receivables.

All the cash equivalents and bank deposits are placed in certain PRC reputable
financial institutions and high-quality international financial institutions outside
Mainland China. All those irrevocable bank bills, classified as notes receivable, are
issued by banks in the PRC with high credit rating. There was no recent history
of default of cash equivalents and bank deposits in relation to these financial

institutions.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk and has policies in place to ensure that certain cash advance has been received
upon the agreement of the related sales orders with customers. For those with credit
periods granted, the credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking into
account their financial position, credit history and other factors. It also undertakes
certain monitoring procedures to ensure that proper follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. The Group regularly performs ageing analysis, assesses credit
risks and estimates the recoverability of groups of trade receivables bearing similar
credit risk based on historical data and cash collection history.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Wealth management products are the bank financial products issued by certain
PRC reputable banking institutions. There was no recent history of default and the
executive Directors are of the opinion that the credit risk related to the investments is
low.

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors is assessed by taking
into account their financial position, relationship with the Group, credit history and
other factors. Management will also regularly review the recoverability of these other
receivables and follow up the disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The executive
Directors are of the opinion that the default by counterparties is low.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to credit risk.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s functional currency is RMB and financial instruments are mainly
denominated in RMB. The Group mainly operates in the Hong Kong and Mainland
China. The Group has no significant foreign exchange risk due to limited foreign
currency transactions other than the functional currencies of respective entities. The
Group would closely monitor this risk exposure from time to time.

During the Year, the Group did not purchase any foreign exchange, interest rate
derivative products or relevant hedging tools.

Treasury policy
The Group finances its ordinary operations mainly with internally generated resources.

The principle objective of the Group’s capital management is to sustain its ability
to continue as a going concern. The Group regularly reviews its capital structure
to ensure that the Group has sufficient financial resources to support its business
operations.

Capital expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure mainly includes purchase of property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and intangible assets. For the Year, the
Group's capital expenditure amounted to approximately RMB580.6 million, of which
approximately RMB506.6 million and RMB74.0 million were spent on property,
plant and equipment and purchase or in-house development of intangible assets,
respectively. For the Year, the Group’s investment in capital expenditure for R&D
amounted to approximately RMB280.8 million, of which approximately RMB214.6
million was spent on property, plant and equipment. The remaining approximately
RMB66.2 million related to, the purchase of, and self-development of intangible
assets.
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Material acquisitions and disposals

(@)  During the Year, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in both Beijing
Lianben Technology Development Co., Ltd. and Beijing Lianben Pharmaceutical
Chemical Technology Co., Ltd., 100% equity interest in Jilin Aotong Chemical
Co., Ltd. and 60% equity interest in Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd. for a total
consideration of RMB79.3 million. For further details, please refer to note 38 to
the financial statements.

(b)  On 3 May 2020, Sun Moral International (HK) Limited entered into sale and
purchase agreements with connected parties to dispose of Chonghui and
Tengwei. The disposals were announced by the Company on 3 May 2020,
with a circular published on 29 May 2020 and approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company on 15 June 2020, respectively. The consideration,
excluding shareholder’s loan, is approximately HK$306.7 million (equivalent to
RMB279.6 million). For further details, please refer to note 39 to the financial
statements.

Pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged certain assets to secure banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries. For further details, please refer to note 25 to the

financial statements.

Human resources and remuneration of employees

Talents are an indispensable asset to the Group’s success in a competitive
environment. The Group is committed to providing competitive remuneration
packages and regularly reviewing human resources policies, to encourage employees
to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and promoting the sustainable
growth of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 4,354 employees. For the Year, the Group's
total salary and related costs was approximately RMB591.5 million (2019: RMB555.4

million).

46 VU IR B B iR 5 @ B BR A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



HITES

ERABE S9% RRTEERARXFE
BUEE]D R-ZETXFREATNAEZ
EREEGNE - RAREENKRABA -
ERLRARASENEREE RBERIR
EBER BER-_ZT-—FRILBER
SEBRNROREY - EAEBERI 2 > B
BEGAR \FELMENBERELR
WHEEMNHERTHUARBRERR TR
HEEB - +HFER - —ANEFE-ZTZT
—F BREREBHFABEAROAAK
B RBEZARNEREEE - —NANAFE
—hNhEF  EBERRINTHEFEERA
AMEREERLHEIRE  AAERAREY
MEHEKERBER - —NWA=ZFE- AT
F EERERAYTRLZBERANERE
FERERERMRELE BEHENREH -
—NN—FE-AN=F EBEETEM
ME-—FEBRBNISERNHENBELEEAE
L#Em -EEAH-NW\OFE-NAA—F
DHRTHALTENEBZALZRTEALR
MARERFMERRBEHERE LR
BEM - EBRALACHETCETZESLABEN
BlEE BRPEREMEBEZNHL  FE
BYREESMFHREMECERBE - =
BENABHEACERGERMEXTHE
EENRIETERTECENEERMAEIRIE

EHEE R -FEAF RESHEWE
08 AHATRERBARREEAT

BETAEEADTAFHRADITIZEET
[EESMEIEMETAIGEAYIER - =
E-TFEE_ T —FREI2EIBHEE
X¥PgRgR T —_FEPELEDHE
ELXKEEFRE - —T-—NE/EEA 5
PREEFE —T-OFHREEERENT
PEEENEREE - —_T-RAFEXELDH
BE -R—NAN\EHER-NNLEF FE

DHRNTEALENEBREREGRE=ER
B2 RHEBRRELIEM - RN A NN
FORAETRERINEES2RIFER
B8 -

ESER
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Che Fengsheng, aged 59, is our executive Director and chairman of the
Company (the “Chairman”) and was appointed to the Board on 18 May 2006.
He is a co-founder of the Group and is responsible for the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of the Group and is instrumental to
the Group’s growth and business expansion since its establishment in 2001. Prior
to the Group’s establishment, Dr. Che had more than 8 years of experience as a
medical doctor/neurologist and 20 years of experience in the sales and marketing of
pharmaceutical products and the management of pharmaceutical companies. From
1997 to 2001, Dr. Che was general manager of Hainan Kang Tong Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd where he was in charge of the company’s overall management. From
1995 to 1997, Dr. Che was the assistant general manager and vice manager
(marketing) of Shenzhen City New Special Pharmaceutical Products Co., Ltd. where
he was responsible for the marketing and overall management of the company's
business. Between 1993 and 1995, Dr. Che was the product promotions manager
of Shenzhen City Healthcare Pharmaceutical Company and East China Regional
manager, in charge of sales and marketing. From 1991 to 1993, Dr. Che held the
position of chief neurologist and lecturer in First Military Medical University, Zhu
Jiang Hospital, Guangzhou City, PRC. Dr. Che was a neurologist and an assistant
lecturer at the Fourth Military Medical University in Xi'an City, PRC and at the Fourth
Military Medical University, Xi Jing Hospital in Xi'an City, PRC from 1984 to 1991
respectively. Dr. Che was the vice-chairman of several committees and associations
including, China Political Science Training Centre, China Medical Economics Magazine
Board and the Hainan Entrepreneurs Association. Dr. Che is also a deputy supervisor
of the Hainan Food and Drug Working Committee in the Hainan Entrepreneurs
Association as well as a specially appointed research member of the China Enterprise
Reform and Development Research Institute. In 2006, he was named as one of
the Top 10 New and Enterprising Businessmen in Hainan Province by the Hainan
Province Commerce Association, the Hainan Industry & Economics Association and
the Evaluation Committee of Top 10 Leading Businessmen and Top 10 New and
Enterprising Businessmen in Industry and Commerce in Hainan. He was vice chairman
of the Medical Pharmaceutical Chamber of the All-China Federation of Industry and
Commerce from 2010 to 2011. He won the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur Award for
Life Science Industry of China in 2012. He was awarded the National Labour Day
Medal in 2014. He was appointed director for the Fourth Session of the Board of the
Society of Biotechnology in Beijing in 2014. He was recognised as the National Labour
Model in 2015. Dr. Che received his Bachelor of Medicine (Aviation) and Master of
Medicine (Neurology) from the Fourth Military Medical University, Xi‘an City, PRC,
in 1984 and 1990 respectively. He also received an Executive Master of Business
Administration from China Europe International Business School in 1999.
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Dr. Guo Weicheng, aged 57, is our executive Director, deputy chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. He was appointed to our Board on 18
May 2006 and is a co-founder of the Group. Dr. Guo is responsible for the overall
operations of the Group, sales and marketing and our R&D activities, with a focus on
strategic planning, particularly in relation to mergers and acquisitions and product
collaborations. He has also become responsible for Shenzhen Sihuan’s Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. overall operations after it was acquired in 2007. Dr. Guo is instrumental to
the Group's growth and business expansion since our establishment in 2001. Prior to
our establishment, Dr. Guo had more than 4 years of experience as a general surgeon
and more than 20 years of experience in the sales and marketing of pharmaceutical
products. From 1992 to 1993, Dr. Guo held the position of chief surgeon in
Guangzhou Military 177 Hospital. Dr. Guo was a surgeon and assistant lecturer
at the Fourth Military Medical University, Tang Du Hospital, Xi‘an City, PRC from
1986 to 1989. Dr. Guo received his Bachelor of Medicine and Master of Medicine
(General Surgery) from the Fourth Military Medical University, PRC in 1986 and 1992,
respectively.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong, aged 59, is our executive Director. He is in charge of the
Group's investment and mergers and acquisitions. He joined the Group in 2005 and
was first appointed to the Board as a non-executive Director on 18 May 2006 until 8
December 2017. Dr. Zhang has more than 10 years of experience as a medical doctor.
From 1983 to 1992, Dr. Zhang worked as a medical doctor in Shenzhen City People’s
Hospital, one of the largest hospitals in Shenzhen City, PRC. Dr. Zhang obtained a
Graduate Certificate in Medical Treatment from Shantou Medical College, PRC (JlLZE
BEEZRLET) (now known as Shantou University Medical College (IlIZ8 A 282 E3557))
in 1983. In 1992, Dr. Zhang was conferred the professional title of Chief Physician by
the Shenzhen City Title Conferment Reform Leadership Group (RYITHEfELEEE
).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong, aged 47, is our executive Director, chief financial officer and
one of the joint company secretaries and was appointed to the Board on 8 December
2017. Mr. Choi joined the Group in 2006 and is responsible for overseeing and
managing the accounting and finance functions of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Choi gained his finance and accounting experience at listed companies
and Deloitte. Mr. Choi received a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) from
Nelson Polytechnic (now known as Nelson Marlborough Institute of Technology),
New Zealand in 1997. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (UK) and also a member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants
of Singapore. Mr. Choi did not hold any directorship in any listed public companies
during the past three years.

Ms. Chen Yanling, aged 43, is our executive Director and the person in charge of
the secretariat of the Group’s Board of Directors. Her main responsibilities are to
manage all matters relating to the board of directors. She joined the Group in March
2006 and has served in the Group for 15 years. Since joining the Group in 2006, she
has been working as an assistant to the Chairman of the Group assisting in managing
the board secretariat and Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. She is in charge
of the listing, daily management and investor relationship of the Group, etc. Prior
to joining the Group, she worked as an English translation officer at the information
centre of Guangzhou Tourism Bureau in 2001. In 2002, she worked as an assistant to
general manager at Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Zhongshan) Company Ltd. (B H2 (F
L)AEBRZAF]) and was in charge of the daily management of the general manager's
office as well as planning and promotion. In 2004, she worked as an assistant to the
president of Guangzhou Culturecom Company Ltd. (B3 EEEHR2AF]) and was
in charge of the daily management of the president’s office, planning and budgeting,
media resources integration and development, maintenance, etc.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kim Jin Ha, aged 54, is our non-executive Director and was appointed to the
Board on 8 December 2017. He is currently serving as a director of 3NOD Digital Group
Co., Ltd. Mr. Kim founded Lindeman Asia Investment Corporation (“Lindeman”) in
2001, a leading private equity fund in Korea which specializes in investing in Korean-
Chinese companies. Mr. Kim has been serving as Lindeman'’s chief executive officer
since 2001. Lindeman was listed on the Korea Securities Dealers Automated Quotations
of the Korea Exchange (KOSDAQ: 277070) on 14 March 2018. Mr. Kim is the
Chairman of Lindeman since listed. Prior to founding Lindeman, Mr. Kim was the head
of the China division with Yuanta Securities Korea Co., Ltd (KRX: 003470) (formerly
known as Tong Yang Securities Inc.), a company listed on Korea Exchange, from
1994 to 2001. Mr. Kim obtained his Bachelor and Master of Arts degrees in Chinese
Language and Literature from Seoul National University in 1990 and 1992, respectively,
and was awarded an MBA degree by China Europe International Business School
(CEIBS) in 1999. Mr. Kim previously served as a non-executive director of Cogobuy
Group (stock code: 400) (listed on the Stock Exchange) from June 2017 to February
2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Patrick Sun, aged 62, is an independent non-executive Director and was
appointed to the Board on 7 October 2010. Mr. Sun is currently an independent
non-executive director of Kunlun Energy Company Limited (stock code: 135) listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Sun is currently also an independent non-executive
CRRC Corporation Limited (stock code: SH601766 and HK1766) and China Railway
Construction Corporation Limited (Stock code: SH601186 and HK1186), both of
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange. He also
previously served as an independent non-executive director of China Railway Signal
& Communication Corporation Limited (stock code: 3969), China NT Pharma Group
Company Limited (stock code: 1011) and Trinity Limited (stock code: 891) (all of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange). He was formerly the chairman of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies from 2013 to 2015. He was a member of
the Takeovers & Mergers Panel and the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities
and Futures Exchange, Deputy Convenor/Chairman of the Listing Committee and
a member of the Council of the Stock Exchange. He was previously the Senior
Country Officer and Head of Investment Banking for Hong Kong of JPMorgan
Chase, group executive director and Head of Investment Banking for Greater China
at Jardine Fleming Holdings Limited. Mr. Sun graduated from the Wharton School
of the University of Pennsylvania, United States with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Economics in 1981. Mr. Sun is a fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants, United Kingdom, and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

F [Z 3 45 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 51



EEREE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

BENXLEE - 69% RBIUFRITESE B
ZE—=ZFhANBEZEREEERKE -
EDJ\ZJSEEﬁﬁ CBEERBBB R EETRK
EEMEBAAIGEA c BREZREER
/&Eﬁgx EMRBERZREIETEES=1
FRB BRERAZEARMNBE LN
L PERBERPERESERAR(KRHONK
58 :133) C ROTEE (ER) AR QA (RMH R
R :2283) REE XL R EEE AR QA (KR
MR 1566) (RERARERE R L) °
@S ERBHUYA Inc. (R R RIRAIRNZBFR 5
PR BRARERT - HUYA) MBI E
FoBEER_T——FNAET—LtF
+ B & #& {TAgria Corporation (& 7 4t #) &
RHGFMLETMMNBLES - RZT—NF+=
REZZE—tETABEEFARNESFRS
i £ 12 BIPGG Wrightson Limited#) & & & R
T - RNF_AE-ZT-_TF=AGEET
Tzﬁ%’il(? BR)BBR AR (RGO RS :231)
(ZERARAYRBRAM EM)NBILENITE
FoQEHERBEAPNARETIFNERE L E

i - BREBGHMNASERSGE  FEE
Mestmpee 8 RABRBFARSHA
SEAREE -

AL 3% RBEUFHTESE
T-NE_A-THEZEARESEENXE
KELTRAREFETA —WAAFE_FS
FEEIARABRARZRINEK  —22Z
ZTZT=FAERETHREWER =%
?Eiif¥%A¢E§§mﬁﬁm§%%
BIBE - MAKREREA - RIF LR BEEITE
BER_TZFRR -RERSEMERS
BRLBER - BFE BB - E\ﬁﬁﬁfa%
BREZ -BREEHNERAFEBEIR -
RYWHEEMBIES RESEEE X
NREEESRERS -

uH uﬁ ‘m]l] 9&

HI%%*M

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 69, is our independent non-executive Director and
was appointed to the Board on 4 September 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Tsang was a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China. He
has over 30 years of experience in auditing and providing support for initial public
offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang is currently an independent non-
executive director of a number of companies, including China Merchants China Direct
Investments Limited (stock code: 133), TK Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
2283) and CA Cultural Technology Group Limited (stock code: 1566) (all of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Tsang is currently an independent director of
HUYA Inc (which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange) (NYSE: HUYA). Mr. Tsang
was an independent director of Agria Corporation (formerly listed on the New York
Stock Exchange) from August 2011 to October 2017, a director of PGG Wrightson
Limited (a company listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange) from December
2014 to October 2017 and Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 231) from February 2016 to March 2020 (both of which is listed on the Stock
Exchange). Mr. Tsang received a bachelor degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants.

Dr. Zhu Xun, aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director and was appointed
as a member of the Board on 20 February 2014. Dr. Zhu is a native of Changchun
City. From 1995 to 2000, he served as the vice principal of Norman Bethune
University of Medical Science. From 2000 to 2003, he served as deputy secretary
general of the Changchun Municipal Government and from 2004 to 2006, he served
as special assistant to the mayor of Changchun Municipal Government. Prior to
joining the Group, Dr. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical
industry. He is currently the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Tongxieyi
New Drugs Talent Club* (RS E#EEE{A%EES), the Chief of Medicine and
Strategy* (Z4EBiR%), and the Honorary Principal of Shell University* (B 3% KE2).
He is also a special medical expert of Advantech Capital Investment* (EIRE ),
CRINBEE A1),
consultant of Changchun Jinsai Pharmaceutical* (R&E& L), and Shenzhen Osa
RY IR ).

an independent director of Shenzhen ChipScreen BioS a senior

Pharmaceutical™* (

*  For identification purposes only

* EHHEE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Zhu founded Changchun Medical Biotechnology Center* (&7 & %A ¥ firh
L) in 2001 as the supervisor of the center. In the same year, he founded Changchun
(REBAEDEMA
of the board. Funded with 8 million US dollars from the British listed company Cathay

Boxun Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* F]) and served as the chairman
International Pharmaceutical Limited in 2003, Dr. Zhu founded Changchunbotai* (&
% 1828) as Chief Executive Officer until 2010.

Dr. Zhu has served as a member of the National New Drug Advisory Committee*
(AR EHMNEEE), the expert review group of the Life Science Division of the
National Natural Science Foundation of China (BIREARIEESTESEHRIE
EERFIEAEM E), member of the expert advisory group in Biotechnology of the
National Development and Reform Commission (BIZRZ2hZ £ MR M ER ALK
8), member of the review group of the Innovation Fund for SMEs of the Ministry of
Science and Technology of the PRC (Bl BHE E R/ M ERMAIFTE S FTEZ 8) and
a member of the China Medical Science Awards Committee* (FFEEEEER| B ME TR T
B@Z8), the founding editor of the Chinese Journal of Experimental Diagnostics*
(FEESR2EMEAIIAELR), the deputy editor of the Journal of Pharmaceutical
Progress* (B2 R 58I 4R), the editorial board of the Chinese Journal of Cancer
Biotherapy* (F BEREYAEMEARE), and the editorial board of the Chinese
Journal of Immunology* (FEI®EZHHERZE).

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong, is our executive Director, chief financial officer and joint
company secretary. Please refer to this section headed “Executive Director” for his
biography.

Ms. Mok Ming Wai, is our joint company secretary. Ms. Mok was appointed in
December 2013. Ms. Mok is the executive director of corporate services of Tricor
Services Limited. Ms. Mok has over 25 years of professional and in-house experience
in company secretarial field. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in
the United Kingdom.

*  For identification purposes only

* EHEE
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting Period
From 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Year").

Good corporate governance is favorable for the improvement of the overall
performance, transparency and accountability of the Company and is crucial to the
modern corporate administration. The Board, in the interests of the Shareholders,
devotes considerable efforts to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of
corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of corporate
governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate
image with effective corporate governance procedures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the reporting period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises five executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. Save as disclosed in this annual report, there
is no financial, business, family or other material relationship among the members
of the Board. The biographical information of the members of the Board are set out
on pages 47 to 53 in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors”. During
the Year, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated
and such roles are exercised by Dr. Che Fengsheng as the Chairman and Dr. Guo

Weicheng as the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board is responsible for the governance of the Group's strategic development,
determination of the Group’s objectives, business strategies and policies, and the
supervision and control of the operation and financial performance in pursuit of
the Group's strategic objectives. Our management team, which possesses extensive
operating experience and industry knowledge, has been delegated by the Board
with the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Group.
In addition, the Board has also delegated certain specific responsibilities to the
various Board committees, namely, the audit committee, remuneration committee,
nomination committee and risk management committee. Further details of these
Board committees are set out below.
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The Board convened seven Board meetings during the Year. All Directors were sent
a meeting notice, at least 14 days prior to such meeting, with the Board meeting
agenda. The views of independent non-executive Directors were actively solicited
by the Company during Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and Board
committees meetings are kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective
meetings. All Directors are provided with Board papers and related statistics on a
timely manner, which enabled the Board to make informed decisions on matters
proposed. In addition, all Board members have regularly reviewed the business
documents and information related to the Group.

All Directors are entitled to access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries. The joint company secretaries of the Company are Mr. Choi Yiau Chong,
who is an executive Director and the chief financial officer of the Company, and Ms.
Mok Ming Wai. The primary contact person of Ms. Mok at the Company is Mr. Choi.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Mr. Choi and Ms. Mok, has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings, during the reporting period,
is stated below:

HERB/ERITZ
BEBAH
Attendance/
No. of Board
meetings held

HITES

BSFAEBE(ER)

BB EE(AIERBITHER)
5% ) 8 B4
ERALEE(BERVBE)
PRI 22 &

FHUTES
THRERLE

BIUFHTES
EEERE
BERELE
R E L

Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman) 717
Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and CEO) 7/7
Dr. Zhang Jionglong 7/7
Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (CFO) 717
Ms. Chen Yanling 7/7

Non-executive Director
Mr. Kim Jin Ha 5/7

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Patrick Sun 7/7
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 7/7
Dr. Zhu Xun 7/7
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Directors
for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.

With regards to the code provision requiring directors to disclose the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved in such commitments,
the Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely
manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has currently appointed one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. At least one of the three independent non-executive
Directors holds appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. One-
third of the members of the Board are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Patrick Sun, being an independent non-executive Director has renewed his letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing from 27
October 2020. Mr. Kim Jin Ha, being a non-executive Director, has renewed the
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing from
8 December 2020. Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun, being the independent
non-executive Directors, have renewed their letters of appointment with the
Company for a term of one year commencing from 4 September 2020 and 20
February 2021, respectively. The non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or re-election in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws. Each independent non-executive Director has
submitted to the Company an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent and meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13

of the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The bye-laws of the Company provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if the number is not a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation and being eligible, can offer themselves for re-election. In addition, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election. The retiring Directors are eligible for re-election by the Shareholders at the
respective general meetings.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Mr. Choi Yiau Chong
and Ms. Chen Yanling will retire by rotation and be eligible for re-election as Directors
at the annual general meeting to be held in 2021 (the “2021 AGM").

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company before the
expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any claim which such
Director may have for damages for any breach of any contract between him and the
Company) provided that the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of
removing a Director shall contain a statement of the intention to do so and be served
on such Director 14 days before the meeting and, at such meeting, such Director shall
be entitled to be heard on the motion for his removal.

As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been put in place to
ensure our Company’s corporate governance practice in this respect provides
sufficient protection for the interests of Shareholders to a standard commensurate
with the provision of the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the Year, the
Directors are committed to complying with the code provision A.6.5 of the Code
on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional

development and provided a record of training they received.

BIEER - flan

WA BREROE

HEHEEERS EREBEERER
HENHNE Reading materials

BERIEL like newspapers,
Attending seminar, journals and
conference and updates relevant
workshop related to to corporate
EEHA Name of Directors director’s duties governance
HBTES Executive Directors
BB E Dr. Che Fengsheng v/ v/
20 4 5 B8 Dr. Guo Weicheng 4 v/
R AmAE Dr. Zhang Jionglong v v/
ERASEE Mr. Choi Yiau Chong v v
PR 3 3% 22 & Ms. Chen Yanling v v/
FHITES Non-Executive Director
SHEE LA Mr. Kim Jin Ha v/ v/
BYFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
FEERAE Mr. Patrick Sun v v/
BERTE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong v/ v/
KiE =+ Dr. Zhu Xun v/ v/
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and with its
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent view on
the effectiveness of the financial reporting procedures, internal control and risk
management system of the Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform other
duties and responsibilities as required by the Board. The Audit Committee currently
comprises one non-executive Director (Mr. Kim Jin Ha) and three independent non-
executive Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun), and is
chaired by Mr. Patrick Sun who has a professional qualification in accountancy.

During the Year, three meetings were held by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the Group’s financial reporting matters, reviewed the
internal control system in relation to finance and accounting and submitted
improvement proposals to the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code.

In addition, the Audit Committee had reviewed, discussed and approved the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the interim results for the period
ended 30 June 2020. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
also reviewed the auditor’s remuneration for 2021 and recommended the Board to
re-appoint Ernst & Young as the Company’s auditor for the year of 2021, which is
subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2021 AGM.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee members at the meetings held during
the Year was as follows:

H R B/

BIT2EBREY

Attendance/

EEHA Name of Directors No. of meetings held

ETELE(EE) Mr. Patrick Sun (Chairman) 3/3

BN KA Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 3/3

KA Dr. Zhu Xun 3/3

SHEBELE Mr. Kim Jin Ha 3/3
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee are, among others, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on matters relating
to the appointment of Directors. The Nomination Committee currently comprises
one executive Director (Dr. Guo Weicheng) and three independent non-executive
Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun) and is chaired
by Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code. During
the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Board in
accordance with the requirements as stipulated in the Code and concluded that the
Board comprised members with diversified backgrounds and skills which ensured
check and balance and safeguarded the interests of Shareholders as well as the
public.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and
Nomination Policy (the “Nomination Policy”) setting out the approach to diversify
members of the Board. The Company believes that a diversified perspective can
be achieved through implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The following
measurable objectives were adopted: selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, skills, knowledge,
experience, expertise, professional and educational qualifications, background and
other personal qualities. The ultimate decision will be based on objective criteria,
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the Year, two meetings were held by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, considered the re-appointment of the retiring Directors and assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee, had also, taking into consideration the skills, experience and knowledge,
the relevant requirements of the Company and the structure and composition of the
Board, identified, reviewed and nominated, with diligence and care, candidates who
are suitable as Board members of the Company before making final recommendations
to the Board for their final appointment.

60 VU IR B B iR 5 @ B BR A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



FA - REZZEGRBEHFEEHIHOT

TEERHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNAN

M

E REPORT

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee members at the meetings held
during the Year was as follows:

HE R B/ BT
ZEBRE
Attendance/
BEEHA Name of Directors No. of meetings held
WENLEA(EFE) Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman) 2/2
20 4 0 B Dr. Guo Weicheng 2/2
FEESE Mr. Patrick Sun 2/2
KA Dr. Zhu Xun 2/2
REZEGHETHBRNETTRE L TLE The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy and Nomination
ERBEBREUBRREFEAN Policy on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.
REHE NOMINATION POLICY
BREBETAFIBER EFFR_T-NF= The Board has approved and adopted a nomination policy on 18 March 2019

A+/NBHELRMESBRE  BHEEE
FREANEIRENEAEFRERM
AR -

REER
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according to the new requirements of the Code. It sets out the criteria and
procedures to be adopted when considering candidates to be appointed or re-

appointed as directors of the Company.

NOMINATION CRITERIA
1. When considering a candidate nominated for directorship or a director’s
proposed re-appointment, the Nomination Committee will have regard to the
following factors:
1.1 age, gender, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional and
educational qualifications, background and other personal qualities of
the candidate;

1.2 effect on the board’s composition and diversity;

1.3 commitment of the candidate to devote sufficient time to effectively
carry out his/her duties. In this regard, the number and nature of offices
held by the candidate in public companies or organizations, and other
executive appointments or significant commitments will be considered;

1.4 potential/actual conflicts of interest that may arise if the candidate is
selected;

1.5 independence of the candidate;
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1.6

1.7

in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an independent non-
executive director, the number of years he/she has already served; and

other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination Committee on
a case by case basis.

NOMINATION PROCEDURES AND PROCESS

2. Subject to the provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association, if the Board

recognises the need to appoint an additional director, the following procedures

should be adopted:

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

the Nomination Committee identifies or selects candidates recommended
to the Committee, with or without assistance from external agencies or
the Company, pursuant to the criteria set out above;

the Nomination Committee adopts any process appropriate to evaluate
the candidates, which may include personal interviews, background
checks, presentations or written submissions by the candidates and third
party references,

the Nomination Committee will hold a physical meeting to consider the
matter and avoid the making of decisions by written resolutions unless it
is impractical that a physical meeting be held;

the Nomination Committee provides to the Board with all the
information required including information set out in Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules in relation to the candidates;

before recommendation to the Board, evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board to prepare a description of
the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment, then the
Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the Board including
the terms and conditions of the appointment;

the Board deliberates and decides on the appointment based upon the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee;

all appointments of director should be confirmed by letter of
appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of the
appointment of the directors, which should be approved by the
Nomination Committee; and
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2.8 pursuant to Rule 13.74 of the Listing Rules, where shareholders are
required to vote on electing or re-electing a director, the circular
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting should contain
all the information of the candidates required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

In cases of re-appointments of existing directors, a physical meeting will be held to
consider the re-appointment based on the same criteria set out in above.

NOMINATION BY SHAREHOLDERS

The Shareholders may also propose a person for election as a director, details of
which are set out in the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director” of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things, to
make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and to review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals. The remuneration of the Directors is
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience, and to
prevailing market conditions. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
one executive Director (Dr. Che Fengsheng) and three independent non-executive
Directors, (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun) and is chaired by
Dr. Zhu Xun. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are consistent
with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee assessed the performance of executive
Directors, reviewed the remuneration policy, reviewed and approved the proposed
2020 directors’ fees for executive Directors and made recommendation to the Board
on the directors’ fees for non-executive Directors.

During the Year, three meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee, during
which the resolutions regarding the remuneration of executive Directors of the
Company in 2020 and the remuneration policy for the executive Directors for 2020
were discussed and recommended to the Board for consideration.
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RAFE FHZESeKEHEeHTEN The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members at the meetings
AN held during the Year was as follows:
HER B/ ET
ZEBRE
Attendance/
EEHA Name of Directors No. of meetings held
KABEL(ERE) Dr. Zhu Xun (Chairman) 3/3
BHEFE Dr. Che Fengsheng 3/3
FEESE Mr. Patrick Sun 3/3
WIS A Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 3/3
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 28 to the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year (“Financial Statements”). As the
Company does not have senior management, disclosure about senior management’s
remuneration by band is not applicable.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

On 13 December 2015, the Board approved and established the risk management
committee of the Company (the “Risk Management Committee”) with written
terms of reference. The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are,
among others, to review the Company’s risk management, internal control system
and environmental, social and governance (“ESG") strategies, policies, guidelines and
procedures and to review the effectiveness of the work on risk management, internal
control systems and ESG. The Risk Management Committee consists of two executive
Directors (Dr. Guo Weicheng and Mr. Choi Yiau Chong) and two independent non-
executive Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong), and is chaired by
Mr. Choi Yiau Chong.

During the Year, two meetings were held by the Risk Management Committee.
The Risk Management Committee reviewed and assessed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company, and made suggestions to the Board. The
Risk Management Committee had also reviewed and assessed the ESG strategies,
policies, guidelines and procedures, and expressed their opinions to the Board.
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The attendance record of the Risk Management Committee members at the meetings
held during the Year was as follows:

HE R B/ BT

ZEERE

Attendance/

EEpE Name of Directors No. of meetings held
ERELEE(EE) Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (Chairman) 2/2
20 4 I B8 Dr. Guo Weicheng 2/2
FEELA Mr. Patrick Sun 2/2
WIS A Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 2/2

EERAHERNBERS R
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
THE DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its
own code of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year. To comply with
code provision A.6.4 of the Code, the Group has also established and adopted the
Model Code as the code of conduct for securities transactions by relevant employees
to regulate the dealings in the securities of the Group by certain employees of the
Group who are deemed to be likely in possession of the inside information of the
Company.

DIRECTORS * RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirmed that it is their responsibility to prepare the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020. A statement on reporting responsibility with
respect to the external auditor of the Company is set out on pages 109 to 115 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a sound and effective risk management
and internal control system is maintained within the Group. The Group has adopted
internal control procedures and policies to safeqguard the assets, to ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records, to carry out reliable financial reporting and to
ensure compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board to review the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems every year. Review scope covers the control
of all major aspects, including the Company’s financial control, operation control
and compliance control. It also reviews the adequacy of resources in the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, staff qualifications and experience,
and the level of training attended and related subsides that employees have received.
During the Year, the Board is satisfied with the review results of the Group’s risk
management and internal control and considers them effective and sufficient.

The Group has established an internal audit team who conducts independent auditing
work under the guidance of the Audit Committee. The annual work plan of the
internal audit team was to review periodically in relation to the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems and reports to the Risk Management
Committee and Audit Committee. The internal audit team reported the audit
results to the Audit Committee, carried out follow-up actions agreed based on
recommendations of the Audit Committee and to assist the Audit Committee and
the Board to promote continuous improvement of the Group’s risk management
and internal controls. The internal audit team is staffed by persons with certain
professional ethics, professional competence, audit experience and appropriate
communication skills.

In 2020, the Board has appointed a professional third party to provide professional
advice and services on risk management and internal control system to the Group.

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management system and realized
organic integration with the internal control system. Through a systematical risk
management process, a list of risks is compiled by identification with respect to the
operating conditions of the Company. Judgment on the possibility of occurrence and
the effects of various types of risks is attained through assessment of risks. Ranking
the severity of the Group’s business impact by combining qualitative and quantitative
analysis to find out the causes of risks, recommendations of multi-dimensional and
effective responsive strategies are made from seven aspects, including operation
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strategy, system process, structural functions, technical tools, skills of staff, allocation
of resources and performance appraisal, and a written report is prepared for
submission to the management and the Board. The Group further developed risk
management measures to maintain risk within an acceptable level. Finally, fruitful
results of risk management will be realized through effective implementation of
the internal control system. The Group has formed a regular mechanism for daily
monitoring and regular assessment of risks to realize continuing supervision on

essential risk factors in the daily operational management activities.

In 2020, the Group conducted a follow-up review on the risk control measures
adopted by the management based on the risk assessment results for 2019.
The management has taken measures to control the relevant risks, including
strengthening corporate internal control and authorization management, optimizing
the compliance management system, as well as formulating and constantly

implementing the compliance management regime.

In addition to internal implementation of risk management and conducting regular
review on internal control, the Group will engage external auditors annually to
perform statutory audits as well as to review the adequacy and effectiveness of
certain key risk management and internal control aspects. Under appropriate
circumstances, the Group will adopt the relevant recommendations of the external
auditors to enhance risk management and internal control.

Moreover, to regulate operations of the Group and to ensure that all businesses of
the Group comply with relevant laws and regulations, the Group’s former surveillance
department has been restructured into the compliance department in 2015 and is
responsible for the establishment, inspection and reporting of all compliance-related
work of the Group. A compliance risk management organizational structure has been
established within the Group since then to conduct regular reviews on the compliance
of conducts of the Group’s internal staff, customers, suppliers and cooperative
partners, provide training and education on observing discipline and laws and
complying with anti-corruption rules, and sign letters of undertakings on compliance
with employees annually.

Regarding the handling and release of inside information, the Group has formulated
the “Information Disclosure Management Measures”, and has complied with
applicable laws, regulations and the Listing Rules, to disclose information truthfully,
timely, accurately, legally and completely in accordance with the information
processing and release procedures to perform the obligations of disclosure, and to
ensure that such information has been kept confidential prior to the proper approval
of its disclosure to protect the legitimate interests of the Company’s shareholders,

creditors and other stakeholders.
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1.1
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2.3
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Group had made remarkable improvements in investor relationship in 2020. The

Group has participated in a number of institutional investor conferences and regularly

communicated with many investors through various means. The Group has also set to

provide the highest standard and financial transparency through publication of annual

and interim reports, results announcements, other announcements and circulars

through the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholder Communication Policy
The Board adopted a shareholder communication policy according to the Code.

1. Purpose

1.1

1.2

This Policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of
ensuring that Sihuan’s shareholders, both individual and institutional
(collectively, “Shareholders”), and, in appropriate circumstances, the
investment community at large, are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company (including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, governance and risk profile), in order to enable
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
Shareholders and the investment community to engage actively with the
Company.

For the purpose of this Policy, references to the investment community is
intended to include the Company’s potential investors as well as analysts
reporting and analysing the Company’s performance.

2. General Policy

2.1

2.2

2.3

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
the investment community, and will regularly review this Policy to ensure

its effectiveness.

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the investment
community mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim and
annual reports), annual general meetings and other general meetings
that may be convened and its corporate communications and other

corporate publications on the Sihuan Group website.

Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders and
the investment community shall be ensured at all times. Any question
regarding this Policy shall be directed to the Company Secretary or Head

of Corporate Communications.
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Communication Strategies

Shareholders’ enquiries

3.1

3.2

3.3

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Registrar.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided with
designated contacts and email addresses in order to enable them to

make any query in respect of the Company.

Corporate Communication*

3.4

3.5

Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders in plain
language and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding. Shareholders have the right to choose the
language (either English or Chinese) or means of receipt of the corporate
communications (in hard copy or through electronic means).

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in
particular, their email addresses to the Company in order to facilitate
timely and effective communications.

Corporate Website

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

A dedicated “Investor Relations” section is available on the Sihuan
Group website www.sihuanpharm.com. Information on the Sihuan

Group website is updated on a regular basis.

Information released by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited is also posted on the Sihuan Group website immediately
thereafter. Such Information on website includes financial statements,
results announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings and

associated explanatory documents etc.

All presentation materials provided in conjunction with the Company'’s
annual general meeting and results announcement each year will be
made available on the Sihuan Group website as soon as practicable after
their release.

All press releases issued by the Company or its subsidiaries will be made
available on the Sihuan Group website.
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Shareholders’ Meetings

3.10

3.12

3.13

3.14

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meetings shall be in
place to encourage Shareholders’ participation.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairmen or deputy chairmen
of Board committees or their delegates, appropriate management
executives and external auditors will attend annual general meetings to

answer Shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend shareholders’ activities organised
by the Company, where information about the Company, including its
latest strategic plan, products and services etc will be communicated.

Investment Market Communications

3.15

3.16

Investor/analysts briefings and one-on-one meetings, roadshows (both
domestic and international), media interviews, marketing activities for
investors and specialist industry forums etc will be available on a regular
basis in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community.

Sihuan's Directors and employees who have contacts or dialogues with
investors, analysts, media or other interested outside parties are required
to comply with the disclosure obligations and requirements.
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4. Shareholder Privacy

4.1

The Company recognises the importance of Shareholders’ privacy and
will not disclose Shareholders’ information without their consent, unless
required by law to do so.

“Corporate Communication” refers to any document issued or to be
issued by Sihuan for the information or action of holders of any of its
securities, including, but not limited to, the directors’ report and annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditor’s report, the interim report,
a notice of meeting, a circular and a proxy form.

B
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KEERN KRR _E_ZTFEA+HREHE During the Year, the Company held an annual general meeting and special general
TRRERAFAEABRRFINRE([ZE=28 meeting on 15 June 2020 (the “2020 AGM & SGM"). The Directors of the Company,
FRABFAERBRABAKAE]) - XAF namely Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Mr. Choi Yiau
ER(MEBARE  BHEWEE  RMEER Chong, Ms. Chen Yanling, Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun,
AEBBKE BRERALT  FEEXLE - attended the meetings.

WEXEERKRAEL) HELEGE -

EEHR T _EFERRBPFAELERERE The attendance records of the Directors at the 2020 AGM & SGM are set out below:
BIREMEERHHNWT :

HER B/ BT
ZEERH
Attendance/

No. of meetings held

HBTES Executive Directors

BISFE Dr. Che Fengsheng 2/2
204 o BS Dr. Guo Weicheng 22
iR AW BE BE Dr. Zhang Jionglong 2/2
ERB KA Mr. Choi Yiau Chong 2/2
PRI 22+ Ms. Chen Yanling 2/2
HITES Non-executive Director

SHEBE L Mr. Kim Jin Ha 0/2
BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

FEESE Mr. Patrick Sun 2/2
BN EE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 2/2
KAiE+ Dr. Zhu Xun 212
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from 1 January 2020 to the date of this annual report, there has

not been any change in the Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The following procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-

laws”), the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Act”) and applicable legislation

and regulation. Shareholders who have enquires about the following procedures or

have enquires to put to the Board may write to the joint company secretaries of the

Company (the

“"Company Secretary”) at Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention

Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

A.

Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general
meeting (other than a proposal of a person for election as
a Director)

(M

Pursuant to Bye-laws 56 and 57, the Company holds an annual general
meeting ("AGM") every year, and may hold a general meeting known as
a special general meeting whenever necessary.

Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, Shareholder(s) holding (i) not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
Shareholders, can submit a written request for notice of any resolution
intended to be moved at an AGM or a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular general
meeting to be given to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
AGM or general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, P.O. Box, HM1022, Hamilton, HM
DX, Bermuda with a copy to its principal office in Hong Kong at Room
4309, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six
(6) weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition for notice of a
resolution and not less than one (1) week before the general meeting in
the case of any other requisition.
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Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is in order, the
Company Secretary will request the Board (i) to include the resolution
in the agenda for the AGM and give notice of the resolution; or (ii)
to circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided that the
Shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably
determined by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in serving the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s) concerned have

statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.

failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purposes, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in
the agenda for the AGM or the statement will not be circulated for the
general meeting.

B. Procedures for a Shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director

(M

If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s),
wishes to propose a person (other than the Shareholder himself/herself)
for election as a Director at that meeting, he/she must deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, P.O. Box, HM1022, Hamilton, HM DX, Bermuda and its principal
office in Hong Kong at Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of that proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director, his/her biographical details as required by
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned and accompanied by a notice signed by that person indicating

his/her willingness to be elected.
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The minimum length of the period, during which such written notice(s)
may be given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices
are submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven
(7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

If the notice is received less than fifteen (15) business days prior to
that general meeting, the Company will need to consider adjournment
of the general meeting in order to (i) assess the suitability of the
proposed candidate; and (i) publish an announcement or circulate a
supplementary circular in relation to the proposal to the Shareholders at
least fourteen (14) clear days and not less than ten (10) business days

prior to the general meeting.

C. Procedures for Shareholders to convene special general
meeting (“SGM")

)

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, P.O. Box, HM1022, Hamilton, HM
DX, Bermuda and with a copy to its principal office in Hong Kong at
Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the general meeting,
be signed by the requisitionists and may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more of those requisitionists.
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If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the requisitionists will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionists at a SGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

i at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than ten (10) clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company, which cannot be amended other than
a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent error; and

ii. at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten (10) clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the Act.

In accordance with the provision of section 74(3) of the Act, if the Board
does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three (3) months from
the said date.
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(7)  Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to
the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so repaid shall be
retained by the Company out of any sums due or to become due from
the Company by way of fees or other remuneration in respect of their
services to such directors as were in default.

D. Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Room 4309, Office Tower,

Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: 3628 3911

Fax: (852) 3101 0362

Email: ir@sihuanpharm.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the general meetings of
the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 18 March 2019 according
to the new requirement of the Code.

1. The Company may declare dividends in any currency through the shareholders’
meeting, but the dividends declared shall not exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. The Board may also declare dividends or other
distributions from time to time.

2. Any dividend declared by the Company shall be conducted in accordance
with the Bermuda Companies Law, the bye-laws of the Company and other
applicable laws and regulations, and shall not affect the normal operation of
the Company and its subsidiaries as the principle.
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Subject to the second paragraph above, whether the Company declares
dividends and the declared amounts will depend on the Company’s financial
results, cash flow and financial status and conditions, operating and funding
needs, business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and expenditure plans, the amount of profit that can be
distributed under the applicable accounting standards and other factors that
the Board considers relevant to the Group.

The Board will continuously review this dividend policy and reserves the
absolute autonomy to update, amend, modify and/(or) cancel this dividend
policy at any time. The Company does not guarantee the payment of any
specific amount of dividends for any given period of time and does not have
any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company establishes good corporate

governance practices and procedures. The Audit Committee is authorised by the

Board to perform the corporate governance duties as below:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors of the Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual to
corporate governance matters (if any) applicable to Directors and employees of
the Company; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and other related rules and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the auditor of the Group provided audit services for the Group. The
service fees for audit services in 2020 amounted to RMB5.0 million.

COMPLIANCE OF THE NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng Xianhui and Dr. Zhang
Jionglong (collectively, the “Covenantors” and each a “Covenantor”) had provided
an annual declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of the deed of
non-competition undertaking (as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 15
October 2010). Pursuant to the deed of non-competition, each of the Covenantors
has, among other things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken with the
Company that at any time during the relevant period, each of the Covenantors shall,

and shall procure that its associates (other than members of the Group):

(i) not, directly or indirectly, engage in, invest in, participate in, or attempt to
participate in or render any services to or provide any financial support to or
otherwise be involved in, whether on its own account or with each other or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person or company, any business which is

the same as, similar to or in competition with the business of the Group; and

(i) not take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may interfere with or
disrupt the business of the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by the

Covenantors with the deed of non-competition undertaking.
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The Board is pleased to present the Report of Directors together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the Year (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Key Relationships

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Employees

Employees are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the Group regards
the personal development of its employees highly important. The Group
regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. The Group has also adopted
share option scheme and share award scheme to recognise and reward the
contribution of the employees for the benefit of the Group’s operations and

future development.

Suppliers

We have developed long-term relationships with a number of suppliers and
to ensure that they share our commitment to quality and ethics. We carefully
select our suppliers and require them to satisfy certain benchmarks.

Distributors

We sell our products to the end-user customers through distributors. We work
closely with the distributors to ensure that we share the view for enhance our
brand value and customer services.

Hospitals

We are committed to offer quality products to hospitals. We also stay
connected and maintain a close relationship with the hospitals through various

channels such as visits, marketing materials and meetings.
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A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a discussion on the
Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on
pages 15 to 19 of this annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 20 to 21. Also, the financial risk management analysis of the
Group can be found in Note 3 to the Financial Statements. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the Year using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Group Financial Summary on page 14 of this annual report. In addition,
discussions on the Group's risk management, internal control, ESG, relationships with
its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group are contained in the Chairman’s Statement, the
Corporate Governance Report and this Report of Directors on pages 15 to 19, pages
54 to 79 and pages 80 to 108, respectively, and in the Group’s corporate website.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Company has always abided by the environmental-friendly sustainable
development commitment in the process of production and operation, strictly
complied with the environmental protection laws and regulations in the places
where it operates, established and improved the environmental management system
and monitoring system, promoted an efficient and green pattern for production
and operation, committed to building a resource-saving and environment-friendly
enterprise. For the Year, the Group focused on promoting its subordinated production
units to conduct various lean production transformation projects, so as to promote
an energy-saving and profit-increasing production pattern; proactively responded to
national policies to strengthen the management of hazardous wastes; at the same
time, further standardized the environmental information management, laying an
information foundation for setting the corporate goals of energy conservation and
emission reduction.

The Group is committed to creating a green and comfortable office environment,
carries out a variety of green publicity and energy consumption management
methods, encourages all employees to participate in self-inspection to constantly
strengthen employees' awareness of environmental protection and energy saving.
Meanwhile, the Group further regulates garbage classification management to make

a beautiful environment.

The Group will review its environmental protection work from time to time and
continue to explore the direction of improvement and optimization of environmental
management in its business operations in order to fulfill its commitments to realize
corporate economic and environmental sustainability.
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In order to further improve our information disclosure level in environment,
society and governance and respond to our stakeholders’ concerns, the Group will
continuously disclose the independent Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
For details of the Group’s environmental protection work and performance, please
refer to the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the year ended
31 December 2020 to be published in due course.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, income and segment information for the Year is
set out in note 5 to the Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The Group’s results for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 118 to 119 of this annual report.

The Board recommended the declaration and payment of a final cash dividend of
RMB1.3 cents per share (equivalent to HK$1.6 cents per share) for the year ended 31
December 2020 in return for Shareholders’ support. The proposed dividend is subject
to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Together with an interim cash dividend of RMBO.1 cents per share and
two special cash dividends of RMB10.6 cents per share and RMB3.0 cents per share,
respectively, the total cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 will be
RMB15.0 cents per share.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the Group’s results and assets and liabilities for the last five financial
years is set out on page 14 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 6 to the Financial Statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint venture as at
31 December 2020 are set out in notes 12, 13 and 40 to the Financial Statements,
respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year together
with the reasons for such movements are set out in note 19 to the Financial
Statements.

SHARES AND RESERVES

Details of movements in the shares and reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and also in notes 19 and 20 to the Financial Statements. As at the end of the
reporting period, the reserves available for distribution to Shareholders amounted to
RMB4,302,088,000 (2019: RMB5,250,978,000). The Company had not issued any
shares during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND REMAINING LIFE

The Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the Shareholders at
the special general meeting held on 24 October 2017 (“Share Option Scheme
Adoption Date”), which will be valid for ten (10) years from the Share Option
Scheme Adoption Date. As of the date of this Report, it has a remaining life of
approximately 6 years 7 months.

PURPOSE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate Eligible Persons (as set out
in paragraph (b) below) (i) to optimise their future contributions to the Group; (ii)
to reward them for their past contributions; and (iii) to attract, retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with Eligible Persons who are significant to and/or
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth and success
of the Group.

(a) Eligible persons

Our Board may, at its sole discretion, invite any director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group, any executive director of, manager of, or other employee holding
an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in, any member of
the Group, any proposed Employee, any full-time or part-time Employee,
or a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-time for
any member of the Group, a consultant, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member of the Group,
a person or entity that provides research, development or other technological
support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of the Group, or an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of any of the foregoing persons (together, “Eligible Persons” and each an
“Eligible Person”).

£ £ ) & ANNUAL REPORT 2020 83



EER RS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

(b) BEEMR

84

() EZEFFU2ERNBEREREBEBR
B EREIMEERAL(EER
AR E #8 HATRE  Y
BRHE -

(i) EBEESIREKBEAMSERAL
UAREEER BHEEABRR
EHNER  BEEZEALER
TARBRENEBREE -

iy RRERE BKBIFEFSAR
B RARR B AR E R
BEBALTMATROTRBER
0 B (E ] R A 4 - T JE R LA 2
BAREBRE IR LB -

(iv) AEBALTHARARRNEERS
REEES TR (BRENRL AR
BB 2O - NEMA
15 # B R B e 1T 5 B AR A
) 2RBBEERNABEENRX
SEE  UHAEEREER
EEBATR/EEBEALHEER
BEANERAZERKENEE
o A EEE R (R ETR)
R BRET B L ERARH
B e

E R ERET S (RIBEARR G M
HtERAFAEERBRETS) 7] 48
BREMAAERERITEMR FEITH
BROBE  BZEHETBRBRERE
KA BB ETRMDN10%([5T8
BELR]) WHAQRUREESRAE
BRENBR TSR AT
BIEE LR - EERTERBERETE
(RBEBERABEMNEMERARES
B ERRAERTE]) AT B IR B B AT B BB AR A
Mg FEHTHRNEE  HZTEER
BRABRRAS LR AEEFHZ LR 2B
BEETRMDAII10% °

(b) Determination of eligibility

(i) The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant to any Eligible
Person (a “Grantee”) an option to subscribe for Shares under the Share
Option Scheme.

(i) The basis of eligibility of any Eligible Person to the grant of any option
shall be determined by our Directors from time to time on the basis
of their contributions to the development, growth and success of the
Group.

(i) For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any option by our Company for
the subscription of Shares to any person who falls within the definition
of Eligible Persons shall not, by itself, unless our Directors otherwise
determine, be construed as a grant of options under the Share Option
Scheme.

(iv)  An Eligible Person or a Grantee shall provide the Board such information
and supporting evidence as the Board may in its absolute discretion
request from time to time (including before the offer of a grant of
option, at the time of acceptance of a grant of option and at the time of
exercise of an option) for the purpose of assessing and/or determining
his eligibility or continuing eligibility as an Eligible Person and/or a
Grantee or that of his close associates or for purposes in connection with
the terms of an option (and the exercise thereof) or the Share Option
Scheme and the administration thereof.

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all options which
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme (and under any other post-
IPO share option scheme of our Company) shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the Share Option Scheme Adoption Date (“Scheme
Mandate Limit"”), provided that our Company may at any time as our Board
may think fit seek approval from the Shareholders to refresh the Scheme
Mandate Limit, except that the maximum number of Shares to be issued
upon exercise of all options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option scheme of our Company)
shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval by the

Shareholders in general meeting where such limit is refreshed.
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Despite the above-mentioned, the maximum number of Shares to be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option scheme
of our Company) shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to

time.

The total number of Shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Share Option Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme was passed at the special general meeting on 24 October 2017
would be 947,108,220 Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the Share Option Scheme Adoption Date.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to any one Eligible Person (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. Where any further grant of options to such an Eligible
Person would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and which may be granted to such Eligible Person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant would exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue at such time, such further grant shall be separately approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Person and his associates or
close associates (as the case may be) abstaining from voting.

Grant of options

On and subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, our Board
shall be entitled at any time within a period of ten (10) years commencing on the
Share Option Scheme Adoption Date to offer the grant of any option to any Eligible
Person as the Board may in its absolute discretion select, and on acceptance of the
offer, grant such part of the option as accepted to the Eligible Person.
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Subject to the provisions of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any condition, restriction or
limitation in relation thereto in addition to those set forth in the Share Option Scheme
as the Board may think fit (to be stated in the letter containing the offer of the grant
of the option), including but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing
continuing eligibility criteria, conditions, restrictions or limitations relating to the
achievement of performance, operating or financial targets by our Company and/or
the Grantee, the satisfactory performance or maintenance by the Grantee of certain
conditions or obligations or the time or period when the right to exercise the option
in respect of all or some of the Shares to which the option relates shall vest, provided
that the period within which the Shares that the option relates shall vest on a date
not more than ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the option.

The rules of the Share Option Scheme provide that the Board may specify the Eligible
Persons to whom Share Options shall be granted, the number of Shares subject to
each Share Option and the date on which the Share Options shall be granted. The
Share Options may be exercised at any time during the Share Option Period subject
to certain conditions, restrictions or limitations imposed pursuant to the rules of
the Share Option Scheme. The basis for determining the subscription price is also
specified precisely in the rules of the Share Option Scheme. There is no performance
target specified in the Share Option Scheme. The Directors consider that allowing
the Board discretion to fix, among other things, the minimum period for which a
Share Option must be held before it can be exercised, performance targets and the
subscription price, upon the grant of Share Options will better serve the purpose of
the Share Option Scheme as this will allow the Board to grant Share Options that
cater to the specific circumstances of the Grantee, taking into consideration the
Grantee's seniority, experience, past work performance, field of expertise, etc., and
thereby providing appropriate motivation and incentive to the Grantee.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the Grantee
together with a remittance in favour of our Company of HKD1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by our Company within the period
specified in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option. Once such
acceptance is made, the option shall be deemed to have been granted and to have
taken effect from the offer date.

An option shall be exercised in whole or in part by the Grantee according to the
procedures for the exercise of options established by our Company from time to time.
Every exercise of an option must be accompanied by a remittance for the full amount
of the subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of such option.
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The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be such price as our
Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of the grant of the relevant
option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the
option) but the subscription price shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(i) the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date; and

(iii)  the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five Business Days immediately preceding the
offer date.

The subscription price shall also be subject to adjustment in accordance with
reorganization of capital restructure.

Based on 9,465,682,206 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2020. On 26 August
2020, Mr. Choi Yiau Chong was granted options to purchase 6,000,000 Shares;
Ms. Chen Yanling was granted to purchase 4,000,000 Shares; Mr. Patrick Sun was
granted to purchase 3,000,000 Shares; Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong was granted to
purchase 3,000,000 Shares and Dr. Zhu Xun was granted to purchase 3,000,000
Shares, the remaining 75,656,000 Share Options were granted to eligible participants
who are employees of the Company at a price of HK$0.972 per Share pursuant to the
2017 Stock Option Plan. These options will expire on 25 August 2030 inclusive. As of
31 December 2020, none of these options has been exercised, cancelled or lapsed.
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EMPLOYEE SHARE AWARD SCHEME

An award scheme for the purpose of incentivising the management of the Group
(the “Employee Share Award Scheme”) has been adopted by certain Shareholders
(namely, Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng)
on 25 October 2010 (the “Adoption Date”). Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited, Dr.
Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng, as settlors (the “Settlors”) of a trust, has
reserved and set aside a total of 33,750,000 shares of the Company (the “Plenty
Gold Shares”) for the Employee Share Award Scheme. On 25 January 2013, MSPEA
Pharma Holdings B.V. contributed an additional 3,750,000 shares of the Company
(together with the Plenty Gold Shares, the “Reserve Shares”) to the Employee Share
Award Scheme. Trustee Co (a private trust company established in the British Virgin
Islands and wholly-owned by Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited) has been appointed as
the trustee (the “Scheme Trustee”) to hold the Reserve Shares under the Employee
Share Award Scheme, and the Scheme Trustee will, upon receiving instructions
from the Remuneration Committee, award to selected management personnel and
employees of the Group (excluding Directors) (a “Grantee”) the rights to acquire
the Reserve Shares (“Awards”) at a price to be determined by the Remuneration
Committee.

The Employee Share Award Scheme involves granting of the existing shares of
the Company and no new shares will be issued by the Company pursuant to this
arrangement. The Reserve Shares will not be counted towards the public float
as Grantees of Awards will be selected management personnel of the Group
(excluding Directors) and the Settlors are connected persons. All related award
schemes (including this Employee Share Award Scheme) will not in aggregate exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company. The Remuneration Committee
shall determine which employee will be granted the Awards, and Awards may be
granted at any time during a period of three years commencing from the Adoption
Date. Subject to satisfying certain terms and conditions for exercise of the Awards,
including certain vesting conditions and performance targets (if any), a Grantee may
exercise any portion of his or her Award accepted by him/her at any time before
the deadline for exercising the Award as stated in the offer letter from the Scheme

Trustee to such employee.

On 27 September 2013, 234 employees of the Group were granted Awards entitling
them to acquire an aggregate of 19,750,000 shares of the Company from the Trustee
Co at an exercise price of HKD3.19 per share. On 21 October 2013, 6 employees of
the Group were granted Awards entitling them to acquire an aggregate of 2,050,000
shares of the Company from the Trustee Co at an exercise price of HKDO0.70
per share. Subject to certain vesting conditions and the satisfaction of certain
performance targets (if any), such Awards shall be exercisable over a period of five
years commencing from the date on which the Awards were granted.
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On 28 June 2016, 234 employees of the Group (the “Selected Participants”) were
granted new Awards (“New Awards”) entitling them to acquire an aggregate
of 31,448,172 ordinary shares of par value HKD0.01 each of the Company at an
exercise price of HKD1.57 per share on the condition that the Selected Participants
will surrender the existing Awards. Subject to certain vesting conditions and the
satisfaction of certain performance targets (if any), the New Awards shall be
exerciseable over a period of five years commencing from the date on which the New
Awards are granted.

As of 31 December 2020, no employee exercised their Awards granted under the
Employee Share Award Scheme.

As of 31 December 2020, the remaining life of the New Awards was approximately 6
months.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31 December 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2020, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers were 1.99% and 9.64% respectively of the Group’s sales for the
Year.

In 2020, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier and five
largest suppliers were 5.34% and 22.03% respectively of the Group's purchases for
the Year.

Neither the Directors or chief executive or any of their close associates or any
Shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

In October 2010, the Company allotted 1,437,500,000 ordinary shares at a price of
HKD4.60 through international placing and public offer. Save as disclosed below,
the net proceeds raised from such international placing and public offer, being
approximately HKD6,365.7 million (equivalent to approximately RMB5,407.6 million),
are used in accordance with the purposes disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 15 October 2010.

As at 31 December 2020, proceeds from the international placing and public offer of
the Company have been fully utilized.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman)

Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and CEO)
Dr. Zhang Jionglong

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (CFO)

Ms. Chen Yanling

Non-executive Director
Mr. Kim Jin Ha

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Patrick Sun

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Dr. Zhu Xun

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the Section “Biographical
Details of Directors” of this annual report.

Pursuant to bye-law 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Mr. Choi Yiau
Chong and Ms. Chen Yanling shall retire by rotation, and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the 2021 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng being the executive Directors,
renewed their service contracts with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 28 October 2019, subject to termination before expiry by either
party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Each of
Dr. Che and Dr. Guo will receive an annual salary (including any director’s fees) of
RMB10,000,000 and RMB6,000,000 respectively (such annual salary is subject to
annual review by the Board and the Remuneration Committee) and a discretionary
bonus as may be decided by the Board and the Remuneration Committee at their
discretion, having regard to the performance of the relevant executive Director.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong has entered into service contracts with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 20 April 2021, subject to termination before expiry
by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Dr.
Zhang currently receive an annual salary (including director’s fee) of HKD1,000,000.
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Mr. Choi Yiau Chong has entered into service contracts with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 26 March 2021, subject to termination before expiry
by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Mr.
Choi will receive an annual salary (including director’s fee) of HKD3,600,000.

Ms. Chen Yanling has entered into service contracts with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 20 April 2021, subject to termination before expiry
by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Ms.
Chen currently receive an annual salary (including director’s fee) of HKD1,300,000.

Each of the executive Directors shall abstain from voting, and not be counted in the
quorum, in respect of any resolution of the Board approving the determination of the
salary, bonus and other benefits payable to him/her.

Mr. Kim Jin Ha, being the non-executive Director, renewed his letter of appointment
with the Company, for a term of one year commencing from 8 December 2020. The

non-executive Director will not receive any remuneration from the Company.

Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun, being the independent
non-executive Directors, renewed their respective letters of appointment with the
Company for a term of one year, commencing from 27 October 2020, 4 September
2020 and 20 February 2021 respectively. The director’s fee for the year end 31
December 2020 for Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun are
HKD412,000, HKD412,000 and RMB280,000 respectively.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors standing for re-election
at the 2021 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than the
statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS,
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

During the Year, no Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) are considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group. Furthermore,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in Note 40 to Financial Statements. None of these
transactions constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has not conducted any other
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction (as defined under the
Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules.

1. Sale and Purchase Agreement with CFS Development
Holding Limited (“CFS Development”) and Weicheng
Investment Holding Limited (“Weicheng Investment”)

On 3 May 2020, Sun Moral International (HK) Limited (“Sun Moral”) and CFS
Development entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement A, pursuant to
which Sun Moral has conditionally agreed to sell and CFS Development has
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of Chonghui
Investment Limited, and Sun Moral has conditionally agreed to assign and
CFS Development has conditionally agreed to accept the assignment of the
Shareholder’s Loan, at an aggregate consideration of RMB289.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$317.1 million) in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Sale and Purchase Agreement A. On 3 May 2020, Sun
Moral and Weicheng Investment entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement
B, pursuant to which Sun Moral has conditionally agreed to sell and Weicheng
Investment has conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital
of Tengwei Investment Limited at an aggregate consideration of RMB136.2
million (equivalent to approximately HK$149.4 million) in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Sale and Purchase Agreement B (collectively the
“Disposal”).
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As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the Disposal exceeds
5% but is less than 25%, the Disposal constitutes a discloseable transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. As CFS Development is a company established under a trust the settlor
of which is Dr. Che Fengsheng (“Dr. Che"”), CFS Development is an associate
of Dr. Che. As Weicheng Investment is a company established under a trust
the settlor of which is Dr. Guo, Weicheng Investment is an associate of Dr.
Guo Weicheng (“Dr. Guo”). As at 3 May 2020, each of Dr. Che and Dr. Guo
is deemed to be indirectly interested in 62.64% of the issued share capital
of the Company and is therefore a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Dr. Che is an executive Director and chairman of the Company, and Dr. Guo
is an executive Director, deputy chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. As such, each of CFS Development and Weicheng Investment is
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and therefore
the Disposal also constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratio is
more than 5%.

The Directors of the Company consider that it is in the interest of the Group
to dispose of the Target Group for the following reasons: (i) Recent regulatory
changes in the PRC pharmaceutical industry led to considerable changes in
the industry landscape. For instance, the promulgation of the National Catalog
of the First Batch of Drugs under Close Monitoring of Rational Drug Use (for
Chemical Medicines and Biological Products) {(F—#tBIREZHELIZAEM
R R BB (LB A RLR)) ) in July 2019 brought an impact on
prescription and procurement patterns. In light of these changes, the Group
intends to define its business positioning in a clearer way, by streamlining
the core business of the Group and focusing resources into the strategic
development of the Group’s core business. (i) Some companies under the
Target Group are currently in an early stage of development. As disclosed in
the section headed “Information on the Target Group”, most of them are
currently loss making. The Company is of the view that these members of the
Target Group would require further injection of substantial financial resources
for an extended period of time before they could evolve into commercially
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viable business operations. Some of the companies under the Target Group
are also affected by the regulatory changes in the PRC pharmaceutical industry
and the resulting changes in the industry landscape, which add uncertainty to
their respective developments. (iii) There are also companies under the Target
Group which the Group does not have controlling interest. While some of them
are profit making, the Company is of the view that the businesses of these
members of the Target Group demonstrate relatively low synergy with the
core business activities of the Group. (iv) Since the companies under the Target
Group are engaged in non-core business activities of the Group and do not
complement the further development of the Group as a whole, the Disposal
would enable the Group to re-allocate the management and financial resources
to strengthen the operation and financial position of the Group.

Note

Target Group:

. FEIEEEAMRAE (Chonghui Investment Management Limited*)

. CS Sciences Limited

. SFREZLERBABMR AT (Hainan Maifu Nutrition Technology Co., Ltd.*)
. b RETFHEER TG R & T2 5] (Beijing Stemexcel Technology Co., Ltd.*)
. FE 2 RHE AR QA (Xi'an Tengyun Network Technology Co., Ltd.*)
. TTEZ T AW EITAR A F (Jiangsu Antai Biotechnology Co., Ltd.*)

. 3R BIEEERHR AR A F (Hainan Tengwei Health Technology Co., Ltd.*)
. BB A YRR D BBR A A (Shanghai LIDE Biotech Co., Ltd.*)

. BREVEEZERTREEXREARCEERER)  (Fujian Pingtan  Huaxing

Kangping Pharmaceutical Industry Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)*)

. EMEFEEEE(FE)IREEEAMAA  (Huaxing Kangping Pharmaceutical
Industry (Pingtan) Investment Management Co., Ltd.*)

. AT ZEEEBRAT] (Zhejiang Zhida Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*)

. FYIES BB B MR A (Shenzhen Henghe Internet Technology Co., Ltd.*)
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Subscription by Investment Funds Under CMG-
SDIC Capital Co., Ltd. In Xuanzhu (Shijiazhuang)
Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

On 21 August 2020, the Investors from the State Development and
Investment Corporation have conditionally agreed to subscribe an aggregate
of 18.60% equity interest (on a fully diluted basis) in Xuanzhu (Shijiazhuang)
Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, at an aggregate Consideration of RMB800 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$897.2 million).

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, Jingjinji Industry Synergistic
Development Investment Fund (Limited Partnership)* (FUEZE ¥R ER
BEES(BRAER) and Xianjin Manufacture Industry Investment Fund Second
Phase (Limited Partnership)* (FLHEREEEREES —H(BRAE) have
conditionally agreed to subscribe and the Target Company has conditionally
agreed to issue RMB197,142,857.14 and RMB65,714,285.72 registered capital
of the Target Company at the considerations of RMB600 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$672.9 million) and RMB200 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$224.3 million), respectively.

It is intended that prior to the Completion and stipulated as a condition
precedent under the Subscription Agreement that, Xuanzhu Hong Kong
will transfer RMB79,695,000 registered capital of the Target Company,
representing 6.93% equity interest, to the Employee Incentive Platforms and
certain specified individual employees of the Target Group Companies at a
consideration of RMB125,433,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$140.7
million) so as to set up the Employee Incentive Scheme. Upon completion of
the Employee Incentive Scheme Transfer, the equity interest of the Target
Company will be held as to 93.07% and 6.93% by Xuanzhu Hong Kong and
the Employee Incentive Scheme, respectively.

Following the Completion and completion of the Employee Incentive Scheme
Transfer, the Company’s indirect equity interest in the Target Company will
be diluted from 100% to approximately 75.76%, therefore, the Employee
Incentive Scheme Transfer and the Subscription will constitute deemed
disposals of the Company under Rule 14.29 of the Listing Rules. Furthermore,
pursuant to Rule 14.22 of the Listing Rules, the Employee Incentive Scheme
Transfer and the Subscription will be aggregated as these transactions involve
the dealing in equity interests in the Target Company and will be completed

within a 12-month period.
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Note
Target Company:

Xuanzhu (Shijiazhuang) Biopharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd.* (#F47T(f X ) EMFRHE A
[ /A7) (formerly known as Xuanzhu (Hainan) Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (SF/7(/559)%
ERE AR ARF))

Sale and Purchase Agreement with a limited partnership
in PRC

On 13 November 2020, Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (3t RPQIRE
ZHPR/AR]) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Tianjin Huierjin
Biopharmaceutical Technology Partnership (KEEREAMBEEREAE
&%) (“Tianjin Huierjin”) entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement
to purchase 8.00% of the issued share capital of Jilin Huisheng Biological
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Huisheng”) at a consideration of RMB96.0
million.

Dr. Che is an executive Director and the chairman of the Company. As at 13
November 2020, Dr. Che is deemed to be indirectly interested in 63.50%
of the issued share capital of the Company and is therefore a controlling
shareholder of the Company. As the Tianjin Huierjin is indirectly owned as to
99.99% by Dr. Che, the Tianjin Huierjin therefore is an associate of Dr. Che.
As such, the Tianjin Huierjin is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and therefore the Disposal constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the highest applicable
percentage ratio in respect of the Disposal exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%.

As the Disposal and the Previous Disposal were transactions entered into with
Dr. Che and/or his associates within a 12-month period, the Disposal and the
Previous Disposal shall be aggregated as a series of transaction of the Company
pursuant to Rule 14.22 of the Listing Rules. The Disposal and the Previous
Disposal (in aggregate) did not trigger a higher classification than a discloseable
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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The cash from the Disposal can strengthen the research and investment
capacity of the Company. In addition, all of the Jilin Huisheng shares sold will
be for the purpose of motivating employees and senior management (including
Dr. Che) through ownership in Jilin Huisheng and share the success. In light of
above, the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors but
excluding Dr. Che, Dr. Guo and Dr. Zhang who has abstained from voting in

?f%ﬂé%ﬁt)&tﬂ’i$lﬁﬁ‘3§$ R R
EREMEE BERKREL)R
REEWH &ELET?%&}ETTE’J&%%IE
ERAFEERS  BKEFBEEGEARB
EBATARE IHFAARBRKER

BREAMa -

respect of the board resolution proposed to approve the Disposal) are of the
view that the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Disposal contemplated
thereunder have been negotiated on an arm’s length basis, agreed on normal
commercial terms, and are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

* EHBF *  For identification purposes only

BEREHN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

BRAFRBTIN - FA - AR SE E @M Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year, no contract of significance
BRa g EmEA RN E sk E A MK B QA kA to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries has been entered into between the
NA R IERR AR R g H AR M B A AR L E K Company, or any of its subsidiaries nor the Company’s controlling shareholders or any
a8 o of its subsidiaries during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
the following interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

(i) Directors’ interests in Shares

RESANE DL
Approximate
EEHSR EntE/ 547 BHOEE percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding
BEE fe B ey & 6,010,760,699% (17 &) 63.50% (41 &)
Dr. Che Fengsheng 800,000 (47 &) 7,847,6611 X&) 0.08% (X&)
Interest of Spouse 6,010,760,699 Shares (L) 63.50% (L)
800,000 Shares (L) 7,847,661 Shares (S) 0.08% (S)

ZEEA

3,379,917,2258% (¥ &)

Trustee

3,379,917,225 Shares (L)

— BT AL (1)
2,619,095,8138& (47 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 1)
2,619,095,813 Shares (L)

H b i 25 (FT3E2)
10,947,661 0% (1¥ &)

7,847,661 1% (%

¢A)

Other interest (Note 2)
10,947,661 Shares (L)
7,847,661 Shares (S)
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REMABE DL
Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding

R B
Dr. Guo Weicheng

RAMAE
Dr. Zhang Jionglong

BB
Choi Yiau Chong

BHMEE/ S5 RHHBE
Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares
EHEARA 6,010,760,699 (47 &)
11,350,0008% (47 &) 6,010,760,699 Shares (L)

Beneficial owner
11,350,000 Shares (L)

AFEIEANMITEENBERNONEGES
DAVIUN

1,580,884,399% (41 &)

Founder of a discretionary trust who can influence
how the trustee exercises his discretion
1,580,884,399 Shares (L)

—HITE AL (K FE3)
4,418,526,300% (4F &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 3)
4,418,526,300 Shares (L)

Fic 15 ) = 6,010,760,6990% (1¥ &)
59,0008 (7 &) 6,010,760,699 Shares (L)

Interest of Spouse
59,000 Shares (L)

AEETTAMMITEENBERENPEET
DAVIUN

255,582,886/ ({7 &)

Founder of a discretionary trust who can influence
how the trustee exercises his discretion
255,582,886 Shares (L)

—HATE AL (F3E4)
5,556,178,813[% (17 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 4)
5,556,178,813 Shares (L)

X aE s (fEs)
198,940,000% (47 &)
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 5)
198,940,000 Shares (L)

BEREBA 6,000,0000% (47 &)
6,000,0000% (47 &) 6,000,000 Shares (L)

Beneficial owner
6,000,000 Shares (L)

63.50% (¥ &)
63.50% (L)

63.50% (47 &)
63.50% (L)

0.06% (#F &)
0.06% (L)
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EEpS

Name of Director

RN E/ 50

Nature of Interest/Capacity

R EE

Total Number of Shares

BRESOEDE
Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding

PR 2% BEmBEA A

Chen Yanling 4,000,000/ (47 &)
Beneficial owner
4,000,000 Shares (L)

FEE EmEAA

Patrick Sun 3,000,0005% (47 &)
Beneficial owner
3,000,000 Shares (L)

RS BAHE A

Tsang Wah Kwong

3,000,000 (#7 &)
Beneficial owner
3,000,000 Shares (L)

KR BERBEAA

Zhu Xun 3,000,000 (#7 &)
Beneficial owner
3,000,000 Shares (L)

B & -

PO 3R

REEZRHE G F317 %318
i BESABERR/NDBIBBLE
% B8 A& - Successmax  Global Holdings
Limited ~ Smart Top Overseas Limited *
Victory Faith International Limited - 5&
fBEE 4 - Keen Mate Limited Mingyao
Capital LimitedR ZEZ2 X £ H G &
= S AR A B &= 89 329,736,000
f% - 1,262,498,399 g © 175,012,000
B% - 377,267,528 f% -~ 59,000 A& -
198,940,000 f% - 255,582,886 fx K
20,000,000 B 0 #E A #E 21 ©

BREBAEE AR E EShuan
Management (PTC) Limited/s £ 5 52 A
MBERTFTAZ—  BMEKRARIT
AR B HF A 10,947,661 & A% 19 (47
&) A i R 7,847,661 B IR 15
FRBKRE ©

Notes:

4,000,0008% (#F2&)
4,000,000 Shares (L)

3,000,0000% (47 &)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

3,000,0000% (47 &)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

3,000,0000% (47 &)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

0.04% (¥ #&)
0.04% (L)

0.03% (¥ &)
0.03% (L)

0.03% (¥ &)
0.03% (L)

0.03% (4 &)
0.03% (L)

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be
interested in the 329,736,000 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares,
377,267,528 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 198,940,000 Shares, 255,582,886 Shares
and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Guo Weicheng, Successmax Global Holdings
Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Dr. Zhang
Jionglong, Keen Mate Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui,
respectively.

Since Dr. Che Fengsheng is one of the settlors of the trust for which Sihuan
Management (PTC) Limited is a trustee, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be
interest in the long position of (10,947,661 Shares) and the short position of
(7,847,661 Shares) held by Sihuan Management (PTC) Limited.
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B WREBEEFFRBE KO FE37R318
R BEABERRBSNDAAE
5 7+ £ - Network Victory Limited *
Proper Process International Limited *
Smart Top Overseas Limited - Victory
Faith International Limited - Keen Mate
Limited ~ Mingyao Capital Limited
RMEBERATFBRLAEBEERER
HWAR RYER 11,747,661 % -
497,448,000 % - 2,882,469,225 f% -
175,012,000 f& - 377,267,528 kX -
198,940,000 f% - 255,582,886 f%
59,000 f% 20,000,000 f% & 5 F # &
s e

4 RIEFEHF L EERDIE317%3181% » 5k
MEBEWEARDRBESHEE
P4 58 4~ Network Victory Limited
Proper Process International Limited *
Smart Top Overseas Limited -~ Victory Faith
International Limited ~ Successmax Global
Holdings  Limited } % 58 25 %t 4 ¥ 5 1%
= AR R R A R 11,747,661
A% ~ 329,736,000 A% - 497,448,000 A% -
2,882,469,225 f% - 175,012,000 f% -
377,267,528 H% - 1,262,498,399 Mz K
20,000,0000% i £ o B & #E 7

(5) 3R /i 52 28 £ AKeen Mate Limited &
BRITRANE=EEBA At
3R M7 BE B8 AE iR AR B MKeen  Mate
Limited +5# 198,940,000 X i% 17 =
BiEm o

6) FEILIRKREZNZEROHNEFE
MFFISIBRREERZZERM K%

)'E °

BEXPREEIN  BEF TRITHRARR
1 % 2 b B8 A LA 70 AR % R o EL AE AT AR B
BOEEREFRBEGIIEXVED 2 Bt -
HERD REFTEAREEZ LB ED
EXVALET R8N AAM G RN A B KX 2
Bad kR (BRBREEFANBEGRI AR
GEXERARREERE 2 RBIAR) - &
ALSEREE %&Hﬁfﬂ* BIE3521RAFE
ZELMz DA R  HRIBEZEETERIA
%D@ﬁ@ﬂ&ﬂﬁﬁxﬁﬁZ%?&ikmg g

EETWE
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

(3) Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Guo Weicheng is deemed to be
interested in the 11,747,661 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares,
175,012,000 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 198,940,000 Shares, 255,582,886
Shares, 59,000 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Network
Victory Limited, Proper Process International Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited,
Victory Faith International Limited, Keen Mate Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited, Dr.
Zhang Jionglong and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

(4) Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Zhang lJionglong is deemed to be
interested in 11,747,661 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares,
2,882,469,225 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 1,262,498,399
Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng,
Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International Limited, Smart Top Overseas
Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited
and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

(5) Dr. Zhang Jionglong is the beneficial owner of 100% of the issued share capital of
Keen Mate Limited. As such, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is deemed to be interested in the
198,940,000 Shares held by Keen Mate Limited.

(6) The letter “L" denotes the Director’s long position in such Shares and the letter “S”
denotes the Director’s short position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executive and their associates
had any interests or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he/she/it was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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RAFE NI R AR EEE 7 -

EEFNRBEMRX

REBEARBAA  BUEBERARAEMA
EARARFMNEERBNESHE &
FRTHEREENBREARTIRERESSDN
BUSERPEMEL  FENERKTE
ROBERARZ LA BRARIHNHAEF
WA B WEEKCBERMX  AJER
ReEREZEMBET  ERBERE TR
ESEMERATBEFRTEHEBOEER -

ERBAEXHAENEERRE  UAREFHE
RAEBMELENEERRERHERME -

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company did not grant any rights to any Directors, chief
executive or their respective spouse or children under 18 to acquire beneficial
interests by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company,
and none of the above persons have exercised the said rights during the Year.
The Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries were not a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's charitable donations during the
year amounted to RMB2,927,000 (2019: nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Employee Share Award Scheme as disclosed above, the Company did
not enter into any equity-linked agreement during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Company’s bye-laws, every Director or other officers of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts, provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of the said

persons.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Directors
for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the following Shareholders, other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, had interests of 5% or more
(including short positions) in the issued share capital, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company:

BRESAEDE
Approximate
REE percentage of

Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding

i

wE

el

SR S (MED 6,010,760,6990% (17 &) 63.50% (¥ &)

Mr. Meng Xianhui 175,012,0000% (#7 &) 6,010,760,699 shares (L) 63.50% (L)
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1)
175,012,000 shares (L)

B 4B 57 2
ﬂ?f%lu

BX 3L A

AMATEERBEEORERES

377,267,528/ ({1 &)
Founder of a discretionary trust who can influence

how the trustee exercises his discretion
377,267,528 shares (L)

—BIT# AL (M5E2)
5,438,481,1718% (41 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 2)
5,438,481,171 shares (L)

Proper Process International Limited EZ#EA A

6,010,760,699 (¥ &) 63.50% (4 &)

2,882,469,225[% (4F &) 6,010,760,699 Shares (L) 63.50% (L)

Beneficial owner

2,882,469,225 shares (L)

— BT AL (K5E3)
3,128,291,474& ({1 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 3)
3,128,291,474 shares (L)
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Total Number of Shares

BRESOEIE
Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding

EEpR o ea=vEg)
Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity
Network Victory Limited BEmlEA A

497,448,0000% (47 &)
Beneficial owner
497,448,000 shares (L)

— BT AL (FF5E4)
5,513,312,6990% (47 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 4)
5,513,312,699 shares (L)

Successmax Global Holdings Limited Ez5# B A
1,262,498,399/% (47 &)
Beneficial owner
1,262,498,399 shares (L)

—EATE) A T (FIEES)
4,748,262,300/% ({1 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 5)
4,748,262,300 shares (L)

Victory Faith International Limited BEmBEB A
377,267,528/ ({1 &)
Beneficial owner
377,267,528 shares (L)

—BAiTE AL (FisEe)
5,633,493,1718% (47 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 6)
5,633,493,171 shares (L)

Smart Top Overseas Limited BEmlEAA
175,012,000 ({7 &)
Beneficial owner
175,012,000 shares (L)

—BITBHAL (T

5,835,748,6990% (4F &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 7)
5,835,748,699 shares (L)
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6,010,760,699 (¥ &)
6,010,760,699 Shares (L)

6,010,760,699 (¥ &)
6,010,760,699 Shares (L)

6,010,760,699 (17 &)
6,010,760,699 Shares (L)

6,010,760,699 (¥ &)
6,010,760,699 Shares (L)

63.50% (¥ &)
63.50% (L)

63.50% (¥ &)
63.50% (L)

63.50% (¥ &)
63.50% (L)

63.50% (¥ &)
63.50% (L)
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Nature of Interest/Capacity
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R EE

Total Number of Shares

REMABE DL
Approximate
percentage of
Shareholding

Mingyao Capital Limited

Keen Mate Limited

UBS Trustee (Cayman) Ltd.

UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd.

B3t -

EmEE A
255,582,886k (41 &)
Beneficial owner
255,582,886 shares (L)

— BT AL (FF5E8)
5,755,177,8130% (47 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 8)
5,755,177,813 shares (L)

BERlAA
198,940,000% (4 &)
Beneficial owner
198,940,000 shares (L)

—HAITE A T (FzE9)
5,811,820,6990% (47 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 9)
5,811,820,699 shares (L)

ZiEA
6,010,760,699% (17 &)
Trustee
6,010,760,699 shares (L)

ZEEA
6,010,760,699% (17 &)
Trustee
6,010,760,699 shares (L)

Notes:

6,010,760,699 (¥ &)
6,010,760,699 Shares (L)

6,010,760,699 (¥ &)
6,010,760,699 Shares (L)

6,010,760,699 (17 &)
6,010,760,699 Shares (L)

6,010,760,699 (11 &)
6,010,760,699 Shares (L)

63.50% (¥ &)
63.50% (L)

63.50% (47 &)
63.50% (L)

63.50% (¥ &)
63.50% (L)

63.50% (4F &)
63.50% (L)

(1) & E 2 % & BSmart Top Overseas Limited % (1) Mr. Meng Xianhui is the beneficial owner of 100% of the issued share capital of Smart

EETRANEREEA At  2FEX
4 4R A K Smart Top Overseas Limited 355

KA A &) 175,012,0000% B 15 A HE 25 -

Top Overseas Limited. As such, Mr. Meng Xianhui is deemed to be interested in the
175,012,000 Shares held by Smart Top Overseas Limited.
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RIBEES R E &G E317 R3181&RE -
AEBEERBERRESARE  ENE
4 - 5RMMBE % & - Proper Process International
Limited » Network Victory Limited »
Successmax Global Holdings Limited * Keen
Mate Limited 2Mingyao Capital Limiteds
Bl ¥ A 11,747,661 #% - 329,736,000 A% -
59,000 fi% - 2,882,469,225 & - 497,448,000
f% ~1,262,498,399 H% - 198,940,000 A% M
255,582,886 A% Ax 17 HE B 5w o

RIEZEH R ERD 5317 R318IERTE
Proper Process International Limited 1 1% & 1A 8 )%
FHEE A& - SBAEINEE A - RABEE & - Network
Victory Limited  Successmax Global Holdings
Limited ~ Smart Top Overseas Limited * Victory
Faith  International Limited + Keen Mate Limited
* Mingyao Capital Limited 2 # % 2 % 4 9 3l
B 11,747,661 i% ~ 329,736,000 % - 59,000 f% -
497,448,000% ~ 1,262,498 399/% - 175,012,0004% -
377,267,528 % ~ 198,940,000 % * 255,582,886 f%
20,000,0008% 17 5 #E 2

RIBEFES KB ERDIE7 R38R TE -
Network Victory Limited# 18 & K = F
B B MR A - oK MW BE B8 4 - Proper
Process International Limited * Successmax
Global Holdings Limited * Smart Top Overseas
Limited - Victory Faith International Limited -
Keen Mate Limited * Mingyao Capital Limited
K@ FBE & EDRIFEE11,7476618% + 329736000
1% ~ 59,000 % - 2,882,469, 2250% 1,262,498 399% -
175,012,000 A% * 377,267,528 H% - 198940000 f% -
255,582,8860% £ 20,000,000 % %15 7 # A #E 2

RIEFEF R E GO E317 R318IKHRTE -
Successmax Global Holdings Limited # %% &
RESAEE BHEBEE RMWESR
A~ Network Victory Limited - Proper Process
International Limited ~ Smart Top Overseas
Limited * Victory Faith International Limited -
Keen Mate Limited ~ Mingyao Capital Limited 5
BBk A S RIF 1174766118 + 329,736,000
% ~ 59,000 f% - 497,448,000 % - 2,882,469,225 % -
175,012,000 f% « 377,267,528 A% + 198,940,000 A% -
255,582,886/4% % 20,000,0000% B 15 #E A #E 2 o

BB 5 R B E 55155317 R385 T » Vicory
Faith International Limited 15 #% /3 R B FHE A& - 20
B A - RAWBEEEE A+ Network Victory Limited
Proper Process International Limited * Successmax
Global Holdings Limited *Smart Top Overseas Limited
Keen Mate Limited * Mingyao Capital Limited}2
#HEBE L E D BIFEA 11,747,661 % - 329,736,000
% ~ 59,000 A% - 497448000 f% - 2,882,469,225 A% -
1,262,498,399 % + 175,012,000 A% - 198,940,000 A% -
255,582,88601% £2 20,000,000 B {7 FH 5 2 ©

(6)

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Mr. Meng Xianhui is deemed to be interested
in 11,747,661 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares,
497,448,000 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 198,940,000 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares
held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Dr. Zhang lionglong, Proper Process
International Limited, Network Victory Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Keen
Mate Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.

Under section 317 and 318 of the SFO, Proper Process International Limited is deemed
to be interested in 11,747,661 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000
Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Network Victory Limited, Successmax Global Holdings
Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Keen Mate
Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Under section 317 and 318 of the SFO, Network Victory Limited is deemed to be
interested in 11,747,661 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225
Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Proper Process International Limited, Successmax Global
Holdings Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Keen
Mate Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Under section 317 and 318 of the SFO, Successmax Global Holdings Limited is deemed
to be interested in 11,747,661 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000
Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Keen Mate
Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Under section 317 and 318 of the SFO, Victory Faith International Limited is deemed to
be interested in 11,747,661 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000
Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Keen Mate
Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.
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7 REFESRBEEGIFEINTRIISEMTE - Smart
Top Overseas Limited #4% AR EIS A4 « Z4
REEA - FRIMBEEE A - Network Victory Limited
Proper Process International Limited * Successmax
Global Holdings Limited - Victory Faith International
Limited * Keen Mate Limited * Mingyao Capital
Limited & % 2 % £ 9 5 % B 11,747,661
& ~ 329,736,000 A% - 59,000 & - 497,448,000
f% - 2,882,469,225 f% - 1,262,498,399 % -
377,267,528 1% ~ 198,940,000 fix + 255,582,886 [iX
%220,000,0008% A& {7 o #E A #e 7 -

® WREFHFRBEKRNEINTRIBIERE -
Mingyao Capital Limited # 1% % 74 B 7+ 88

20 4 9 B A - SR AT BE B A - Network  Victory
Limited - Proper Process International Limited -
Successmax ~ Global  Holdings  Limited ~ Smart
Top Overseas Limited * Keen Mate Limited -
Victory Faith International Limited & # 3 2 /¢

4 5 B ¥ B 11,747,661 B - 329,736,000 f% -
59,000 f% - 497,448,000 f% - 2,882,469,225 f% -
1,262,498,399 % ~ 175,012,000 % ~ 198,940,000
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Under section 317 and 318 of the SFO, Smart Top Overseas Limited is deemed to be
interested in 11,747,661 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000
Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Keen
Mate Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Under section 317 and 318 of the SFO, Mingyao Capital Limited is deemed to be
interested in 11,747,661 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000
Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 377,267,528 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Keen Mate
Limited, Victory Faith International Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Under section 317 and 318 of the SFO, Keen Mate Limited is deemed to be interested
in 11,747,661 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares,
2,882,469,225 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares,
255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Smart
Top Overseas Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in such Shares and the letter “S”
denotes the shareholder’s short position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, according to the records in the register required to be kept

by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, no other parties had an interest or

a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company recorded under
section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance

practices. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the

Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 54 to 79 of this

annual report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share capital were
held by members of the public as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of
this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, the Group has no other significant

events after the reporting period up to the date of this annual report.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The audit committee was satisfied with Ernst & Young'’s work, its independence, and
its objectivity, and therefore recommended the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
(which has indicated its willingness to continue in office) as the Group’s external
auditor for 2021 for Shareholders’ approval at the 2021 AGM.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 were audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in the auditor of the
Company in the preceding three years.

By Order of the Board
Dr. Che Fengsheng

Chairman of the Board

23 March 2021
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Ernst & Young RKE BT Tel E5E: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower EBREBREE1SE Fax {85 +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue RERE 21 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 116 to 284, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
("ISAs”) issued by the IASB. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matter

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description

of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

EMNERNMEERREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAAE B B A

Capitalisation of development costs

R-ZZ-Z2F+-R=+—H EBEEERRENBEEERNELR
ERBERAD /R ARKE302EBE T < BN 512.10(a) [ # 78 K B % | PR
MmM—UREERE  REERDNRIXTUAER - EEESE B
SETEERNBRER FTEEREREEE M LA -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capitalised development costs
amounting to approximately RMB302 million for the development
of new pharmaceutical products. The expenditure on development
activities was capitalised when all the criteria mentioned in Note
2.10(a)
management estimation and judgment were required in determining

“Research and development” were satisfied. Significant

whether the Group met the capitalisation criteria.

EHABEFL2HEAMBmRMT2.100) 7 K] - M4
[EACHEBERARTI0MBEEE] -

Please refer to Note 2.10(a) “Research and development”, Note 4(f)
“Capitalisation of development costs” and Note 10 “Intangible assets” to

the consolidated financial statements for related disclosure.

FEHh EEEMAEAEENABRKR S ERNE
BRHEN  BEELEEAREHREERSE  ARE
BEITEEAILLRTEEIEE R IEEN A -

We assessed the compliance of capitalisation criteria used
by the Group with ISA 38, obtained and examined trial
readouts and regulatory announcements, and evaluated
the management judgment on the satisfaction of criteria
through comparison to industry practice.

EEESY BEEBANNEAREBHLMRIENT R BT
EhEBZRENMEBASES  TESENIMEHE LK
g AT AT MRS o

We obtained an understanding of, assessed and tested
the relevant internal controls over the Group’s internal
governance and approval process and examined the internal
commercial and technical feasibility reports.

EHHE

EREEHEAMAERANBEERSRR -

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures of
capitalisation of development costs.
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Key audit matter

Key audit matters (continued)

EMNELRNAEERARERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

YE BB REEHRE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

RZTZZE+_A=+—H  EBEXEHEAEVE BELR
B HARME303EEL - BETERCAFHEBEN —RINEAS
EAETEERMNEBERBVBRATRITETE X -

The Group had significant property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB3,053 million as at 31 December 2020. A series
of major policies related to the in-depth reform of the pharmaceutical
industry have created uncertainty in the financial performance of its
main products in general.

At - EEE#HMNZEREER  TRBBRRFBLREBNIRER
BEFEFEZETREIR - BRREIREFRERASPREX
FIE - B EEHESNERMENEEER -

Accordingly, the management identified impairment indicators and
performed impairment test based on the value in use calculation using
discounted cash flow projections. This matter was significant to our
audit because the process of impairment testing was complex and
involved significant judgements.

FEBRBRR2HK

B EHMRM 28 ME - BFE RRE LI

El -WaZadm% - BmEERRERE]RHE(ME  BE LR
-
Please refer to Note 2.8 “Property, plant and equipment and

plant and
to the

depreciation”, Note 4(d)
and Note 6
consolidated financial statements for related disclosures.

“Impairment of property,

equipment” “Property, plant and equipment”

EEENBEEESRL2EBHESFTERED T A
BWIE  CHEBAXRLREHIERE -

We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluation of the methodologies used in the impairment
analysis, in particular discount rate and long-term growth
rate.

EERBERAINEZREEFEMNBERRERER
BERABIRFFEARRBARELEERANBRERE
TEOR -

We evaluated the key assumptions and the forecasts used
with respect to future revenues and operating results by
comparing the forecasts with the historical performance of
the respective CGUs and the business development plan.

A AT

5N BEEBERGAEUMBREITEYE BELR
BRENKESERR

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
concerning impairment of property, plant and equipment in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

Key audit matters (continued)

EMNELRNAEERARERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of intangible assets

RZBZZF+-_A=+—H  BEEENETHEIXNARETSH
ERREIIOAARBICEETRAREIEET - BEHER
PREAMEHERANSBEENNFAINEARRRERERRE
ETENRGEMERBEBELRENG LFEHIRERNEEE
#‘ B R fhat MRS R O RRERFH  FERRMERE -
ZERBECTREERELERHRE L -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had deferred development costs
and product development in progress amounting to approximately
RMB195 million and RMB302 million,
made impairment assessment based on estimated future cash flows of

respectively. The management

each pharmaceutical patent or license in capitalisation of development
costs and projected product lifecycles experienced in the pharmaceutical
industry. This matter involved significant management judgements and
estimates, such as forecasted revenue growth, future beneficial life,
profit margin and discount rate. Changes in these assumptions might
lead to a change in the impairment results.

EARBEF2HGREVBREWT2I0/ELEE] - MiTd@) BT
FRERANREI LK FI0ELEE] -
Please refer to Note 2.10 "“Intangible assets”, Note 4(a) “Impairment

of deferred development costs” and Note 10 “Intangible assets” to the

consolidated financial statements for related disclosures.

BPEANSEEER B EMFEREITTABNT
o LH R E R ARRERFH

We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluation of the methodologies used in the impairment
analysis, in particular discount rate and future beneficial
life.

BMRENARRREFBEMNAATSOHE RBREE

RBTES T REEENHBERE  HETAEE
B —HFEARAELRAAOEEYE(HATERS) -
FAPT3R B L B R A SR B ST AT HR R AT AR HE ORI RGT M B 1R
B8R -
We checked the key assumptions including the product’s
projected market share, expected selling price and
associated costs to be incurred against industrial analyst
commentaries, consensus forecasts of certain therapeutic
area and benchmark data for comparable companies where
available. We assessed the management’s forecast by
comparison of the actual results and the projections made

in prior periods.

L:l#u:HE ﬂ .E/\T
WEEERRE -

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures of

MBHRRPHBTEEREN

impairment of intangible assets in the consolidated financial
statements.

FHRFHROEMEESR

ERAEFRAHEMANAR - HWERE
BHNERFHROER  ETEESAVBR
REBFOZBMBE

BMEGAVBHERNERL TR EEME
B BT TIHEEREMATANEELR -

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

112 U IR B EE i AR S @ B R A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



THEREFRVEMEER =)

REMEEEMBRENERMS - HAD
RERHEEMEN  HUBET  ZEH
MERNRTEEGEAVBRRIAMEEZLE
BREATHEOBRFEEABBELEUTE
EERERBANBER - ERERMASHITH
THE -HEMBREMBENFEERERR
o BMEREZEER -ERITERMESE
EMHRE -

EERGEEUMBHRRAREN
BEfE

ERAEEFAAERBER S EEES
A8 A0 O B R B TS 4R E R B A AR B B
BERATHBUEZEEAANGEMBRE
THERRREREMBRROBRTFAE
MR RAFRBRME T ERERBRAEANE
WA EHEE -

ERBEEEVMBERERE . BRAEZRER
Bilfh BERERBELENEN  XHEER
BATREEFSELEEHNER  URME
AFEELestER B BELRESF
B EEEBRIFLELE  HHEHM
BEEMERNE -

EREEGWMY BEARNEERTRE B
B EKENUBHREBE -

BB BERGEEMBERRE
RENEE

BMWNEREREa B BRRBERE AT
£ di 70 BREE 3 £ AR 1 28 B A B8 0K 88 AR PR ER
FeRRAE YTHARBEHME RO
BE -BABRB-NAN-—FBRERRES
WKEH BB REL RS - AMEHTE
Hib gk - BT ERAREOATRIM
HiATBERAIEERAE -

ERREBEFKENRE  BTERELR
B EAEAETHERELERNERRAL
TR A RE B IR o SR AR PR 7T BE AR IR R S8R
WRolEE - MiHA BRI RS EH AR
TECREREZSEAMBMERMELN
BOERTE - MBS RBRIA R AEKX -

B % BEM RS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other information included in the Annual Report
(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continueq)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continueq)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2021
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As at 31 December 2020

BR+ZA=+—H
As at 31 December
ZEIEF —E-NF
2020 2019
ks AR®T R ARBF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Vs BEREE Property, plant and equipment 6 3,053,288 2,731,010
LEYHE Investment properties 7 232,173 232,802
EREEE Right-of-use assets 8 787,973 893,555
mHE Goodwill 9 12,312 -
EREE Intangible assets 10 505,621 480,008
FREREAED Investments accounted for
®& using the equity method 13 1,070,387 1,083,858
EBEATFEHABRD Financial assets at fair value
CREE through profit or loss 14 196,153 174,220
HMFERBEE Other non-current assets 15 367,869 338,614
BB IBEE Deferred tax assets 24 269,449 332,222
[REATYEEN Pledged deposits 18/25 144,548 -
EMEBEELTE Total non-current assets 6,639,773 6,266,289
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
T8 Inventories 16 495,889 409,595
BN EMEWERRK Trade and other receivables 17 971,540 630,073
BEAFEFAEBEZD Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 14 332,683 148,336
HERESZEY Cash and cash equivalents 18 4,604,041 5,117,143
MEE E R Total current assets 6,404,153 6,305,147
HWEE TOTAL ASSETS 13,043,926 12,571,436
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R_E-_ZTF+-_A=+—H
As at 31 December 2020

BR+ZA=+—H
As at 31 December
2020 2019
PR AR T AREEF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
R EQUITY
ARBEEA Equity attributable to owners of
EiEERE the Company
% Ax Share capital 19 78,186 78,186
& 19 % (B Share premium 19 4,084,846 4,084,846
E b fE B Other reserves 20 725,222 192,674
1RE8 & F Retained earnings 20 4,302,088 5,250,978
9,190,342 9,606,684
IF 15 R R Non-controlling interests 758,383 335,510
AT Total equity 9,948,725 9,942,194
RBEEF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
BRIETRIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 24 225,688 282,621
FPERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 25 331,173 -
HEBE Lease liabilities 8 2,510 5,892
EHBEE Contract liabilities 23 = 275
EMIERBEE Other non-current liabilities 21 92,744 79,674
ERBBEERE Total non-current liabilities 652,115 368,462
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 R E A AR Trade and other payables 22 1,830,161 1,905,792
FEERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 25 387,930
S ON=E Contract liabilities 23 186,629 326,295
FETFT 15T Income tax payable 22,445 14,033
HEB®E Lease liabilities 8 1,441 4,058
Himeham Other current liabilities 21 14,480 10,602
mE) BB A Total current liabilities 2,443,086 2,260,780
Hwes TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,095,201 2,629,242
EEREERE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13,043,926 12,571,436
FI4F24BE M AL FTHRAEMBRROMEK The notes on pages 124 to 284 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
%)
BHSH SR
Che Fengsheng Guo Weicheng
EF 2
Director Director
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OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOM

BE T _TF+_A=+—HBItFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

OF IFE)ROHT OR LOSS AND

g 3 —T-NF
2020 2019
B 3 AR® T ARBEF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BEREER CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Uz Revenue 26 2,464,226 2,878,318
6 & AR AR Cost of sales 27 (549,777) (588,987)
ER GROSS PROFIT 1,914,449 2,289,331
HiUgA Other income 26 172,560 213,404
Hih iz - F5E Other gains — net 26 249,619 402,177
BIETERM B A R 8 W Gain on derecognition of subsidiaries 39 72,307 -
G Impairment losses on goodwill,
mILEE - intangible assets,
FRAERETENRSE investments accounted for
kW BERREN using the equity method and
BEEE property, plant and equipment 27 = (3,971,503)
88 B Distribution expenses 27 (368,792) (245,384)
THAX Administrative expenses 27 (489,784) (471,567)
WEERAERAT Research and development expenses 27 (729,157) (598,952)
H 4B Other expenses 27 (34,077) (23,731)
meEREF (EE) OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 787,125 (2,406,225)
B HAX Finance expenses (8,217) (4,714)
DIEERAEEETER Share of losses of investments accounted
KEERE for using the equity method 13/32 (13,064) (12,016)
BESEERNBRE ANER/ PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
(BE) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 765,844 (2,422,955)
FT 15 Bt 5 2 Income tax expense 31 (219,040) (290,3898)
BFECEERNEE G/ PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
(BE) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 546,804 (2,713,343)
ERIEREER DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
AL E B Loss for the year from discontinued
FEEIE operations 32 (34,917) (43,968)
FEBA/ (FE) PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 511,887 (2,757,311)
AT AL ES - Attributable to:
PN/NEIEF =N Owners of the Company 473,382 (2,753,332)
FEVE AR M = Non-controlling interests 38,505 (3,979)
511,887 (2,757,311)
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PROFIT OR LOSS AND
PREHENSIVE INCOME
BE-_Z-_ZTFE+_A=Z=+—RBALEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

—EC-EHF —ZET-NF
2020 2019
=2 AR® T ARBEF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FEERA/ (EE) PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 511,887 (2,757,311)
FEHMEZENRE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
MNERBE FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX = -
FEZHEKZE/ TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
§F-0F % (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 511,887 (2,757,311)
AT AL - Attributable to:
iN/NETE? F =N Owners of the Company 473,382 (2,753,332)
FEIE R = Non-controlling interests 38,505 (3,979)
FEZHEKZE/ TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(51| &% (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 511,887 (2,757,311)
AR AR
RMB RMB
EARERERFEA EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
EHER2RY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
(E518) EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
BRERNREERF (EE) Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share 33
FEHM(EE) For profit/(loss) for the year 5.0 cents (29.1)7 cents

FBEEEBNEN (BE)

For profit/(loss) from continuing operations

5.377cents

(28.7)7 cents

F124E24EMM AR ERAFTHRENAK

B -

The notes on pages 124 to 284 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

£ 9 & ANNUAL REPORT 2020 119



n\/ \ T

\/ g
IDI

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE_ZT_ZF+_A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

NI 2PN

Attributable to owners of the Company

BA - ROEE HEeEE ®REEN @ FERERZ ORa
Non-

Share Share Other  Retained Total  controlling Total

capital premium reserves earnings interests equity

Wit ARETT ARBTT ARBTI ARBTI ARBTL AREBTRE ARBTR
Notes ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000

RZZE—NFE—HA—H At1January 2019 78,233 4,093,317 159,631 8,179,232 12,510,413 263,950 12,774,363
FEBE Loss for the year - - - (2,753332) (2,753332) (3,979 (2,757,311)
EERN R E - Employee share award scheme:

-EERBEE — Value of employee services 30 - - 353 - 353 - 353
—NEXRBRE Final 2018 dividend 34 - - - (123,124)  (123,124) - (123,124)
T-NEFHRE Interim 2019 dividend 34 - - - (37,863) (37,863) - (37,863)

= ﬁ IR R Dividends paid to

s, non-controlling shareholders - - - - - (37,818)  (37,818)

HEZHEETE Transfer to PRC statutory

FEe reserve fund 20 - - 13,935 (13,935) - - -

fEE R Repurchase and cancellation of

17 shares 19 (47) (8,471) - - (8,518) - (8,518)

g %‘J v Changes in interests in
i)=Y subsidiaries without change of
téﬁﬁ& control - - 18,755 - 18,755 113357 132,112
RZE-NE At 31 December
+-A=+—H 2019 78,186 4,084,846 192,674 5,250,978 9,606,684 335,510 9,942,194
120 U IR B EE i AR S @ B R A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-F-_FF+-A=T—ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

EREHEEARE
Attributable to owners of the Company

BA&  ROEE HtREE RERF ast FiERER Y Ee

Non-
Share Share Other  Retained Total controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  earnings interests equity

Wi ARBTT ARWTR ARBTR ARWTR ARBTT ARETR ARET:R
Notes ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R-E-EF5-f—H At 1 January 2020 78,186 4,084,846 192,674 5,250,978 9,606,684 335,510 9,942,194
FERA Profit for the year - - - 473382 473382 38505 511,887
EE MR REEE Employee share award scheme:

- EERBEE — Value of employee services 30 - - 23,176 - 23,176 - 23,176
“Z-NEFRERE Final 2019 dividend 34 - - - (123,054) (123,054) - (123,054)
HRRERE Spedial cash dividends 34 = = - (1,287,332) (1,287,332) - (1,287,332)
“E-TFERHRE Interim 2020 dividend 34 - - - (9,466) (9,466) - (9,466)
BRFEERRE Dividends paid to

RS non-controlling shareholders - - - - - (24,500)  (24,500)
BREREET Transfer to PRC statutory

faikn reserve fund 20 - - 2,420 (2,420) - - -
EBEGEEN Non-controlling interests

iR ER arising on business combination  38(b)/(c) - - - - - 6,993 6,993
HEHNBLR Disposals of subsidiaries 39 = = = = = 3,603 3,603
e syl v Changes in interests in

HBAR subsidiaries without change of

EnfFE control - - 506,952 - 506,952 398,272 905,224
RZBZZEF At 31 December

+=ZB=+-H 2020 78,186 4,084,846 725,222 4,302,088 9,190,342 758,383 9,948,725
B124F 24BN R FHGAMBERRDAK The notes on pages 124 to 284 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
o e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-Z-_ZTH+-_A=+t—HLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

—E_FF —NEF
2020 2019
B 5 AR TR ARBFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KETE CASH FLOWS FROM

HEeERhE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
EEEENES Cash generated from operations 35 441,344 1,927,308
B ATER Income tax paid (214,213) (509,450)
RETHELENEESRETFE Net cash flows from operating activities 227,131 1,417,858
REED CASH FLOWS FROM

RERE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EmEE AR REERE Additions of/capital contribution to

HEBE N REELELE associates and a joint venture 13 (105,291) (13,946)
E=ZHEREBAN Advances of loans to third parties (11,025) (15,000)
Bt N A BB Advances of loans to an associate (71,055) (57,127)
EZHEMERKE Repayment of loans from third parties 6,037 1,029

st % N EMERHE R RIE Repayment of loans from associates 15,000 2,000

1 B BT /&8 8 A Acquisitions of subsidiaries 38 1,508 -
& M B A A Disposals of subsidiaries 39 117,571 -
BEWE BEKR Purchases of items of property,

HEIEE plant and equipment (506,639) (500,793)
BEETEE Purchases of intangible assets (73,975) (89,132)
E T EENR Prepaid land lease payments = (55,638)
BEEAFETABEN Purchases of financial assets at fair

EREE value through profit or loss (18,806,553) (19,510,723)
PERATETABRED Proceeds from disposal of financial assets

TREBEEMSHKIE at fair value through profit or loss 18,593,926 20,625,351
HEME BERZBIER Proceeds from disposal of items of

Fr 8 318 property, plant and equipment 35 5,512 2,163
BRI F g Increase in pledged deposits 18 (144,548) -
2 W & Interest received 54,755 163,781
REZTEH (FTA)/IFEXE Net cash flows (used in)/from

ReRBFE investing activities (924,777) 551,965
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meEETRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

g 323 —T-NF
2020 2019
B 3 AR T ARBFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
A& EE CASH FLOWS FROM
HeRE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
B IRITHERRIE Repayment of bank borrowings 36 (376,075) (107,300)
& RFT 15 IB Proceeds from borrowings 36 1,103,178 19,000
AP EEEr ) Repurchase and cancellation of shares = (8,518)
FEHXSHEEMNK Principal portion of lease payments 8 (3,152) (3,592)
s B FE 4% IR i = Acquisition of non-controlling interests 38(b) (10,000) -
BB A R EE R Non-controlling interests arising
FEE R = in subsidiaries 915,224 132,112
B E Dividends paid (1,444,352) (198,805)
2 A F A Interest paid 8 (279) (422)
METEEFEL/(FTHA) Net cash flows from/(used in)
ReRBEFHE financing activities 184,544 (167,525)
ReERREZEYWORED)/ NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
3N H &R AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (513,102) 1,802,298
FNReRkBEELE Cash and cash equivalents
BY) at beginning of year 5,117,143 3,314,845
FRESRREE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
By AT END OF YEAR 18 4,604,041 5,117,143

FI124224ENME R EG AT BHROARK

D o

FE

B

The notes on pages 124 to 284 are on integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) is incorporated in
Bermuda under the Bermuda Companies Act as an exempted company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are the research
and development (“R&D"), and the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical
products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The address of the Company's registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, P.O. BOX HM 1022, Hamilton HM DX, Bermuda. The address of the
principal place of business of the Group in Hong Kong is Room 4309, Office
Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and the
address of the principal place of business in Beijing is 22/F, Building 4, Zhubang
2000, West Balizhuang, Chaoyang District, Beijing 100025, the PRC.

The Company had its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 October 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which include all
IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and interpretations,
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
"IASB"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for wealth management products and equity investments which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the

relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an

investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Z_EFE+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

HEZ
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FESTHTHREUME ) 2.

2.1

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
RBEE @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
EHEEE) Basis of consolidation (continued)

WAEFERBRBER EX=
AEGEERZ -ARZAELR
Bl AEESERTHERS
LHREHREAESE - HEBR
A G REER BB (T EEAEE
BN ARRIMERDZR S ©

i 75 S B 2K 5 B Y B B 2 2 7
o RARIERBOZME AR 2
ﬁ)ﬁ%( EEE)REE  (NER
FErERR s 2 R E R(>iR &
Witsk o R EXE% - WHER
HEWREZRFE  (HFFRE
ERE 2 A FERGiE LR R
mARZBRIEA - NEEZFE
AT H At 2 T s A RERR 2 PR
BOERFBEARAEBRER D

EHEEEXRBEMERZER

HEEBHHREBmLRERN -

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’'s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

S BEREHRIEESE 2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

ZJS SEERAFEMBREER The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
(= E— )\ FEFEERE I Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSs for the first time for the
BRIEZE) R AT S ] B B B 75 3R current year's financial statements.
HAER -
B B B 7 R 5 2RI B3R M B 5T EX 300
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business
BB SR EERFI - B2 R 5395 & FI|FEE1EHE

BB HREERE 7?}}7 VEET Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
B B BF 75 R 5 E B B 1655 KIS ET H120197F 4k 5 & A FF 9 2 2 2 (3R BTER )
Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions (early adopted)
BB R E 15 EBEE S ERESRMIEE] BAHEE

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

Definition of Material
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are described below:

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all parties
to understand and interpret the standards. The Conceptual
Framework includes new chapters on measurement and reporting
financial performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of
stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial
reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and
none of the concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework
did not have any significant impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.
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BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. FEETHREBEE @ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
22 B BEREHRFBESE 2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(&) (continued)

BRI 15 3R & E RIS 35 A
ERTHEBNERET TR
B HEEINES]  ZIEE
RIEE M EEANIEE
MEEZBKER  HUA
ELERE-ERAN-EAE
BitBE - W HEREZERE
BIEEHMRED - R A
TEBMBEEEL MR
BAMBIE - ZEFTMER T
HMIS2HEERTHENSE
FHE - EMERRIAEE
R ARG NE D 46
EROHARBEREANEE
HEEE ) » ZIERT AT
ERNTEREE  SHEE
AEFRENERIRY -
BEWmEE M A FEEBK
A e Ubhh - BRI AERT
RGN EREREEAEY
MBIz RS - WA
BN TEETEAD - A
SRS PTES B — AR B A
BERGTIBRERBETE
EatHE - AEBERR =F
—ERE-HA-HHZREE
B 22 5 3% H At 25 1 52 AT BR AR
HEEF] c REEATEH AL
88 ) B A5 IR 00 e R BRI
EEMEE -

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on
the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs
and processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove
the assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions or other events that occurred on or after 1 January
2020. The amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(0

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address issues affecting
financial reporting in the period before the replacement of an
existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
("RFR"). The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable
hedge accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty
before the introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group as
the Group does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for lessees
to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic and only if
(i) the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;
(i) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted and shall be
applied retrospectively. The amendment did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group as the
Group does not have any lease payments reduced or waived by
the lessors.
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2. FEEFBEHBE® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
22 B BEREHRFBESE 2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(%) (continued)
(e) g st AR 1R R BB () Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
B ERESHEAEITHE material. The new definition states that information is material
RKBETHHNES - FIEE if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
B BEEE - Sl s E expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
ZEBRE o AAEmTEE purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
FEBRAVBREANEIERE statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
BEREBU SRR OER on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
FEHRERE - BIBEHAAR amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial
BEKX  -%EEIEH = position and performance of the Group.

EZBEURTE R Y 1 E 3%
BEAMERE - R2FER]
45 5 AN 5% [ 6 B AR5 B
RBERTEREATE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. FESTBEBMED 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.3 BB E R E KW E B 2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs
Bt 7% R & 2E Al
AREBUERZEUMBHRRRN The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that
ATEBMHEERERDFET R have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

BETHERS B RS ER -

B R B 7 3R 5 2E B S 3SR VB ET B2 NEZE 2 4@ 42
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
B R B 75 R 5 SR RS2 95~ BB = 5 4RI ZE395% - FIFEIGIEHE - E2[E

BB SRS ERIE 7S, - BB R BRI F45 & Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

B B B 75 & 2E R B 165R M IE ET
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IAS 4 and IFRS 16

BB 5 LRI F 105 KRR &5 2R F 2855 /Y KREEFHABE N A E S EZ FEE L &L
CHIGE RS EE
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28(2011) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint venture®

B R B 75 S 2E RSB 1755 R & 497

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’

B R B 75 S 5 AR R SR 1 7SR BB R R & #7°

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®®

Rt ERIE 19 ET BB B ES S

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current>>
Rt ERIE 165 MEET WE - BB REE - KT FE T8 AT 12 E?
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before

Intended Use?

B PR & 5T 2E RIS 37 5% AT BIEEX) - [ETTE #8952
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
BRI B HERR - E— N2 _E_FFFEFNE BIFR B s i 2RI 157 - BRI RS aR 5 2 A58 95% -
Annual Improvements to P B 745 3 25 42 B 28 165 BE B 2 &6 01 K2

IFRSs 2018-2020 B & st R 4157 BB T2

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 412
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to IAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to

align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9
for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable

to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3
should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will
not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address
issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect financial
reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient
to allow the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting
the carrying amount when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities,
if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding
the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes required by
the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition are
dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide
a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity
reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become separately
identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark
reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities
are not required to restate the comparative information.
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BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated
in RMB based on the Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”) as at 31 December
2020. If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in
a future period, the Group will apply this practical expedient upon the
modification of these borrowings when the “economically equivalent”
criterion is met and expects that no significant modification gain or loss
will arise as a result of applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was
removed by the IASB in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of
the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered
a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items
of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted.
Any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall be
recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to IFRS
1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details
of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are

as follows:

° IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.

. IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS
16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.4 Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of

the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.4

2.5

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In
all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment

and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process

that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5 Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5 Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.6 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.6 Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired

asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the

statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

F [Z #i245 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 145



BA#5 R R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. FEETHEEMEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
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Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The residual rate and estimated useful lives used
for this purpose are as follows:

fh &t

A F

BEX Estimated
Residual rate  useful lives

BF

EERBTRE

MRAERE

5% 10E35%F
10 to 35 years

Production and electronic equipment 5% 3E10%F

3 to 10 years

Office equipment 5% 3E10%

3 to 10 years

Motor vehicles 5% 42104

4 to 10 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purpose.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated
using a straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over the estimated useful lives of the properties. The residual values
and useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The effects of any

revision are included in the profit or loss when the changes arise.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(a) R&D

(i)

(ii)

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge
and understanding, is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities (relating to the design and testing of new or
improved products) is capitalised under the category of
“product development in progress” if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
the development, the Group has sufficient ability to use
or sell the asset, the asset will generate future economic
benefit, and the cost can be reliably measured. Upon the
commencement of the commercial production of a product,
the expenditure on development activities is transferred to
“deferred development costs” and amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of its expected benefit. R&D costs
comprise costs that are directly attributable to R&D activities
or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such

activities.

Deferred development costs that are acquired by the
Group are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated amortisation and any

impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

R&D (continued)

(i)  Subsequent expenditure on development activities after its
acquisition or its completion is recognised as an expense
when it is incurred unless it is probable that this expenditure
will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits
in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance
and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the
asset reliably. If these conditions are met, the subsequent
expenditure is added to the cost of the intangible asset.

(iv)  Amortisation of deferred development costs is charged to
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives of 5 to 15 years.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Computer systems

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) continued)
(d) Customer relationships

The customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the

expected life of 5 years.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. The effects of any revision are recognised
in profit or loss when the changes arise.

2.11 Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

27%Z50%F
27 to 50 years

2FE55F
2 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.
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2. FESHHEMEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
21 BE %) 2.11 Leases (continued)
KEFIEBAFAN (&) Group as a lessee (continued)
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(c)  Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue
in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(a)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other

comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,

irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(a)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2. FEETHEEMEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

QNHREREBEMESRMEE (&) 2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(b) B#E (b) Subsequent measurement
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The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the

Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2. FEETHEEMEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
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A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,

removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:
° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from

the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the

Group could be required to repay.
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2. FEETHEEMEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
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2.14 Impairment of financial assets
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The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

2.15 Financial liabilities

(a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and

borrowings, and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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2. FEETHEEMEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

215 e s e 2.15 Financial liabilities (continued)
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(b) Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

2.16 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability

is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2.17 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises R&D costs, raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

2.19 Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.19 Current and deferred tax (continued)
(b) Deferred tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal of
the temporary difference for the associates. Only when there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.
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2. FEETHEEMEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
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2.19 Current and deferred tax (continued)
(b) Deferred tax (continued)
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Outside basis differences (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and an
associate only to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference can be

B =58 AIBR AN o utilised.

(c) #H# (c) Offsetting
fi7B B EWMTITHEF LA BDEARL Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
HEEBRHENGHRERE enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
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liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
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same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2.20 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the

Group will comply with all attached conditions.
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Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.
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Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in the retirement insurance and medical
insurance scheme organised by the local social security bureau
pursuant to the relevant provisions. The Group is required to make
monthly contributions in respect of the above insurance scheme
to the local social security bureau based on the monthly salaries
of its employees. The Group has no further liabilities other than
the above defined contributions. The Group’s contributions under
the scheme are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at
the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope
of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company's shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has

created a constructive obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
(d) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up

to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

2.22 Share-based payments
(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transaction

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (awards)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the awards is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the awards granted:

3 including any market performance conditions (for example,

an entity’s share price);

3 excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the

entity over a specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save or hold
shares for a specified period of time).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment transaction
(continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of awards that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

In addition, in some circumstances, employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date
fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense
during the period between the service commencement period and
the grant date.

Share-based payment transaction among group
entities

The grant by the Company of awards over its equity instruments
to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is
treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit
to equity in the parent entity accounts.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects

to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Sales of good's

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is recognised at

the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the

customer, generally on delivery of the industrial products.

Some contracts for the sale of industrial

products provide

customers with rights of return and volume rebates. The rights of

return and volume rebates give rise to variable consideration.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in IFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine
the amount of variable consideration that can be included
in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be
returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised.
A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment
to cost of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover
products from a customer.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Sales of goods (continued)

(ii)

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during
the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract.
Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the
customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the most likely amount method is
used for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the
expected value method for contracts with more than one
volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts
the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by
the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
The requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied and a refund liability for the

expected future rebates is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)
(b) Revenue from other sources

(c)

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to
it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the

receive payment has been established,

Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Income from the provision of R&D services is recognised over time,
using an input method to measure progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service, because the Group’s performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced. The input method recognises income
based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the services.

2.24 Contract liabilities
A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a

payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group

transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised

as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers

control of the related goods or services to the customer).

F [Z #4 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 169



BA#5 R R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. FEETHEEMEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)
2.25 G 2.25 Contract costs
ﬁ? BERLABTFE W% JP?;Z}?‘% )Si Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
&?ﬂiﬁ;ééZﬁXﬁﬁ\\ = and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract

with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria

are met:

() FZEAEBRRERENN (@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
—IHERI KBRS E L that the entity can specifically identify.
EEEE -
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The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

The costs are expected to be recovered.

B AR A LR TR T A [ The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
REEREEMRBERBR consolidated statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis
BHRREREHFET BEERE that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods
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or services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are

expensed as incurred.

2.26 Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by

the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are

disclosed in the Note 34 to the Financial Statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because

the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the

directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,

interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are

proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.27 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Company’'s functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges.

All the foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income within “other gains — net”.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount
of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets are
included in other comprehensive income.

F [Z #4 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 171



B 75 3 < I o

at

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-Z-_ZHF+-_/A=

T-BHILEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. TEETHEREME

227 SN E ()
(c) Z£EFALF

FrBEThEEE %
ngggg
%@Z%MUZ%
BRRBEBIAT
B

)

(if)

(iii)

W INE

7

J B
R
& B

51 %

5 H—m
|'HD ‘mzwm fﬁﬁ ,U]][\'
)ﬂﬂ[r & @A

BEEBEBERMZ7
BENMABRBREH
RzWHEHRE

EERLEMEEY
wmRZWARFEZZ
FERBE - BRIE
BEFHYIIERSA
H—M Rz BET %
BEEMUE T
ERERLT  BAR
MY ERXSHBZH®
R}E

BHHNMEEE®RE
ZERNEMEZERE
HER -

BELZBER

AFEFHBERREIER

ZEERAR

R T E R

ﬁ'%éimm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
P E At 2 T W 2R AR -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.27 Foreign currency translation (continued)
Group companies

(c)

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of

which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have

a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the end of reporting period.

income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rates on the dates of the

transactions);

all resulting currency translation differences are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation

differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.28 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

—
=

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.28 Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies: (continued)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group; and the sponsoring employers of the post-
employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of

the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group

or to the parent of the Group.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk

(including foreign currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit

risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group'’s financial performance.

U IR B EE i AR S @ B R A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



3. KEKRER®

3.1 BIERRAZXE)
(a) HHERE

(1)

SR R
KRR REWNB R
AIMMEEE B A
REE - AE@BMBFTA
WA R B R A B A
%o ARENESR
TEAFBHUARES
- ARBEER A
W 2ok B BT S 5 B
HNEE B 3R Al ROE IR
EE o REBUINE
FENTITEEEN
BEARNETL(E
T AT BET))
KB (TBuT ) 5HE
MNETHSERSSE
B (MzE18) - AR
AEFENTESER
B ASBYEAR
ERINERR

AN £ B 3R R 3 SN
ORI o

RZZ_ZTF+=A
=t+t—H8 fWEAR
BEETLREFAE
3% (ZT—hF+=
A=+—H :3%) -

mAaTA KR E#
BIAg  AfEZE=
—EFE+-A=+—
HIEFENRKRE
Dl | V5 R )
A R #496,0007T (=
Z-—NF: ARE
1,616,0007T) + £ &
HRBENETLAE
MNHReRREEEE
1 ) BE 34 U 25/085 48 T
2o

8175 5 < Y ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
is RMB. All of the revenues of the Group are derived from
operations in the PRC. The financial instruments of the
Group are mainly denominated in RMB. The conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The main foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities of the Group were certain cash and
cash equivalents (Note 18), which were denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD"), Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$")
and Euro (“EUR"). In the opinion of the executive directors
of the board of the Company, the Group does not have
significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedge

policy.

As at 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (31 December 2019: 3%) against
USD with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
approximately RMB496,000 (2019: RMB1,616,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of USD-denominated cash and cash equivalents.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. M¥EAKREE®

3.1 BIERRAZXE)
(a) THEEE#)

(1)

(i)
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
As at 31 2020, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (31 December 2019:

HKD with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit

December
3%) against

for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
approximately RMB4,968,000 (2019: RMB163,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of HKD-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 2020, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (31 December 2019: 3%) against

EUR with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit

December

for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
approximately RMB655,000 (2019: RMB51,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of EUR-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to any significant equity market
risk, nor exposed to any commodity price risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Interest rate risk
The interest-bearing assets of the Group mainly include the
wealth management products, cash and cash equivalents,
other borrowings and interest-bearing bank borrowings,
details of which have been disclosed in Notes 14, 18, 21
and 25 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,

wealth management products and other receivables.

All the cash equivalents and bank deposits are placed in certain
PRC reputable financial institutions and high-quality international
financial institutions outside Mainland China. All those irrevocable
bank bills, classified as notes receivable (Note 17), are issued by
the banks in the PRC with high credit rating. There was no recent
history of default of cash equivalents and bank deposits in relation
to these financial institutions.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk and has policies in place to ensure
that certain cash advance has been received upon the agreement
of the related sales orders with customers. For those with credit
periods granted, the credit quality of the counterparties is assessed
by taking into account their financial position, credit history and
other factors. It also undertakes certain monitoring procedures to
ensure that proper follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. The Group regularly performs ageing analysis, assesses
credit risks and estimates the recoverability of groups of trade
receivables bearing similar credit risk based on historical data and
cash collection history.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Wealth management products are the bank financial products
issued by certain PRC reputable banking institutions. There was no
recent history of default and the executive directors of the board
of the Company are of the opinion that the credit risk related to

the investments is low.

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors

is assessed by taking into account their financial position,
relationship with the Group, credit history and other factors.
Management will also regularly review the recoverability of these
other receivables and follow up the disputes or amounts overdue,
if any. The executive directors of the board of the Company are of

the opinion that the default by counterparties is low.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on ageing information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amount presented is gross
carrying amount for financial assets.
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3. MBEBEREw 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 BRREBEZE®) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) EEREE %) (b) Credit risk (continued)
= A BB R F K 5 R Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
(&
RZZEZZFTF + = A As at 31 December 2020
=+—H
1218 A
BFHEERR ZHAEBGCERSE
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
[K (P73
EIREE E2AREER EIEER Simplified st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
AR¥TR AR TR ARET R AR TR AR¥ET R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B NG -E:N Loans to associates 357,215 - - - 357,215
JEWAZMEZRITE  Amount due from a joint venture 675 - - - 675
B 5 W R Trade receivables - - - 272,514 272,514
eSS Notes receivable - - - 128,427 128,427
FTABRZE - Financial assets
H o JEUBR TR included in prepayments,
HtEEM other receivables
TREE and other assets 442,823 - - - 442,823
EEAER Pledged deposits
- K@ - Not yet past due 144,548 = = = 144,548
BekBESSEY  Cash and cash equivalents
- R ~ Not yet past due 4,604,041 = = - 4,604,041
5,549,302 - - 400,941 5,950,243
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3. M¥EAKREE®

3.1 BIERRAZXE)
(b) EEERE &)
B A BB R F KL DR

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

(%)
RZZT—-NF+ A As at 31 December 2019
=+—8
1218 A
HEHEEBE 2HEHEEEE
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
SRRz
F1REER EPLEEES £3MEER Simplified st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
mBERNRER Loans to associates 301,786 - - - 301,786
Z 5 EWERR Trade receivables - - - 158,640 158,640
EUZ Notes receivable - - - 137,166 137,166
STABERZIE - Financial assets
HERERER K included in prepayments,
HtEEM other receivables
CRMEE and other assets 251,665 - - - 251,665
ReRkBEESZEEYW  Cash and cash equivalents
- K@ H - Not yet past due 5,117,143 - - - 5,117,143
5,670,594 - - 295,806 5,966,400

* shat ANB 5 K E Al g UL
ERMEREEMS -
AEBERA BT ARR
ERE BREEMER
B A R B S R MY R
178 -

For financial assets included in trade and other receivables to
which the Group applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in Note 17 to

the Financial Statements.
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HE-_Z-_Z+-_fA=+—HLLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 BRREBEZE®) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq)
(c) TEMERE (c) Liquidity risk
HENTDECERIBHS Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash.
RMIEE - KREBHEIFTTH The Group maintains sufficient cash balances to provide flexibility
NIRES&E%  UWAEBED in meeting its day to day funding requirements.
BEaBRIEMH-EEL -
RZZE_ZEF+-_A=+— The Group had net current assets of RMB3,961,067,000 which
H AXEEHRERDEE included cash and cash equivalents of RMB4,604,041,000 as
H & A R ¥53,961,067,000 at 31 December 2020. The executive directors of the board of
T BRASKBESEEY the Company are of the opinion that the Group maintains an
A K ¥ 4,604,041,000 7T ° adequate liquidity reserve.
RAAFEEGHNTEER
A AEEBBRBORE
B
AREBNBERKRBEDE] The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
HNARMBEFEAE 2ERE of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
BERHBERAT : payments, is as follows:
LPR—F —FEB L
Less than More than st
1 year 1 year Total
ARBT AR TR AR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
RZZEZEF+-_HA=+—H At 31 December 2020
B 5 REMEMERR Trade and other payables 1,766,019 = 1,766,019
HEEE Lease liabilities 1,441 2,510 3,951
H b &% Other borrowings 4,000 28,000 32,000
FFEERITE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 387,930 331,173 719,103
2,159,390 361,683 2,521,073
RZF—-—hE+=_A=+—8H At 31 December 2019
B 5 & H R Trade and other payables 1,855,411 - 1,855,411
HEalE Lease liabilities 4,058 5,892 9,950
EH b 18 3 Other borrowings - 9,000 9,000
1,859,469 14,892 1,874,361
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HEZ

3. MHEREEw 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
32 EXERE 3.2 Capital management
$%I§E§7§$E’]IE§ET@%% The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
BERAEBNFHELESEN UK safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
HEBENESLE UIZHEE maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
¥BRERREEZKAE maximise shareholders’ value.
KEI%‘.@EE@@E% 3 JE A The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
BEARRZEEHEELAE - R it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
i’&?—r?:ﬂ”§$ RRE AEET the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to
BE I B M) I BOR A 2 B B R IA shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
F‘cﬂ R ERR B E ARKETH Hx ° Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
NEBHEBTEM $7|\ B HE &Y changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
BABRTE BE-_Z_ZTF+= capital during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December
A=+—BAk=ZZ—-AF+=A 2019.
ST—HLEFE HEHERA
RNz BE - BENEFEDEM
REEBR-_ZE_ZTFR_FT—A The Group had sufficient cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
FHZA=+T—REERENHE 2020 and 2019. The executive directors of the board of the Company
S RREEEY ARAEERZS are of the opinion that the Group does not have significant capital risk.
HDTESRRALAEBUEERE
NEK o
R+ZA=+—8
As at 31 December
—EC-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR®T T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ReEkReEEW(HIEE18) Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) 4,604,041 5,117,143
s B AR (M EE21) Less: Other borrowings (Note 21) (32,000) (9,000)
= EER 1T & R (K &E25) Interest-bearing bank borrowings (Note 25) (719,103) -
3,852,938 5,108,143
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33 ERMIAEMNATFERDF 3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
BEER instruments
REEmELAEAFTESGEEEN The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
SR T A AEBESHTAN instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
BREELAFERT : approximate to fair values, are as follows:
ARTE A ARRIE]
R+=ZRA=+—H W+Z—A=+—H
Carrying amounts Fair values
As at 31 December As at 31 December
ZEZEF —E-NF ZEBEZEF —E-NF
2020 2019 2020 2019
ARBTRT ARBTRE AR®BTR ARBTET
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
cREE Financial liabilities
HiERx(TeiE Other borrowings (other than lease
HEBE) liabilities) 32,000 9,000 33,224 9,045
FFERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 719,103 - 730,859 -
751,103 9,000 764,083 9,045

EEEEFHERES IR EHE
W EEAE S R HEAD R R
ERMEENRGFABS R EMAE
NEFNEREENAFEEE
FREEMRSE TE2ARNZEIA
HR&RE -

EREERBENRATEAER
RPH(RAIFHREERINE
ERRSTPARGNZTIESHR
AR - AAEET R FENTTER
BRBWAT :

FRRRITERREBERNRF
B THRIER - EERR &R
FHBENTEBAAOMNE I
REMAKRBEREFESH -
FEEBRR T -_FF+ A
=+ —HOPMEL RS HN
AFEEHWABA/ALTERK o

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, financial assets included in trade and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in trade and other payables approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair values:

The fair value of Interest-bearing bank borrowings and other borrowings
has been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s
own non-performance risk for borrowings as at 31 December 2020 was
assessed to be insignificant.
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3.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at fair value
through profit or loss have been estimated using a market-based
valuation technique based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors
to determine comparable public companies based on industry, size,
leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple,
such as enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple and price to earnings (“P/
E”) multiple, for each comparable company identified. The multiple is
calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company
by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then discounted
for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences between
the comparable companies based on company-specific facts and
circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the corresponding
earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments to measure the
fair value. The directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting
from the valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair values,
which are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were the

most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The Group
has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by using a
discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates

of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. MBEAKRERE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
33 2ERMIAMNAFERAYF 3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
BEHE) instruments (continued)
(B JE AR Fair value hierarchy
TRIWRAEFBESH T AN FE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of
ERE =T the Group's financial instruments:
BN FEGFENEE - Assets measured at fair value:
R-EBE-FEF+-A=+—8 As at 31 December 2020
BRUATEEGELATE
Fair value measurement using
RIE R BEX BEX
™% Z |E AEEZ2E TAEEZSH
(B—#) (B=4) (BE=4)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Bt
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR TR AR TR AR T AR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BAFEGABED Financial assets at fair value
EREE through profit or loss:
BAFEFEN Unlisted equity investments,
JELTARERE at fair value - - 196,153 196,153
18 B E Wealth management products - 332,683 - 332,683
- 332,683 196,153 528,836
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3. MBEBEREw 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
33 2ERMIAMNAFERAYF 3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
BEHE) instruments (continued)
REEER &) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
BRTFEAENEE (&) Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
R—E—-HAE+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2019
RUTEEFTERFE
Fair value measurement using
O B2 BX BX
W52 WiB AEBR28 TOER2E
(B—#) (B=H) (B=%0
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs 5t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Tota
ARETT ARETT AR T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
BAFEAERD Financial assets at fair value
ERMEE through profit or loss:
BEAFEFED Unlisted equity investments,
FELmRERE at fair value - - 174,220 174,220
BEE®R Wealth management products - 148,336 - 148,336
- 148,336 174,220 322,556
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value. (continued)

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the

valuation of financial instruments (i.e.,

six unlisted equity investments)

together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2020

TEBRENDNZEARTAEHE and 2019:
2HE
HESE EXTUEREZH ATFEHSBNBBE
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Value to the input
LILTRERE (RERER BITEYF BEHOS% (ZE—NE+_A=+—08 :5%)1E N/
iR R A5 & BMOEBRAFEENBIS% (ZE-NF+ZH
=+—A8 :5%)
1. Unlisted equity investment Valuation Average price-to-book 5% (31 December 2019: 5%) increase/decrease in
multiples Ratio multiple of peers  multiple would result in increase/decrease in fair value by
5% (31 December 2019: 5%)
2.FLETREBRE MR E FRRE BHNS% (ZE—AE+T-A=Z+—8 :5%)E I
mE A LEBYRTFERL % (ZE—NAFT_A=+—
B 13%)RAFELM2% (ZT—NLF+A
=+—H :16%)
2. Unlisted equity investment Discounted Discount rate 5% (31 December 2019: 5%) increase/decrease in
cash flow per annum multiple would result in decrease in fair value by 11%
method (31 December 2019: 13%) and increase in fair value by
12% (31 December 2019: 16%)
. LTRERE (ERENEE - EESE:0R =] & BRI 5 %18 1R 2 & E BUA T EE IR 5%
(ZZ=ZFFE) MR EF &
3. Unlisted equity investment Valuation Average price-to-book 5% increase/decrease in multiple would result in
(Addition in 2020) multiples Ratio multiple of peers increase/decrease in fair value by 5%
4 FLETRBRE ERIEEER 2 @178 F 15 & BB 5% 15 DR 2> & B BN T EE IR 5%
(Z2=25FE) R EEH
4. Unlisted equity investment Valuation Average price-to-book 5% increase/decrease in multiple would result in
(Addition in 2020) multiples Ratio multiple of peers  increase/decrease in fair value by 5%
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3. KEKRER®

33 $MIANDFERALF
BEE& )
RFEER )
BRTFESEGEE  (F)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value. (continued)

B 5 % ERTAEEZSH AFEHBENHRE

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair

technique unobservable input Value to the input
5.k EmERRE hEE m1THFH ZE-AFFT A=+ —H : BENS%E RS
(ZZ2=2FHE) AR E 58 B RN TEE IR 5%
5. Unlisted equity investment Valuation Average price-to-book 31 December 2019: 5% increase/decrease in multiple
(Disposal in 2020) multiples Ratio multiple of peers  would result in increase/decrease in fair value by 5%
6.F LmERRE (EERER AfTHFH ZE-NAFFTZA=1T—H : BENS%E RS E
(ZBZZ2FHE) iR R A BN E R 5%

6. Unlisted equity investment Valuation
(Disposal in 2020) multiples
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HE-_Z-_Z+-_fA=+—HLLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. MBEBEREw 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
33 ERIENAFERLATFE 3.3 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
[E#& &) instruments (continued)
REEER &) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
BN FEAENEE (&) Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
FAN -BZHRANATFEFZ2E The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the
R year are as follows:
—E-EHE —E-NEF
2020 2019
ARET T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BAFEFABZNRERE Equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss:
wn—HA—H At 1 January 174,220 181,783
REERERANBIELE Total losses recognised in the statement of
profit or loss - (19,000)
e Purchases 30,433 11,437
& (I 5£39) Disposals (Note 39) (8,500) -
R+=—A=+—~H At 31 December 196,153 174,220
R TFEGENEE - Liabilities measured at fair value:
N_E-_EFR_FT—NFE+= The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
A=+—8 A&EHEENEK at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
ATFEHENESHEAE -
FRA REMEERESBRAEM During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
T OBMEATEFELCE AN between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
FoLEER  TEEARE both financial assets and financial liabilities (2019: Nil).

HE=ZR(ZZE—-NF : &) -

£ 9 & ANNUAL REPORT 2020 189



BA#5 R R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

4,
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EZgsHAE R HE

REE N E G  BRRAE X
EERBELRANEMES - 2FY
EEBBEATHRRYRREHNAER
Hy o

REBE R AKAE R AFT RER - FISH
giHERHNEER RO BEIBEERS
RER - RABSEHTEN BFEEZH
BERABNREEFDERAABNMGK
AR ERAmAT -

(a) JEFEBA 8% Bk A RL(E
IR B BB A BB A
BE S B R R A M
REBETE - REFHERE
BENRIEREGBHAMEL -

HAgt At HTEBRHRME
BAFEBEFHTFOTHMBEL
BEREY - NARRRSBEER
BHEIREABREREAS SR
i BEEEeEREACHERE
HRRERRE -

IYRRN

R-ZZE—ZTF+=—A=+—8"
BRIEFAERANEAEBEARARE
194,701,000 (=T — AL F + =
A=+—H : AR%194,777,000
TT) e

(b) BHERE
BEBEREEFRBTIAERA
B B RUE 5 AR 1R B 7 R T R
2.5 F s B9 & EF BCEE 1T ORUEDR
AoREELBUMARDEHR
ERBEREEHAENEEE -

RZZTZZZTF+ A=+ —
H BENEBEARARE
12,312,000t (=ZF — L&+ = A
=+—H: &) BRFEKE
SHENMGEHFBENM BRI
9 = o

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The

resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment of deferred development costs

The Group’s management determines the estimated future cash flows of
each pharmaceutical patent or licence in capitalisation of development
costs. These estimates are based on projected product life cycles

experienced in the pharmaceutical industry.

It could change significantly as a result of medicine innovations and
competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management will
recognise impairment loss on the capitalised development costs when
future cash flows are less than expectation and fall below the amount of

related development costs.

The carrying amount of deferred development costs as at 31 December
2020 was RMB194,701,000 (31 December 2019: RMB194,777,000).

Goodwill impairment

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
indication that the goodwill may be impaired in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.5 to the Financial Statements. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB12,312,000 (31 December 2019: Nil). Details of the estimates used
to calculate the recoverable amounts are disclosed in Note 9 to the

Financial Statements.
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(a)

(d)

(e)

ME-BERRBEHAE
REHRRMERER
ME - BE KR T 5 4
BRI g4 (B B IR E 2 E BT
EUED) - AWAEM A KR
i AEEBERENRER
REBIMEERELETH
it BAEE TR E AR EMER
RBE YT EERNTEBER
MITHMBEEEAED - W (e
AFHRMBEER NG
SRR AIE R EIE N E A
S RGBS S B A 3
58 A 4 S HOR -

ME - BEREBENRE
AEBERBRDE BB RR
BET SRS ELBAMMGIR

RESME - & fhFH Y ERNE 5
EWEREWBESBEL -

Hu gt At W EARL RS
BAMEBREFEFNTHMmMEE
EREH  NALRBRESREER
TEE R DRIEEME  BE K&
HEoHEE TEESIDE K
REERRERE -
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EEMEHREEHARERA
fEHERHIH - £ REBBR
BB RGRHENREEE
BRI THRE

B BE TR 0ORUE B 1 A B R
BBEEMEEREEE  aRE
12 [E B R 5 K FT A A RE AR LA A
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HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The estimate of useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment was made by management with reference to the established
industry practices, technical assessments made on the durability of
the assets, as well as the historical magnitude and trend of repair
and maintenance expenses incurred by the Group. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions
in responses to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are less than
those previously estimated or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated future cash flows
of each cash-generating unit in property, plant and equipment. These
estimates are based on product life cycles in the pharmaceutical industry.

It could change significantly as a result of medicine innovations and
competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management will
recognise impairment loss on the property, plant and equipment when
future cash flows are less than expectation and fall below the amount of
related property, plant and equipment.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for income
tax and deferred taxation. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their
actual utilisation may be different. Details of the deferred taxation are

disclosed in Note 24 to the Financial Statements.
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4.

192

EEE AT RAE o

(f) MAEBEBHERERI
BB R AR TR IR B A iR R M
2I0M BN NS B RETE
e - EEHTEREONESES
EEBERENEERAREE
MR BFRAMBBRERE
IS HRERRR -RZT =
TFE+-_A=+—H8 BE&EAXEL
FERARTMENREGBTY
A AR #302,092,0000=F — A,
F: AR¥261,732,0007T) « &
ZHBEREL2HB®REM 0

7 # & #

ITERERRECRRBERARAES
BRITEF - ARREFEANTESE
BMASENAES RS - AR HER D
AR BEEBERZEREEELE

S -

ARARESFERTEETNHERAES
BER AEBERLE —HEBHH
BNTER B i 8% - BE RSB &M o
HE-_Z_ZFR-_FT—NLF+=A
=+—BIEFE FAHESKREDHE
RSB ESD HE SRR EE A
EEWZE10%HIA L »

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(f) Capitalisation of development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting
policy for R&D costs in Note 2.10 to the Financial Statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires management to
make assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the
assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
At 31 December 2020, the best estimate of the carrying amount of
capitalised development costs was approximately RMB302,092,000
(2019: RMB261,732,000). More details are given in Note 10 to the
Financial Statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the board of the Company. The executive directors of the board
of the Company review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has determined the

operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors of the board of the Company consider the business
from product perspective. The Group is engaged in only one business segment,
being the R&D, and the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products in
the Mainland China. During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, all
sales were from distributors and there were no distributors of the Group with
which the revenue generated therefrom amounted to 10% or more of the
Group's revenue.
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%7—_\

FoBFE+_A=T-RALEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. M¥E -BMERRKH 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
EtER
BEFRE
Production
and WORE "E ERIE
#F  electronic Office Motor Construction st
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
ARETT AR®BTR ARETnR AR®BTR AR¥®TR AR%Txn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
—E-EF 31 December 2020
+=ZA=+-8H
RZE-NF At 31 December 2019 and
+=ZA=+—Bx at1January 2020:
—TZEF
—HA—8:
PR AR Cost 2,581,501 840,105 47,343 38,826 559,090 4,066,865
2HMER Accumulated depreciation and
R impairment (786,831)  (482,964) (39,641) (26,419) - (1,335,855)
BRmEFE Net carrying amount 1,794,670 357,141 7,702 12,407 559,090 2,731,010
RZZZTF At 1 January 2020, net of
—A—A8 Mk accumulated depreciation and
R FERRBE impairment 1,794,670 357,141 7,702 12,407 559,090 2,731,010
wNE Additions 8,157 66,534 2,192 1,033 477,125 555,041
Wk 8 2~ A Acquisitions of subsidiaries
(Pf5E38) (Note 38) 9,762 11,351 317 63 18,032 39,525
ERATEETIR Transfer from construction in progress 180,841 167,129 491 - (348,461) -
BREEANE Transfer to investment properties
(P5E7) (Note 7) (6,752) - - - - (6,752)
HE Disposals - (6,826) (506) (116) = (7,448)
HEK B AR Disposals of subsidiaries
(BF&E39) (Note 39) (1,730) (12,198) (584) (46) (25,502) (40,060)
TEMY Depreciation charge (116,325) (94,962) (3,943) (2,798) - (218,028)
RZZTZTHF At 31 December 2020, net of
+ZA=+—H "  accumulated depreciation and
Mk 2EHERRE  impairment 1,868,623 488,169 5,669 10,543 680,284 3,053,288
N-E-TF At 31 December 2020:
+tZA=+—
B AR Cost 2,763,000 1,059,338 47,609 40,236 680,284 4,590,467
ZEHER Accumulated depreciation and
B impairment (894,377)  (571,169) (41,940) (29,693) - (1,537,179)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,868,623 488,169 5,669 10,543 680,284 3,053,288
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. WX -BERRE = 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (ontinued)
HER
BET&RME
Production
and  WAKE "B EEIR
BF electronic Office Motor Construction @t
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
AREFT ARBTT ARETI ARBFTT ARETRT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—B-NF 31 December 2019
+=A=+-A
RZZE-N\F At 31 December 2018 and
+-A=+—BE at1lanuary 2019
—hE
—RA—8:
DN Cost 2,447,600 752,181 44,029 40,226 347,125 3,631,161
RitHE Accumulated depreciation (428,824) (367,014) (34,066) (25,886) - (855,790)
BREHE Net carrying amount 2,018,776 385,167 9,963 14,340 347,125 2,775,371
RZZE—-NE At 1 January 2019, net of
—A—8" accumulated depreciation
Mmer Rt E 2,018,776 385,167 9,963 14,340 347,125 2,775,371
wNE Additions 8,302 78,813 3,567 1,764 405,028 497,474
HEgERIRE Transfer from construction in progress 169,270 23,793 - - (193,063) -
BREREME Transfer to investment properties
(BF3E7) (Note 7) (30,171) - - - - (30,171)
e Disposals (1,486) (6,633) (30) (759) - (8,908)
BE (HE27) Impairment (Note 27) (243,757) (31,874) (793) (40) - (276,464)
TERX Depreciation charge (126,264) (92,125) (5,005) (2,898) - (226,292)
— N5 At 31 December 2019,
+-A=+—8" net of accumulated depreciation
MK EFMERBE and impairment 1,794,670 357,141 7,702 12,407 559,090 2,731,010
— N5 At 31 December 2019:
+-B=+—-8:
DN Cost 2,581,501 840,105 47,343 38,826 559,090 4,066,865
ZEHER Accumulated depreciation
B and impairment (786,831) (482,964) (39,641) (26,419) - (1,335,855)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,794,670 357,141 7,702 12,407 559,090 2,731,010
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HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

ME - BERRE® 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
RIEZEF+_A=+—HHEET Construction in progress as at 31 December 2020 mainly comprised new
BXrZaRAEETERtE TN pharmaceutical manufacturing plants being constructed in Mainland China.
BEfR o
RZE-_ZTF+_A=Z=+—H8" K As at 31 December 2020, the ownership certificates of certain buildings
EEHEADNSEEAESENDARE (“Building Ownership Certificates”) of the Group with an aggregate
425,809,000 t(Z ZE — L + = A carrying value of approximately RMB425,809,000 (31 December 2019:
=+—H : AR®425,649,0007T) & RMB425,649,000) had not been obtained by the Group. The directors of the
TRFOMEEZE((FEMBRESE]) - Company consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group to apply for
RARREERR  AEERFLIESR and obtain the Building Ownership Certificates and it should not lead to any
BHEEMERELEEZERS - B1E significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group.
HASE R XL S EEEMEKRTF
e -
REWME 7. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E_EF —E-hF
2020 2019
B3 gF
Buildings Buildings
AR TR AREFTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—BMERE Carrying amount at 1 January 232,802 209,206
ERAWE  WMENRE(HiE6)  Transfers from property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 6,752 30,171
TERX Depreciation charge (7,381) (6,575)
RT+-_A=+—HHEEE Carrying amount at 31 December 232,173 232,802

AEENRENEERLEMERET
FEABESEREDERETBOME
BEWE  BERANMBRTENRESE
BIIR °

BREMERBLKEHELHETE=7 "
HE— PR BRAR T B HRMES -

REBR-_ZTZ-_TF+-_A=+—H
2B W EH AR 471,194,000 7T

—NEF+ZA=+—H: AR¥
386,004,00070) Z A FETIHA QA E
ERSERBWEZGHITESE

The Group’s investment properties consist of six commercial properties in
Mainland China and two commercial properties in Hong Kong under operating
lease arrangements and are stated at cost less depreciation and any impairment
losses.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in Note 8 to the Financial
Statements.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties of approximately
RMB471,194,000 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
RMB386,004,000) has been determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the estimated market values of similar properties.
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BE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HBLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

8.

HE

AEBERAMBAA
FEEERANEEBEENETNEE
SR BERAMER —RIENFAREE
WEME T - HHR27E50F MR
BERELHEENGER BT e#EX
MEMKE - —KRME > ARETA R
REBUINALTEZEDEHEEEE °
#—FErma

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for buildings used in its operations. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with
lease periods of 27 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. Further discussions are as
follows:

(a) EHELSE (a) Right-of-use assets
. The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the
zggié LTE ARRENEEE movements during the year are as follows:
HELT i
Leasehold g et
land Buildings Total
AR®T R ARBT T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZE—hhF—A—H As at 1 January 2019 849,190 10,947 860,137
AE Additions 55,638 2,595 58,233
FERX Depreciation charge (20,612) (4,203) (24,815)
RZZE—NF As at 31 December 2019 and
+TZA=+—HK 1 January 2020
—T-TF—HA—H 884,216 9,339 893,555
NE Addition - 2,523 2,523
Lz B BT /BB A &) (P 7E38) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 38) 20,835 = 20,835
&M B A R (FTsE39) Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 39) (99,643) (5,167) (104,810)
WERX Depreciation charge (21,325) (2,805) (24,130)
RZZTEZTF+=_A=+—H Asat 31 December 2020 784,083 3,890 787,973
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8. MEw» 8. LEASES (continued)
REBEREBAE) The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) HEEE (b) Lease liabilities
FNFAEEENERMARES N The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the
= - year are as follows:
—E-FF —T—hF
2020 2019
AR TR ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—F—HNEmE Carrying amount at 1 January 9,950 10,947
wHaE New leases 2,523 2,595
FRE AN SIEE Accretion of interest recognised during the year 279 422
&M B A A (K sE39) Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 39) (5,370) -
(N Payments (3,431) (4,014)
RT+T-_A=+—HHEEE Carrying amount at 31 December 3,951 9,950
DITR Analysed into:
BN 5 Current portion 1,441 4,058
ERBIBH Non-current portion 2,510 5,892
HEABENDEA DR BR The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 3.1 to the
M3 E Financial Statements.
(c) WIBP RS M 7 208 (c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as
T : follows:
—E_%F —ZT-hF
2020 2019
AR TR ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEABGNE Interest on lease liabilities 279 422
TREEENERS Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 24,130 24,815
B HAEE R THER Expenses relating to short-term leases and
TZ A=+t —HALZAERD other leases with remaining lease terms ended on
HMBEERHENRAX or before 31 December
(FFADHERITHBAX) (included in distribution and administrative expenses) 2,434 2,523
BaPBRANBEAE Total amounts recognised in profit or loss 26,843 27,760
(d) BENBRSRHBRENBERE (d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in Note 36 to the Financial
B sE36% 55 - Statements.

B
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8. MEw» LEASES (continued)
AEBEAEEA The Group as a lessor
AREERBEEHELHELHEEREY The Group leases its investment properties (Note 7) consisting of six commercial
Z(MFE7) - B35 BIA i &9 /< (8 7 2 properties in Mainland China and two commercial properties in Hong Kong
MERBTEHMEFTENE - ZSHE under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
HERERBPL X NERESWIRIER the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
TRETERESAE FRAREE according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
B2 R E e WA B A RHET7,433,0007T by the Group during the year was RMB7,433,000 (2019: RMB6,662,000),
—E—hF: AR¥6,662,0007T) details of which are included in Note 26 to the Financial Statements.
FEIBER B S R MY 5226 ¢
RZE-_TEF+-_A=+—H BEXK At 31 December 2020, The undiscounted lease payments receivable by the
SEREBEEEBEZTAIRHBELERE Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
B FEUCRARIR A ERIBANT ¢ are as follows:
—EZEHF —E-hF
2020 2019
AR®T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 5,476 8,216
—FLAEERFARN After one year but within two years 873 4,703
MELAEB=FUNRN After two years but within three years 518 518
=FLAEBENFURN After three years but within four years 510 518
MFEREBRAFUR After four years but within five years 470 510
hFRE After five years 1,294 1,764
9,141 16,229
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BE-F-_FF+-A=T—ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

9. HE 9. GOODWILL
GRS
Goodwill
AR TR
RMB’000
RZZE—hF—A—H: At 1 January 2019:
DR Cost 2,879,020
ZERE Accumulated impairment (35,117)
BREFE Net carrying amount 2,843,903
RZZE—NF— A —HHKRA  NBEFHEE Costat 1 January 2019, net of accumulated impairment 2,843,903
FRRAAE (M 7E27) Impairment during the year (Note 27) (2,843,903)
WZZE-NF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2019 -
RZE-hF+=ZA=+—H: At 31 December 2019:
/4N Cost 2,879,020
REtRE Accumulated impairment (2,879,020)
AR FE Net carrying amount =
R-ZZE-_TF—-A—BMKRAEA  MNBRZEFEME Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated impairment =
Uk BE B B~ B (M 5E38) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 38) 12,312
RZZE-TEF+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 12,312
RZZEZTFE+-_A=+—8: At 31 December 2020:
(BN Cost 2,891,332
2FHRE Accumulated impairment (2,879,020)
BR A Net carrying amount 12,312
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BE_ZT_ZEF+_A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

0. BEEE

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ETHER
EERBRAE MR BEREH
EFBE Deferred Product  Trademark
Customer development development and mzt
relationships costs  in progress software Total
ARBTRT AR%®TR AR%®TR AR%®TR AR%TxR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—NE—-A—H: At 1 January 2019:
B A Cost 433,932 1,434,879 350,767 49,124 2,268,702
ZEtEH Accumulated amortisation (433,932) (430,556) - (26,301) (890,789)
RE Impairment - (2,032) (123,630) - (125,662)
FEEE Net carrying amount - 1,002,291 227,137 22,823 1,252,251
—hE—RA—H/ Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated
PR IR 25t EROAE  amortisation and impairment - 1,002,291 227,137 22,823 1,252,251
NE Additions - 43,952 34,595 5,840 84,387
BT Amortisation charge - (95,400) - (1,615) (97,015)
B (P eF27) Impairment (Note 27) - (756,066) - (3,549) (759,615)
R-F—AF+=-H=+—H Netcarrying amount at 31 December 2019
&) AR A% E - 194,777 261,732 23,499 480,008
—nE At 31 December 2019:
+-A=+—-8:
B A Cost 433,932 1,478,831 385,362 54,964 2,353,089
B & Accumulated amortisation (433,932) (525,956) - (27,916) (987,804)
B Impairment - (758,098) (123,630) (3,549) (885,277)
FHEE Net carrying amount - 194,777 261,732 23,499 480,008
RZZ_ZF—-—H—BM Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated
AR B Rt # M@ amortisation and impairment = 194,777 261,732 23,499 480,008
NE Additions - 25,740 40,360 7,834 73,934
I BB PH B 2 =) (P 3E38) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 38) = 90 = = 90
315k Amortisation charge - (25,906) - (2,836) (28,742)
& Disposal - - - (13,141) (13,141)
& BB A Bl (B 3E39) Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 39) - = = (6,528) (6,528)
RZE-ZTHF+-H=+—H8 Netcarrying amount at 31 December 2020
MEEEFE - 194,701 302,092 8,828 505,621
-3 At 31 December 2020:
+—ﬂ:+_51
[N Cost 433,932 1,504,661 425,722 40,523 2,404,838
ESg 1 Accumulated amortisation (433,932) (551,862) - (28,146)  (1,013,940)
WE Impairment - (758,098) (123,630) (3,549) (885,277)
REFE Net carrying amount - 194,701 302,092 8,828 505,621
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8175 5 < Y ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_Z-_Z+-_fA=+—HLLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF LONG-TERM ASSETS
INCLUDING GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the acquired
subsidiaries, which are cash-generating units (“CGUs") for impairment testing.
The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by management. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.
The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
pharmaceutical industry in which the CGU operates.
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BE-F-_FF+-A=T—ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

11. EHHEE(CIEHE)RMME  11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF LONG-TERM ASSETS

- EAE)) INCLUDING GOODWILL (continued)
PHRESHECELEMNNRBPEE (R The carrying amounts of long-term assets including goodwill allocated to each
ERE)EmERmT of the CGUs are as follows:

RZEZZFTF+-A=+—H

As at 31 December 2020

AT+ it E - -BE
HEMK R&E
Prepaid EFEE  Property,
2 land lease Intangible plant and ‘et
Goodwill payments assets equipment Total
ARETRT ARBTRT ARBTR AR¥®TRT AR®BTX
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERINLEE-3 )TN Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical
([HEMMEIE]) Co., Ltd.
("Jilin Sihuan") - 182,548 58,058 410,776 651,382
ShAIB () BR AR Ambest Pharmaceutical
(I8AF0 (R EE) ) (China) Co., Ltd.
(" Ambest (China)") - 56,702 191 48,648 105,541
HMM RS FR A A Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical
(EMEE]) Co., Ltd.
("Jilin Sichang™) - 5,907 40,261 55,265 101,433
REMNBEXEGRAA Changchun Xiangtong
(TR&EARE] Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("Changchun Xiangtong”) - 5,201 17 115,548 120,766
REIEREEEFR A A Benxi Hengkang
([7REER]) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("Benxi Hengkang”) - 27,533 - 105,735 133,268
AP 3R B S5 R A A Shenzhen Sihuan
(REANEIR]) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Sihuan”) - - - 33,709 33,709
JERIIREEH R A A Beijing Sihuan
(Mdemmig]) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Sihuan") - 37,560 109,071 446,882 593,513
HMUERBEZZEGR AR Jilin Sihuan Aokang
(DREEEEE]) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("Aokang Yaoye") - 16,728 23,198 35,182 75,108
EMEFEWREFRAF Jilin Huisheng Biological
(THEWHEFAD Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("Jilin Huisheng”) - 143,677 - 403,893 547,570
HEMEBREETARAA Jilin Aotong Chemical
([EMERE]) Co., Ltd. (“lilin Aotong”) 8,761 14,248 = 35,186 58,195
HEMERBLELITARAA Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd.
([EMEE]D (“Jilin Jiahui") 3,551 6,274 - 32,087 41,912
5T Total 12,312 496,378 230,796 1,722,911 2,462,397
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BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

11. EHHEE(CIEHE)RMME  11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF LONG-TERM ASSETS

p:l e )
W= nE+=-A=+—AR

INCLUDING GOODWILL (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

TER L3 M BE

HERK &S

Prepaid EEEE Property,
B2 land lease  Intangible plant and #E
Goodwill payments assets  equipment Total

ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

=HMIUIR Jilin Sihuan 2,126,800 288,440 81,232 422,456 2,918,928
shFN (R E) Ambest (China) 481,706 58,044 617,551 52,151 1,209,452
HEMEE Jilin Sichang 135,260 6,062 90,569 103,650 335,541
E&EAR Changchun Xiangtong 57,137 5,988 3,451 129,639 196,215
IR B BR Benxi Hengkang 30,870 28,211 11,378 115,024 185,483
IR Shenzhen Sihuan 11,836 - - 44,590 56,426
it R YR Beijing Sihuan 294 38,671 116,030 516,598 671,593
VR SR Aokang Yaoye - 17,111 68,015 156,620 241,746
Bt Total 2,843,903 442,527 988,226 1,540,728 5,815,384

HFER - -TFF_A=+—HEZ
T—NF+_A=Z+—BREEFHEM
WEREERFCRABMRE - TXHELE
BETETRBEAE(RIEHE)RENR
ARHERSREBRARAZSEEE

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the CGUs for 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of long-term assets including goodwill:

B
EFE EEEENBERRRE TSR ENE T AEENE -

Gross profit margins:  Management determined budgeted gross profit margins based on past performance and their expectations of

market development.

ERE AT RERBITEREMEATEDN - -

Growth rates: The average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.

BhIR = AR ERTA  WRREBELNEERRE - EREMAMAERR  AEEL2EZTETRTEL
TRAMNBAE2Y  ZEINAEENKEME  EMEANTREREXNGEHER -

Discount rates: The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units. When determining the

estimated discount rate, the Group used the key parameters by reference to certain listed companies of the same

industry. Given the nature of the Group's business, the discount rate adopted falls within the reasonable range.
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BE-F-_FF+-A=T—ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

11. EHHEE(CIEHE)RMME  11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF LONG-TERM ASSETS

A& ) INCLUDING GOODWILL (continued)
MHEERARPEELMESBZEM For each of the CGUs with a significant amount of long-term assets and
REeELXBAME NIE-_TER- goodwill, gross profit margin, net profit margin, terminal growth rate and
T-NFETERAEBEFEELZMERZ discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations in 2020 and 2019 are as
EFE FME  KmERERAR K follows:
W
A
EMEE  (hE) FHER REME AEEERE RIEE LRME RREE ENER ENEE EMEE
Jilin - Ambest Jilin - Changchun Benxi  Shenzhen Beijing  Aokang Jilin Jilin Jilin

Sihuan (China)  Sichang Xiangtong Hengkang Sihuan Sihuan Yaoye Huisheng  Aotong Jiahui

R-Z-FF  Asat 31 December 2020

TZA

=1-A
EYilk Gross profit margin 91% 87% 77% 3% 69% 49% 78% 52% 63% 25% 25%
FH= Net profit margin 51% 27% 36% 26% 15% 1% 10% -12% 25% -3% 10%
BimERE Terminal growth rate 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
B X Discount rate 2% 22% 21% 19% 19% 18% 20% 15% 19% 18% 19%
prEkE Recoverable amount

(ARBF)  RMB('000) 1,641,212 1,073,766 167,392 138,652 153,230 46,537 751,674 97,731 858,746 64,551 63,332
NEERH Headroom available

(AE®TL)  RMB(000) 989,830 968,225 65,959 17,886 19,962 12,828 158,161 22,623 311,176 6,356 9,065

WZZ—AE  Asat31 December 2019

+-A
o
A% Gross profit margin 72% 47% 63% 62% 60% 37% 75% 46% TR TiER TER
N/A N/A N/A
BHE Net profit margin 39% % 3% 7% 20% 6% 3% 3% T@ER FER TER
N/A N/A N/A
RpERE Terminal growth rate 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% TiEA TER A
N/A N/A N/A
BR% Discount rate 20% 15% 17% 19% 20% 19% 19% 15% TER TEA TER
N/A N/A N/A
THEEE Recoverable amount 727,938 129,105 110,485 136,011 144,289 50,813 588,960 39,465 NER TER TEf
(AREF)  RMB(000) N/A N/A N/A
MEZH Headroom available TR TER TR TER TER TR TEf TER TER TEfA TER
(NE®FL)  RMB(000) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
RFEMETEIRER  AEES2ET S When determining the estimated discounted rate, the Group used the key
FTRTELETARNBESH - ZED parameters by reference to certain listed companies of same industry. Given
REEPLENE  EMEANITIRE the nature of the Group’s business, the discount rate adopted falls within the
BREEBEN - reasonable range.
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8175 5 < Y ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

ARaIR—_E-_FEF+_A=+—HH The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December 2020, all of which are
MEBAT ﬁl H;wT - 2HHAFELE unlisted companies.
BN
FEBRE
HE 25 L B(%)
R Sz/ Proportion
TEEHREE MY BB E ] of interest
Principal Place of i E A held by
DNREB activities and incorporation/ Registered the Group
Name place of operation registration capital (%)
BEERS
Directly held
ROER(FB)ERA REER £ 10,0007 7 100
Sun Moral International (HK) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HKD10,000
BEER(FE)ERIA ERXAHEERE 5 1,000,000 7T 100
Yaojin International (HK) Limited Medical beauty sales and investment Hong Kong HKD1,000,000
MEEE
Indirectly held
BENBREEERAA AR B A e 8 B A E Bl A i AR¥ 100
Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China 200,000,0007t
Co., Ltd.* in Mainland China RMB
200,000,000
It RIIRPGEF R QA ** PA AR B ) A B B B 9 3 AR 100
Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China 50,000,0007T
Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
50,000,000
BRAMNRELEESRRAA KB AR HE S X FRE A B 9 3 ARE 100
Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Provision of information support Mainland China 1,000,0007TC
Information Co., Ltd.** services RMB
in Mainland China 1,000,000
R R O B M B EE Y R B T o B A 3 42 A 3 AR S B 9 3 AR 100
Hainan Sihuan Cardiocerebral Vascular Provision of R&D services Mainland China 6,000,0007T
Drugs Research Institute Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
6,000,000
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BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. RRBRATIMNERE#) 12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

rEEFfE
HE 2t (%)
& B 32/ Proportion
TEETHREXEWE o 3t B of interest
Principal Place of HMEE held by
DNAIEHE activities and incorporation/ Registered the Group
Name place of operation registration capital (%)
BERE (H)
Indirectly held (continued)
RINTIRE R R E]** RABEALEHEEEER B 7 3 AR 100
Shenzhen Sihuan Pharmaceutical Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China 50,000,0007T
Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
50,000,000
WIREFMBEERRAR A F> R B st B B B B F B 9 i AR 75.7547
Xuanzhu Pharma Co., Ltd.** R&D of pharmaceutical products Mainland China 100,000,000t
in Mainland China RMB
100,000,000
B sERARERRAF A B A 3 R 3 B IR AT R B A 4 AR 100
Langfang Gaobo Jingband Manufacture of pharmaceutical Mainland China 30,000,0007T
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** materials RMB
in Mainland China 30,000,000
IEFRE EYH R AR QR A HR B A 12 B B AR S B A i AR 100
Beijing Ao He Research Institute Provision of R&D services Mainland China 3,600,0007T
Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
3,600,000
EMERHEEFR AR P AR B N 4 A B H B A AR 100
Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical Mainland China 62,500,000
products RMB
in Mainland China 62,500,000
RENBEXBRRAF A AR B N 3t B 5 B E T E A AR 80
Changchun Xiangtong Manufacture of pharmaceutical Mainland China 16,880,000
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** products RMB
in Mainland China 16,880,000
BILEEEEFR DA P B N B A E B A3 AR 100
Tonghua Jida Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Marketing of pharmaceutical Mainland China 7,620,0007T
products RMB
in Mainland China 7,620,000
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BE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. RRBRATIMNERE#) 12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

rEEFfE
HE 2t (%)
& B 32/ Proportion
TEEHREXNE o 3t B of interest
Principal Place of HMEE held by
DNAIEHE activities and incorporation/ Registered the Group
Name place of operation registration capital (%)
BEEE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
ASCHEREARAA BB A 3 4% B 1 R HBRAHS 1%£7T 100
Smart Baskets Investment Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands usb1
in Mainland China ("BVI")
BETRLERERER LA ReEBEAETREREERD B 9 3 AR 100
Hainan Litzman Pharmaceutical, HEEE Mainland China 19,500,0007T
Co., Ltd.* Project preparation for the manufacture RMB
of pharmaceutical products 19,500,000
in Mainland China
REERBEFR QA A AR B I 4 B A B E B A 3t AR¥E 100
Benxi Hengkang Pharmaceutical, Manufacture of pharmaceutical Mainland China 21,500,0007T
Co., Ltd.** products RMB
in Mainland China 21,500,000
ERERREELR)BRAR P HR B A R T A E A i AR 51
e-HMO (Beijing) Co., Ltd.** Promotion of technology Mainland China 60,000,0007T
in Mainland China RMB
60,000,000
EMERRREXBR AR A B A B R TE B B AR 100
Jilin Sihuan Aokang Pharmaceutical Construction for medical project Mainland China 334,440,0007T
Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
334,440,000
EMEER AR A R A HR B A A A T EI A AR 51
Jilin Sihuan Technology Co., Ltd.** Promotion of technology Mainland China 10,300,0007T
in Mainland China RMB
10,300,000
EMEER G ARG R A A FA H B ) 3 Bl A ARH 53
Jilin Sihuan Haisikaier Promotion of technology Mainland China 18,870,0007T
Technology Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
18,870,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. RMB AR HNKRE »)

12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

rEEFfE
HE 2t (%)
& B 32/ Proportion
TEETHREXEWE o 3t B of interest
Principal Place of HMEE held by
DNAIEHE activities and incorporation/ Registered the Group
Name place of operation registration capital (%)
BEEE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
EMIRRRERR QA RAEBEALREEEER B 7 3 AR 100
Jilin Zhen'ao Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical Mainland China 58,500,0007T
products RMB
in Mainland China 58,500,000
EMRFREFR AR R B A 8 5 2 B 9 3 AR 100
Jilin Jinsheng Pharmaceutical Manufacture of pharmaceutical Mainland China 19,500,000t
Co., Ltd.** products RMB
in Mainland China 19,500,000
EMBEEENR(EHR)ARA A P AR B N B A E B A AR¥E 100
Shengke Aesthetic Medicine Marketing of pharmaceutical Mainland China 10,000,0007T
PharmaSciences (Jilin) products RMB
Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China 10,000,000
TREEREERBZER DA R B A R RIR R ARS REA AR 70
Beijing Boaotai PharmaSciences Promotion of technology and Mainland China 4,500,0007T
Co., Ltd.** consulting services RMB
in Mainland China 4,500,000
BHLEREERBRAA P BT N 4 45 4 R B A AR 100
Longyu Hongda Investment Investment holding Mainland China 100,000,000t
Management Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
100,000,000
AR EREEFR AR A AR B N 4 B R E TE A AR 100
Xizang Kangxin Pharmaceutical Marketing of pharmaceutical Mainland China 50,000,0007t
Co., Ltd.** products RMB
in Mainland China 50,000,000
EMERBEFR AR PA AR B N A B R E B3 AR 100
Jilin Huikang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical Mainland China 30,000,0007T
products RMB
in Mainland China 30,000,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. RRBRATIMNERE#) 12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

rEBE
HE 2t (%)
& B 32/ Proportion
TEETHREXEWE o 3t B of interest
Principal Place of HMEE held by
DNAIEHE activities and incorporation/ Registered the Group
Name place of operation registration capital (%)
BERE (H)
Indirectly held (continued)
EMABICIBRA AN A AR B N ¢t B A E B 7 3 AR 100
Jilin Shengtong Chemical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical Mainland China 100,000,0007T
products RMB
in Mainland China 100,000,000
BILEIBERARBEERAR (A PA AR I I 3 4R R R B AR B A i AR 100
BILFRBROMAFARBERAE])**  Provision of R&D services Mainland China 43,000,0007¢
Tonghua Chuangyou Testing in Mainland China RMB
Service Co., Ltd. (Formerly known as 43,000,000
“Tonghua Zhongjian Analysis
Testing Services Co., Ltd.")**
LB EEH R A Al* PA AR I I 3 4 B B AR 7 B A AR 100
Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) Provision of R&D services Mainland China 50,000,0007T
Co., Ltd.* in Mainland China RMB
50,000,000
EEMARBRERAR A A AR B 4t 4R — R B8 B IR 7% % B 79 3 N 60
Xiqu Hospital (Chongging) BREERY Mainland China 240,000,0007T
Management Co., Ltd.** Provision of general hospital services RMB
and hospital management 240,000,000
services
in Mainland China
EMEREEFR QA REBEAMREREEREER B AR 51
Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture and sale of Mainland China 28,300,000
pharmaceutical products RMB
in Mainland China 28,300,000
EEMAEERARA AN PA AR B 4 R — AR B B AR 7% HE A i AR 60
Xigu Hospital (Chongqing) Co., Ltd.** Provision of general Mainland China 240,000,0007T
hospital services RMB
in Mainland China 240,000,000
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12. RRBRATIMNERE#) 12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

rEEFfE
HE 2t (%)
& B 32/ Proportion
TEEHREXNE o 3t B of interest
Principal Place of HMEE held by
DNAIEHE activities and incorporation/ Registered the Group
Name place of operation registration capital (%)
BEEE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
Radiant (Hong Kong) Investment MERE REBEZES 50,0003 7T 100
Limited Property investment BVI UsD50,000
EMEEESEERRBR AR R B A 4R 15 B R R B 9 3 ARHE 100
Jilin Weichuang Henghe Provision of information support Mainland China 1,000,0007T
Information Technology services RMB
Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China 1,000,000
EFEMERERIEBERA A R B AR IRRIE B B A AR 100
Jilin Zesheng Environmental Construction for environmental Mainland China 30,000,0007T
Protection Engineering Co., Ltd.** protection projects RMB
in Mainland China 30,000,000
EMREARYLHERBR AR A HR B A 3 B 8 B E HEl A AR 100
Jilin Jinsheng Yingkai Marketing Marketing of pharmaceutical Mainland China 1,000,0007TC
Management Co., Ltd.** products RMB
in Mainland China 1,000,000
SMBD COMPANY LIMITED REBERMEESREERS xE 1%7T 100
Provision of business and United States usD1
development services
in the United States
HMBERMKERAA RASHSREHRERS HEMS 700,000,000 100
Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Ltd. Provision of R&D services Cayman Islands E
in Cayman Islands usb
700,000,000
HM(BB)BENRAERDA REBEBREHE RS B 10,000 100
Xuanzhu (HK) Biopharmaceutical Provision of R&D services Hong Kong BT
Limited in Hong Kong HKD
10,000
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12. RRBRATIMNERE#) 12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

rEEFfE
HE 2t (%)
& B 32/ Proportion
TEETHREXEWE o 3t B of interest
Principal Place of HMEE held by
DNAIEHE activities and incorporation/ Registered the Group
Name place of operation registration capital (%)
BERE (H)
Indirectly held (continued)
HEMEMRRAR AR (A T B 7 3t 42 B B AR 7 B 9 3, AR 75.7547
HMOBM)BEMEARRA)*** Provision of R&D services Mainland China 1,412,857,1437C
Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical in Mainland China RMB
Co., Ltd. (Formerly known 1,412,857,143
as “Xuanzhu (Hainan)
Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.")***
HEZEIBEFR QA A AR B P B R R B B RS A B A it AR 51
YiChun Jin Chuang Pharma Co., Ltd.** Wholesale of chemical raw Mainland China 1,000,0007TC
materials and medical devices RMB
in Mainland China 1,000,000
EMEFENREFR AR R B A 8 5 2 B 9 3 AR 100
Jilin Huisheng Biological Manufacture of pharmaceutical Mainland China 30,000,000t
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** products RMB
in Mainland China 30,000,000
XBD COMPANY LIMITED 1A 3 B 12 B 7 3 AR 75 xH 1%7T 100
Provision of R&D services United States usD1
in the United States
EREEEHEMBEARAR (AR RNPRAMEFEEEER Bl AR 100
ERBEXEENEULR) Marketing of pharmaceutical Mainland China 500,0007T
BRARF)** products RMB
Beijing Meiyan Space Biomedical in Mainland China 500,000
Co., Ltd. (Formerly known as
“Shengke Aesthetic Medical
PharmSciences (Beijing) Co., Ltd.")**
HEMULR)BER AR QA FA HR B A 3 42 1 B 2 PR 7 HE A i ARH 75.7547
XuanZhu (Beijing) Pharm Co., Ltd.** Provision of R&D services Mainland China 560,000,0007T
in Mainland China RMB
560,000,000
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12. RRBRATIMNERE#) 12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

rEEFfE
HE 2t (%)
& B 32/ Proportion
TEETHREXEWE o 3t B of interest
Principal Place of HMEE held by
DNAIEHE activities and incorporation/ Registered the Group
Name place of operation registration capital (%)
BEEE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
REBAEDHEGRRE* A R B A 12 B B AR S HE A AR 100
Changchun Huisheng Biological Provision of R&D services Mainland China 10,000,0007T
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
10,000,000
TREZEEDRBEBER DA A o B A 42 L P B AR S B 9 3 AR 100
Beijing Huizhiheng Biological Provision of R&D services Mainland China 10,000,000t
Technology Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
10,000,000
ERBAENRRBR AR B H B 1A 3 42 £ B 2 PR 75 B A AR 100
Beijing Huisheng Biological Provision of R&D services Mainland China 10,000,0007T
Technology Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
10,000,000
AL R)EFEHBE AR QA A AR B N 3 2 B E A E A i AR 100
Nectarine (Beijing) e-commerce Marketing of pharmaceutical Mainland China 10,000,0007T
Co., Ltd.** products RMB
in Mainland China 10,000,000
It R AR ERBR A A PR B N B R E HEl A ARE 100
Beijing Lianben Technology Marketing of pharmaceutical Mainland China 1,000,0007TC
Development Co., Ltd.** products RMB
in Mainland China 1,000,000
IR AR B BRI R R R BA R B A 3 42 £ B 2 PR 7% T E A ARH 100
Beijing Lianben Pharmaceutical Provision of R&D services Mainland China 3,000,0007T
Chemical Technology Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
3,000,000
EMEBEIERD A P B N B B E B3 AR 100
Jilin Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical Mainland China 28,000,0007T
products RMB
in Mainland China 28,000,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. RRBRATIMNERE#) 12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

rEEFfE
HE 2t (%)
& B 32/ Proportion
TEETHREXEWE o 3t B of interest
Principal Place of HMEE held by
DNAIEHE activities and incorporation/ Registered the Group
Name place of operation registration capital (%)
BERE (H)
Indirectly held (continued)
EMERBEIBRAE RAEBEALREEEER B 7 3 AR 60
Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical Mainland China 10,000,0007T
products RMB
in Mainland China 10,000,000
BlOBBEREMEERER AR KB A & B2 E R B 9 3 AR 100
Tonghua Hongji Health Marketing of pharmaceutical Mainland China 4,380,0007T
Technology Management products RMB
Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China 4,380,000
EROREDRMELAADBRAA > A B R 4R A4 W) Bl 5 B R 75 A B 9 3 AR 100
Jilin Sihuan Biotechnology Information Provision of Biotechnology Mainland China 3,000,000t
Consulting Co., Ltd.** promotion service RMB
in Mainland China 3,000,000
BEBHRERLAR AR T o B A 3t 52 P 3 AR S B A AR 75.7547
HaiNan HuiXuan Pharma Co., Ltd.** Provision of R&D services Mainland China 8,000,0007T
in Mainland China RMB
8,000,000
EMAEMERMIESHERAERAR > R BEA 1R G YR B RS T E A AR 100
Jilin Beisi Biotechnology Information Provision of Biotechnology Mainland China 3,000,000t
Consulting Co., Ltd.** promotion service RMB
in Mainland China 3,000,000
EFORBAZERBRAR AR B o B A 3 42 £ B 2 PR 75 Bl ARY 100
Beijing Meiyan Space Provision of R&D services Mainland China 30,000,0007T
Technology Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
30,000,000
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TZ_TF+_A=+—BLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. RIBE 2 B WIRE ) 12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
rEBE
E 25 b (%)
& B 32/ Proportion
TEETHREXEWE =11 3t B of interest
Principal Place of HMEE held by
DNAIEHE activities and incorporation/ Registered the Group
Name place of operation registration capital (%)
BERE (H)
Indirectly held (continued)
ZEEMBR (EWR)BR DA RAEAEEE R A B A it AR 100
Jinhui Biological Technology Manufacture of medical instruments Mainland China 10,000,0007T
(Jilin) Co., Ltd.** in Mainland China RMB
10,000,000
REBECER) - ABRAF REFHERBERA e SR P9 #25,0007T 100
Sun Moral International Manufacture of medical instruments Macau Macau Pataca
(Macau) Limited in Macau (“MOP")
25,000
* ZERADNREFEEEFMAING * These subsidiaries were registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprises under PRC

214

BEDE -

o ZREARDBRETEERIMAER
BEERA -

x ZABDNREFEAEEIMAINEER
AhE-

RZTEZEF+_A=+—8 " K3k
EMBRAMEIETEREZNAR
#758,383,000L(Z T — N F : AR
#335,510,0007T) * BLERIM 5 I =
j( o

RZTEZEF+_A=+—H He
NGB TF A A R 8 2,411,477,000 7T
—ET-hEFE+ZA=1+—H:  AR%
4,636,457,0007T ) J5 B B A Hi #Y B B
RNEERE  WASEHINEE F18 616
IR o ZEH T INEE SR G P B A
WHEHES (WIHFBEBEERE)EINR
il o

law.

xx These subsidiaries were registered as limited liability companies under PRC law.

***  This subsidiary was registered as a foreign-invested enterprise under PRC law.

The total non-controlling interests in non-wholly-owned subsidiaries at
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB758,383,000 (2019:
RMB335,510,000), which are individually not material.

At 31 December 2020, cash and short-term deposits approximately
RMB2,411,477,000 (31 December 2019: RMB4,636,457,000) were held in
subsidiaries in Mainland China and were subject to local exchange control
regulations. These local exchange control regulations impose restrictions on
exporting capital from Mainland China, other than through normal dividends.
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BE-Z-_ZF+_A=+—HBLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. FAERETENRE 13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD

R+=—B=+-—H
As at 31 December

—EZEH —E-NF

2020 2019

AR® T ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

EIEEEFE Share of net assets 583,326 658,415

1T B B 0 P Goodwill on acquisition 487,061 516,964

1,070,387 1,175,379

A REE Provision for impairment - (91,521)

1,070,387 1,083,858

—E-EHE —E-NF

2020 2019

AR T AR®ET T

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

R—HA—HHNE & & Opening balance at 1 January 1,083,858 1,168,623

AN 2 A () Addition of associates (i) 98,426 -

M—XEABHEQARILE Capital contribution to an existing associate - 3,946

A—FRIBAE A S DELEG) Capital contribution to an existing joint venture (ii) 6,865 10,000

R E QR (M FE39) Derecognition of associates (Note 39) (72,937) -

WIEEREE D E(MFE39) Derecognition of joint ventures (Note 39) (109,789) -
BIEHREBE A ZHEEN Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate (iii)

U 25 (i) (M 7£26) (Note 26) 80,488 -
FRRE (M §E27) Impairment during the year (Note 27) - (91,521)
JEREtE N B MA S ER %L Share of post-tax profits and losses of associates

(B4 5£35) and joint ventures (Note 35) (16,524) (7,190)
RTZRB=+—HBHFREH Closing balance at 31 December 1,070,387 1,083,858
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HEZ

13. FABRENENRE®

216

AEBERENTNAELEFENE
SERBEREIERBDEEL G D BN
HHERMF17RISHE -

@)

(if)

(iii)

RZZE_ZTFHEA  AEEDH
LA A R #48,000,000 T & A R #
50,426,000 7T #) ¥ (& + Y g It
5 BT A BR A A &R I (A
SE)EERGBR A F28.64%
K 30%H) iR 1 o

7N % [ BStrides  Pharma  Global
Pte Ltd I —REZ R H
AEEEBSI%HBRE R =F
—ZEF+ZA=1+—H *X&KH
EIEARE EARHFITI,2005% T
(FEE R K AR%6,865,0005T) °

FA -BARKEEZ KB E QT
MEMESHEANLIE  AEH
INEZR RN S D
TER AEBRDEHABEZ
RBAERBEATEN  HWED

REEBBERE - KEBRE
HAHSRIELEREARE

80,488,0007T °

13.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQU'TY METHOD (continued)

The Group’s trade receivables and non-current assets balances related from

associates and joint ventures are respectively disclosed in Notes 17 and 15 to

the Financial Statements.

()

(ii)

(iii)

In May 2020, the Group acquired a 28.64% equity in Beijing ChemPion
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. and a 30% equity in Zhongrui (Inner Mongolia)
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. at considerations of RMB48,000,000 and
RMB50,426,000, respectively.

The Group and Strides Pharma Global Pte Ltd. have established a
joint venture in which the Group owned a 51% equity interest. As
at 31 December 2020, total capital of USD979,200 (equivalent to
approximately RMB6,865,000) by cash has been injected by the Group.

During the year, the Group's interest in an associate was diluted
due to the capital injection by other equity holders of the respective
associate. Following the capital injection, the Group continues to
exercise significant influence over the respective associate and therefore
it remains as an associate of the Group. The Group recorded a gain on

deemed disposal of RMB80,488,000 in profit or loss.
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HEER

Name of entity

ALY

R E N

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS

ZEFE+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

HEZ

13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQU'TY METHOD (continued)

As listed below is an associate of the Group as at 31 December 2020, which, in

the opinion of the directors, is material to the Group. The associate has share

capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held indirectly by the

Group.

= AL R
=E 3
Place of

incorporation
and operation

HEEREERELA
Proportion of
ownership interest

FRER

Principal activities

CHEEERAERAR(CI®EE])
Renfang Medical Holdings Ltd.
("Renfang Medical”)

&m»r
o

ERARBEREB/LAR
I & %WEoIﬁﬁﬁ$%@
ERFREELERENRAR

R

N
>

1

\
)

=
g

il

e

H+

& o

REREZES
BVI

38.14%

RE-—REBERE R
Bl ERR%

Provision of general hospital

services and hospital

management services

The associates and joint ventures are private companies and there are no

quoted market prices available for these shares. There are no contingent

liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in the associates and joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_Z-_TF+_A=1+—HLHFE

13. EAERETENRE® 13,

TXHINBERRREELENWBE

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQU ITY METHOD (continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the associates and

BHEE - joint ventures.
BB ERBE Summarised statements of financial position
HiheE A REEE
—HEE Other associates and
Renfang Medical joint ventures
R+=-—A=+—8 R+=-—A=+—8H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
—E_EF —ZE-NF ZBZTFE =ZT-NF
2020 2019 2020 2019
ARBTRT ARETRT AR®BTRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
mED Current
BE Assets 682,041 635,617 917,015 388,294
Bf& Liabilities (190,058) (181,533) (856,773) (613,439)
REBEE/(AE) Total net current assets/(liabilities)
FE 491,983 454,084 60,242 (225,145)
ERB Non-current
BE Assets 645,736 680,554 572,368 1,004,420
B8 & Liabilities (28,896) (28,961) (273,446) (197,469)
BEIERBEEFE Total net non-current assets 616,840 651,593 298,922 806,951
FE Net assets 1,108,823 1,105,677 359,164 581,806
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BE_ZT_ZF+_A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. RS EHEN®’RE )  13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQU'TY METHOD (continued)

BEREREE Summarised statements of profit or loss
HiteE A AARGELE
—HEE Other associates and
Renfang Medical joint ventures

—R-RF —T-NEF ZB-RF —T-NF

2020 2019 2020 2019

ARBTRT ARBTT AR¥TFRT ARETET

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

U 2% Revenue 493,477 564,428 402,043 290,960
bR FT 15 5 B A1)/ Profit/(loss) before income tax

(&518) 7,796 45,407 (50,687) (74,938)

Frigfif & Income tax expense (4,650) (14,180) (13,869) (10,363)

FEEF/(E1E) Profit/(loss) for the year 3,146 31,227 (64,556) (85,301)

2EBA/(FE) Total comprehensive income/(loss) 3,146 31,227 (64,556) (85,301)

A EER BB SN E A ERENET
BwEMEI A KB EB = A F &
ERECENEHRERZAMARN S
LER

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial
statements of the associates and joint ventures adjusted for differences in
accounting policies among the Group and the associates and joint ventures.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. RS EHEN®’RE )  13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQU'TY METHOD (continued)

HMEERZHER Reconciliation of summarised financial information
2P BERBERERBENR RS Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the
EOERIEMENYE - carrying amount of its interests in associates and joint ventures.

HitBEARARGELE

CHER Other associates and
Renfang Medical joint ventures
ZE-EF _—T-NEFE ZBZEBH _T-hF
2020 2019 2020 2019
ARBTRT ARETT AR®TR AR®BTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—H/ Opening net assets at 1 January
FUEEFE 1,105,677 1,074,450 581,806 648,581
fREREFE Capital injection by shareholders - - 195,816 18,526
BB AR A RAEMDE Addition of associates and joint ventures = - 230,072 -
FE A () Profit/(loss) for the year 3,146 31,227 (64,556) (85,301)
I REREE A A Derecognition of associates = - (583,974) -
RT-_A=1+—HHW Closing net assets at 31 December
FREEFE 1,108,823 1,105,677 359,164 581,806
REE DT RASDER Interests in associates and joint ventures
= 422,905 421,705 160,421 236,710
[EES Goodwill - - 487,061 516,964
BREE Carrying value 422,905 421,705 647,482 753,674
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BE-Z-_ZF+_A=+—HBLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. MDA FETAEZHEE  14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

BE PROFIT OR LOSS
TXFEAREERREHRABTAERN Set out below is an overview of financial assets, other than cash and cash
SHEEHRENMRSEBYURE IR equivalents and trade and other receivables, held by the Group as at the end of
H R UAR KRN B E the reporting period:
R+=-—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—EZEF —E-hF
2020 2019
M 71 AR TR ARBFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
E Non-current
BEATEFAEBEGNEREE - Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
BAFEFENIELTRERE Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 196,153 174,220
FnBEE Total non-current i) 196,153 174,220
E Current
BATFEFAEGHNESREE - Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
B E® Wealth management products 332,683 148,336
TENAEER Total current (ii) 332,683 148,336
Rttt @MEEEE Total other financial assets 528,836 322,556
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BE T _THFE+_A=+—HBItFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. BAFEFAEEZENEH
BE )

MR ZZEZZFF A=+ —HHOR
EREDBEREAFEFABENSR
BE AR AEETEERENEMGS
kR AFERER -

222

@)

(if)

% 3% 1B #8 FAKBP Biosciences
Holdings Limited - Lindeman Asia
No.12  Investment Fund -~ DJS
Antibodies  Limited &zAscendum
Healthcare Fund3F 4 & % 5
WIRERE - AEEBRATRR
REFEZEERRKRG - BAEL
AREMEEEESEREAT
Bt AR 2EYE -

ZRBEEATEABETEER
HRRTTETEBENTNEY
Em %ERPERKAH DA
REXATEFABRGZNESHE
E-FAREAHNRERELIFE
RS RHBARK -

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The above equity investments at 31 December 2020 were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group has not elected to
recognise the fair value gain or loss through other comprehensive income.

(i) The amount represents equity investments in the unquoted equity shares
of KBP Biosciences Holdings Limited, Lindeman Asia No.12 Investment
Fund, DJS Antibodies Limited and Ascendum Healthcare Fund. The
Group intends to hold these equity shares for the foreseeable future and
has not irrevocably elected to classify them at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

(i) The amount represents wealth management products issued by certain
reputable banks in Mainland China with no fixed interest rate. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal
and interest.
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BE-Z-_ZF+_A=+—HBLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—EZEH —E-hF
2020 2019
M 3% AR TR ARBFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BN &N Loans to associates (i)/40 243,770 222,460
H A R U BR R Other receivables 110,000 110,000
HERMEEMNTRMNZRIE Prepayments for purchase of
long-term assets 14,099 6,154
367,869 338,614

(i)

Al —ME 2 AB M LER A B
BRAR(MHLERTDERD
R BEMRAR=FAEE -

m—EBE AR R ERES
RAR(TIEREEEDERII
EtRBENT AR REFEL
BERMAEERETRAINI%
ESERBET AL 10% RS EE
B EFR-—FRAEMARE
33,000,000 7T & 7A T F A FE A
R #123,770,0007T ° # BIRTF
5% & ©

(i) The loan to an associate, Pharmadax (Foshan) Co., Ltd. (“Pharmadax
(Foshan)”), was non-interest-bearing, unsecured, repayable in three
years.

The loan to an associate, Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Ruiye”), was secured by the 15% equity interest in and pledged
with the 10% equity interest in Beijing Ruiye’s parent company, Beijing
Ruiye Economic Technology Development Co., Ltd, among which
RMB33,000,000 was payable in one year and RMB123,770,000 was
payable in five years. Interest is charged at 5% annually.

16. 7 & 16. INVENTORIES
R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EZEHE —E-NF
2020 2019
AR® T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR Raw materials 197,995 179,744
M Work in progress 155,820 112,701
BURY mh Finished goods 152,526 117,588
506,341 410,033
FERE Provision for inventories (10,452) (438)
495,889 409,595
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

17. EZ K H ft B U BR K 17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E_EF —E-hF
2020 2019
Ff 51 AR TR ARBFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EoREKER -F=7H Trade receivables — third parties (i) 272,514 158,640
W E1E Notes receivable (i) 128,427 137,166
TE AT 4L FE g FRIB Prepayments to suppliers 150,618 116,882
Al B & N R E K Loans to associates (iiiy/40 113,445 79,326
ER—REEEEZHRIE Amount due from a joint venture 40 675 -
JE M5 L A Bk 5 RKIR Amounts due from other related parties 40 16,300 9,600
H b B YR BR 3K Other receivables (iv) 316,523 132,065
998,502 633,679
E 5 W RSO E B E Provision of impairment
on trade receivables (i) (11,123) (3,606)
H i FE URR FOR B B E Provision of impairment
on other receivables (iv) (15.839) -
971,540 630,073
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HE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continueq)

@)

Trade receivables — third parties

BR+=—B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-EHF —T—N j‘E’E
2020 2019
AR® T ARBEF T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
g5 EIER Trade receivables 272,514 158,640
VoREREE Provision of impairment (11,123) (3,606)
261,391 155,034

AEEBEEPZXS5HERTIE
%uﬁ%ﬁfﬁ”'ﬁﬁgﬁ—
AR ﬁﬁﬁ KRN o EEH—
R=E 'ﬂmix%ﬁ%ﬁ;
EEREAREA - BEFEBER
REELER - REBE D R@EFHY
HAREEBWRIA ZBABIES
ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ*%*%%
BERERR -BHERSHS

%ﬁ@i%ﬁﬁ°%%i¥%u
RALENE S EYRFTOS IR
EXRAREP UESEXRERAR
SR o AKEYEE SRR
REBRFAEAMERRREME
RER -BHRBERRRE -

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally three months, extending up to
six months for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

17. EZ REMEWRR @) 17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
() EBFEWRER-F=7H(HE) (i) Trade receivables — third parties (continued)
EM&&E‘: R - B 5 REWERRIZE An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
FEHBRELNRES AT (&N period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:
FREE)
R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-EH —ZT-NF
2020 2019
AR¥FT T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
3E AR Within 3 months 225,443 135,426
32618 A 3 to 6 months 22,101 13,114
6fE A =14 6 months to 1 year 8,602 5,512
1 More than 1 year 5,245 982
261,391 155,034
MNERE DK AREEREEE An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
TREST Lt ERHEEE provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
B -BEXRDERE S EWER are based on ageing of trade receivables. The calculation reflects the
HBEHRET - Xt E MR X probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
AR EERNELMPREREAR and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
HA SN EBEEETEEE - Eaik about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
TR RGBSR G TERANE B R conditions.
AISEE R o
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BE_ZT_ZF+_A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

17. EZRHEMEWRR @ 17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(i BIRKER-F=H#E) (i) Trade receivables — third parties (continued)
Ti%%éﬁ‘] RAEEEZ S REKER Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
FRREBEENEERRMNE Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:
#
R-E-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2020
B 5 EWRERRNERR
Ageing of trade receivables
D15
Less than 1225 2E3F HEIB3EF

1year 1to2years 2to3years Over 3 years

TEHE B B i Expected credit loss rate 2.26% 17.47% 81.55% 100.00%
st

Total

AR®BTr AR¥Trx AR¥Trx AR®BTrT AR®BTx

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BIRHEE Gross carrying amount 262,073 5,805 2,463 2,173 272,514
EBHEEEIE Expected credit losses 5,927 1,014 2,009 2,173 11,123
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

17. BE5 R E A B AR = () 17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(i) EWEEEHFPEAHESHATR (i) The notes receivable represents the irrevocable bank bills issued by the
Re BT T A B ET banks in the Mainland China with high credit ratings.
EXE
(i) MEEATNERNAMANT (i) The breakdown of loans to associates is as follows:
R+=BA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-EF —ZE—-hF
2020 2019
Ff 71 ARBT T ARBFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BIEREREFR QA Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (a) 78,033 75,105
R E Beijing Ruiye (b) 33,000 3,554
CHEE Renfang Medical (0) 2,412 667
113,445 79,326

mkig/ﬂjkftiﬂ%‘l
ERAR(TBLERE]DE
RBEERASARE
60,000,00075&%I BARY
18,033,0007T) Jh £ K 4 &
BREBNREREE - FIBR
BEATS%:TE

B A DRI R EER T

LAAE RS B & R Bl

¥EBERMHAERREER

BIEY15%HE 25 EIR IR A0 A 5

10% R IEE W - FI BT
FS5%arE -

MEERRCHEREERA
BB EERBRAREKRE

The loan to an associate, Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("Tonghua Tianshi”), including a loan principal of RMB60,000,000 and
interest amounting to RMB18,033,000, was unsecured and repayable
in full on demand. Interest is charged at 4.75% annually.

The loan to an associate, Beijing Ruiye, was secured by the 15%
equity interest and pledged with the 10% equity interest in Beijing
Ruiye's parent company, Beijing Ruiye Economic Technology
Development Co., Ltd.. Interest is charged at 5% annually.

The loan to an associate, Renfang Medical, was non-interest-
bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand.
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(iv) HfhEWEREHERES -
HEEFRDNK2EREHBE
&5 18 50 8% K 3 R 15 PR B 18 R OR (A
Bt o B E SR EE R IREDL S
DA S BRER BB O R TR ORI R 2R 4%
BIEMR ©

RZZE_ZEF+=-A=+—8"
RNEE B EE B RE LERE
955 5T 1 I 7 57 H b B UL BR SRR
B #H AR 15,839,000 (==
—NFE+=ZA=+—H8: &) -

18. RERBEEBYREE
RN
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continueq)

(iv)  Other receivables mainly represent deposits with suppliers. Expected
credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate
is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate.

The Group assessed and recognised a provision of impairment for other
receivables amounting to RMB15,839,000 (31 December 2019: Nil) in
accordance with IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2020.

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

R+=-—A=+—8

As at 31 December
—EB-EHF —ZF—N j‘fﬁ
2020 2019
ARET T ARBETF T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
e LIRTES Cash and bank balances 2,947,415 4,590,971
THFR Time deposits 1,801,174 526,172
4,748,589 5,117,143

B B E TR (K EE25) Less: Pledged deposits (Note 25)

-BITERER — Pledge for interest-bearing bank borrowings 144,548 -
Be B EHEED Cash and cash equivalents 4,604,041 5,117,143

RITHESBRABERITHERANERGFED
FEREAS - RTAEEBFIESH
KmE REEBERREN T —RE=
BRAMTRBBEL WikHEAEEE
B AR R RER S - RITHEBR KRB E
WERFRROCBEEEZEANELEEER
FEYRTT o

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and
three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.
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18. AR IREEEYREHE  18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
HER® DEPOSITS (continued)
AEBUEREAHENA SRR EE The Group's cash and cash equivalents at each reporting date are denominated
AT E B EE in the following currencies:
Rt+=-—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—EZEF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR® TR AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 4,400,045 5,056,127
BT HKD 165,600 5,421
ETT usD 16,546 53,888
LT EUR 21,838 1,707
R PTH MOP 12 -
4,604,041 5,117,143

230

ARBTAEBABSEMERE A
- RE ESMNEE R E N RAEE
EERNEEESRTE AKREEEER
ERTETIEXRBZRITHABARE
REMEE -

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.
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19. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

BERITR
BEERER
EE #A
ZERHE Number of
Number of issued and
authorised fully paid S B’ 5% E
ordinary ordinary Share Share et
shares shares capital premium Total
T’ TR AR¥®Tr AR®BTx AR%®TxR
Share’000 Share’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-_Z—NRF—H—H Asat 1 January 2019 100,000,000 9,471,082 78,233 4,093,317 4,171,550
FEZEH Movement for the year
R REHERKRD Repurchase and cancellation of
(Ff 3EG) shares (Note (7)) - (5,400) (47) (8,471) (8,518)
RZZE—NF As at 31 December 2019,
+=—A=+—80" 1 January 2020
—ZE-TF—H—H and 31 December 2020
F_E-_THF (HK$0.01 per share)
+ZA=+—8
(BREE0.015BT) 100,000,000 9,465,682 78,186 4,084,846 4,163,032
(i) RZE—HER  KATALER (i) During the year of 2019, the Company repurchased 5,400,000 shares of

89,690,000 T (BIESHEMZ)
(HEE R AR¥S,518,0007T ) A B
X P 8 [B] 5,400,000 8% B {7 A
—E-NAF+ZA=+—H" AT
BEEERMHE I -

FE

B

s

& ANNUAL REPORT 2020

its own shares on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration, including
expenses, of HK$9,690,000 (equivalent to RMBS8,518,000). As at 31
December 2019, these repurchased shares were cancelled.
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20. HttRERRE BRI

20. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

H Bl
EEMES H i E R & & F
PRC statutory Other st Retained
reserve fund reserve Total earnings
ARBTR ARBTRT AR®TR AR%®Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZE—N\F At 31 December 2018 and
+=—A=+—8H at 1 January 2019
R-—ZE—h&—H—H 310,041 (150,410) 159,631 8,179,232
FEEE Loss for the year - - - (2,753,332)
& 8 (P 7E34) Dividends (Note 34) - - - (160,987)
& B B {0 2 Bh &t & Employee share award scheme
- EERBEE - Value of employee services
(P 3E30) (Note 30) - 353 353 -
T dl 2B /AT  Changes in interests in subsidiaries
BnER without change of control - 18,755 18,755 -
2% % A ERE £ () Transfer to PRC statutory reserve fund (i) 13,935 - 13,935 (13,935)
—E-NF At 31 December 2019 and
+=—RA=+—8HM at 1 January 2020
R-ZE-_ZEF—HF—H 323,976 (131,302) 192,674 5,250,978
FE 5w F Profit for the year - - - 473,382
fi& B (P 7E34) Dividends (Note 34) - - - (1,419,852)
BB B in 2Bt &) Employee share award scheme
-EERBKER - Value of employee services
(Fff 5%30) (Note 30) - 23,176 23,176 -
T gl 2B AT  Changes in interests in subsidiaries
EmEE without change of control = 506,952 506,952 =
2% %= h BA E R £ () Transfer to PRC statutory reserve fund (i) 2,420 - 2,420 (2,420)
RZEZEF At 31 December 2020
+=-—A=+—H 326,396 398,826 725,222 4,302,088
() AAFRFEROHEAFEER (i) The Company's subsidiaries in the PRC are required to follow the laws

TEAMENRBIIAEEES
MABERAR - ZEFWE LA
AREZSVBREENAMNHE
PI0%DEEEFES  BEEZE
THBEINEZEETMELRD
50% ° &% [ & 2 7] RN ERIS IR R
REMAEIELRER AR EE
REBRIAMNIEE - ZHES
AR AR A AR 2R OF 8 B I
gh) o
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shareholders except in the case of liquidation.

and regulations of the Mainland China and their respective articles of
association. These subsidiaries are required to allocate at least 10%
of their net profits for each financial year to the reserve fund until the
balance of such fund has reached 50% of their respective registered
capital. The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the
shareholders’ meeting or similar authorities, to offset accumulated losses
or increase capital. The reserve fund is not available for distribution to
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21. OTHER LIABILITIES
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R+=—A=+—8H

As at 31 December
—E-EF —E-hF
2020 2019
AR TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
i 3 R T HE BAG) Deferred government grants (i) 75,224 81,276
H At 5 3R Other borrowings (ii) 32,000 9,000
107,224 90,276

o mEN AR D Less: current portion
I AE TSRS 48 B () Deferred government grants (i) 10,480 10,602
H At & 3R Other borrowings (ii) 4,000 -
14,480 10,602
FERB) B Non-current portion 92,744 79,674
() EHEREZRVE BEREKHM (i) It represents the deferred revenue of government grants received for the

U B B SR SE B fB B W aE o B H
NEREEBRAFHARERE

PN TR P

iy HiEpREAEE-—RHEEL
A F 2 B R B0 £ R

28,000,0007T (It f& X

BERERARNFRER) kKB
5 =77 K FT & A R %4,000,000
TR FRFTE - EEREER

—FREE) -

construction of property, plant and equipment. It will be credited to the

consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

expected lives of the related assets.

(i) It represents the borrowing amounting to RMB28,000,000 from non-

controlling shareholders of the Group’s a subsidiary, which is interest-

bearing, unsecured and repayable in nine years, and a new borrowing
amounting to RMB4,000,000 from a third party which is interest-
bearing, unsecured and repayable in one year.
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22. B REMENERR 22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—EB-EHF —ZE—N fﬁ
2020 2019
AR TR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 R RG) Trade payables (i) 106,201 65,719
FE AT 3 3R K A I 3R 8 BR B SR IR Costs of construction and purchase of
equipment payables 105,544 49,197
Wz B BT /B A &) FE A BR 3K Payable for acquisitions of subsidiaries 346,500 300,000
iR e Deposit payables 187,169 223,469
JE A 9> 85 7 A FE BT 4 (8 Accrued reimbursement to distributors 914,490 1,152,308
ENE < Salaries payable 64,142 50,381
FE T B Interest payables 7,454 6,033
FERT AR B Dividends payable 159 112
H b & BR K Other payables 98,502 58,573
1,830,161 1,905,792
(i) EBEIFENERRRIE FHE () The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of
EH /40K - 40 days.
RBEHERE - BHEMBERENE An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting period,
ZMAR E’\Jﬁﬁﬁ’%n W - based on the invoice date, is as follows:
R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—EZEF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
6f& A A Within 6 months 83,808 55,407
6lEAZE1F 6 months to 1 year 6,805 2,036
1F M F More than 1 year 15,588 8,276
106,201 65,719
B LEMEMNERSATFEEERD The fair values of trade and other payables approximate to their carrying
BREE - amounts.

234 VY 3R B8 BE4 % 5= B A5 R A /] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



23. BB E

8175 5 < Y ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-_ZF+_A=+—HBLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

R+=B=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-EF —E-hF
2020 2019
AR TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEFHER Advances from customers 186,354 316,995
$H 6 9 S A B IR RE UK 55 () Deferred revenue for sales of distribution rights (i) 275 9,575
186,629 326,570
o mEN AR D Less: Current portion
RKEBEFPHER Advances from customers 186,354 316,995
$H & 9 51 R A9 I IE IR E() Deferred revenue for sales of distribution rights (i) 275 9,300
186,629 326,295
EMENED D Non-current portion = 275
(i) HELEETERERN Y HE (i) It represents the cash advances received for sales of distribution rights of
RERAFROEFMEKRNRE R certain pharmaceutical products to distributors for a period of five years.
Ko WHEREREENREESE The revenue is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

on the straight-line basis.
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24. EER A 24. DEFERRED TAX
FRELCHBEEEREBEEHNOT The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as
follows:
BELEREEE Deferred tax assets
BATE
R SABRE
BERRE SREAEY
BN & RTEHE
we £ER N HiE Fair value
Government NAW HAE adjustment
subsidies HEM bl of
associated  AEZREM  Unrealised  REEE financial
R with — Unrealised profit of HE assets
BE  property, profit of sllesof  Impairment atfarvalue  EER @ HEEE
Impairmentof ~ plantand intra-group  distribution  of long-term through Accrued Lease &
receivables  equipment sales rights assets  profit or loss expenses liabilities Total

ARETRL ARETR ARBTLI ARBTI ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMBOOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'OO0  RMB000  RMB00  RMBOOD  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000

RZE-NF-F—H At1January 2019 - 8,090 12,429 3913 - - 86,682 - M4
ERMRGABRER Deferred tax credited/(charged)
AE/(X8)8 to the consolidated statement of
R B (F3131) profit or loss during the year
(Note 31) 541 (604) 5,557 (2,406) 46,699 4,750 166,419 152 221,108
RZIE-N%E At 31 December 2019
T-F=1-8 541 7,486 17,986 1,507 46,699 4,750 253,101 152 332,222
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24, I E B IH () 24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
EEFHIBEE &) Deferred tax assets (continued)
BAYE
VES FABEN
RERRE SREEN
RBRA SER A¥ERE ARTEN
R AFM HE Fair value BRzER
Government HEN  DHEN adjustment Loss
subsidies AEE  REREA of available for
associated BN Unrealised ~ RHEE  financial offsetting
BREXHE with  Unrealised profit of A assets against
Impairment ~ property, profit of salesof Impairment atfairvalue — EEA  HEAE future
of  plantand intra-group distribution of long-term through Accrued Lease taxable @it
receivables  equipment sales rights assets  profit or loss expenses liabilities profits Total

ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARWTR ARETR ARRTR
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBO0  RMBO00  RMBO0D  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBY000

RZE-NE At 31 December 2019
tZA=t-H 54 7486 17,986 1,507 46,699 4,750 253,101 152 - 322
RZEZTE-F-0  At1January 200 541 7,486 17,986 1,507 46,699 4,750 253,101 152 - 33222
ERREGARER Deferred tax credited/
ANE/(88)8 (charged) to
ERHE(ME31) the consolidated
statement of profit
or loss during the year
(Note 31) 1128 (607) (12,604) (1,466) (23,179) (4,750) (54,49) (137) 33,338 (62,773)
WZE-ZF At 31 December 2020
T-E=t-H 1,669 6,879 5,382 4 23,520 - 198,605 15 33,338 269,449
5 T 33 R SR JE AN B A B IR AR B 18 Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent
BE AIMBEERAEBRELERIE that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the future taxable profits
BE ARBETFRAFEBBARK is probable. Due to the fact that losses arisen in certain subsidiaries that have
Q*‘J E@%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ—ﬁb ’If{f N AR EE R been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
ZETFF+ A=+ —HAYEER profit will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised, the Group
HEFIEE B AR 1,726,520,0007T (= did not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately RMB392,306,000 (2019:
T — 1% AR®829,656,0007T)F RMB207,414,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to RMB1,726,520,000
B IR FE T 18 & B K A R #392,306,000 (2019: RMB829,656,000) as at 31 December 2020 that can be carried forward
T(ZZT—NF : AR¥207,414,000 to offset against future taxable profits. Losses amounting to RMB77,748,000,
J0) o X E B A A E LUK 8RR RMB46,723,000, RMB87,671,000, RMB472,657,000 and RMB1,041,721,000
fER B & A - BB AR 77,748,000 will expire in 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025, respectively.

L~ AN R ¥ 46,723,000 L © A R ¥
87,671,0007T + A R #472,657,0007T &
AR #1,041,721,000 9 B R ==
T F B F - =F
ToNFER_TE-_RFRHE -
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24, IR IE ) 24.
ELEFIBEEE

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

R A it

RN &
REHKE REEQH

7 M FEER
Withholding A FERE

tax of the Fair value KX
WHEELEM unremitted adjustment BEREMH
DEERE earnings arising from EEIE S
Fair value of a recognition Withholding
gain Mainland of a joint tax of
arising from China venture and unpaid cash mat
acquisitions subsidiary an associate dividends Total

ARETRE ARBTR ARBTR AR®BTR AR®TxR
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

W-T—A%&—HF—H  At1January 2019 207,091 4,391 45,455 - 256,937
FARGEBER Deferred tax (credited)/charged to

(ABR)/ZEHE consolidated statement of profit

EERTE (P FE31) or loss during the year (Note 31) (115,004) (4,312) - 145,000 25,684
RZZB-NF At 31 December 2019

+-A=+—8 92,087 79 45,455 145,000 282,621
RZTZTF—A—H At 1 January 2020 92,087 79 45,455 145,000 282,621
FARGEABRER Deferred tax (credited)/charged to

(ABR)/ZEHE consolidated statement of profit or

A FE B8 (B 5E31) loss during the year (Note 31) (3,594) 588 12,073 - 9,067
XA EMH Payment of withholding tax - - - (66,000) (66,000)
RZZZTHF At 31 December 2020

+=-A=+—H 88,493 667 57,528 79,000 225,688

REPEEEMRERE  RABERMBAK
SJHSNE R ERIEBIMREE TSRS
ABMI0%TEHT - WREE —FTTN
F-A—RBRER BTEAR_TTL
FHtZA=t—HEZEF - WENTE
MR R &0 h B A BN E & 7
ERBAARBEOZBERTER - 3t
AEEMmMS  BRAKRER% - AEE
BE 1Lt 78 3t LA rp B 70 3t K S PR B 4 )
RZZEZENF—A—-HERRZANM
2R BN IER -

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.
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25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

R=-ZB=-FBF+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2020

BRI R(%)
Effective ZEA AR® T
interest rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
mENIE Current
BHEMRITER Secured bank borrowings 4.00-6.85 —E-—F 108,640
2021
AR IRITE Unsecured bank borrowings 2.05-4.30 —E-—fF 279,290
2021
387,930
FEMEY Non-Current
BHEBRITER Secured bank borrowings 4.90 —E=HF 131,193
2035
BEABRITER Secured bank borrowings 4.00 —E-=5F 199,980
2023
331,173
719,103
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25. FF R MITHE @) 25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued)
R=ZB=-%F
+=HA=+-—H
As at
31 December
2020
AR® T
RMB’000
PaR I Analysed into:
RITHER Bank borrowings:
F—FR Within the first year 387,930
—ERF Within the second to fifth years 199,980
BBAF Beyond the fifth years 131,193
719,103
Bt 5E Notes:
(@) AEBEETRITERHATEEEFE (@) Certain of the Group's bank borrowings are secured by:
o
(i) BFAEBATEEEAAR (i) Mortgages over the Group's leasehold land, property, plant and equipments
#397,382,000 7t WU & + it - with an aggregate carrying value of RMB397,382,000;

ME BB R&E

(ii) EHRASEEETEHERAR (i) The pledge of certain of the Group's time deposits amount to
#144,548,0007T : A RMB144,548,000; and
iy —FRWBRABOHBDER - (i) Portion of equity interests in a subsidiary.
(b) FBEERAARBEE - (b) Al borrowings are denominated in RMB.
(© RETBZZE+ T A=+ AWK (o) The effective interest rates of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 range
BREBRMEN FE(£2.05%E6.85% from 2.05% to 6.85% (31 December 2019: Nil) per annum.
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26. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

WD OT : An analysis of revenue is as follows:
BEFEEHWE Revenue from contracts with customers
(a) ZEHUAEZEH (a) Disaggregated revenue information
—2-%F —E-NF
2020 2019
AR®T T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Emo R E R Type of goods or services
HE %M Sale of pharmaceutical products 2,464,226 2,878,318
BEEAHWRZRE Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,464,226 2,878,318
i & ™ 5 Geographical markets
= REANpi) Mainland China 2,464,226 2,878,318
BREAHWRZRE Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,464,226 2,878,318
Wz R R Timing of revenue recognition
R HHEERNER Goods transferred at a point in time 2,464,226 2,878,318
REAHWRZBE Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,464,226 2,878,318
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26. W - HttWw AR W=  26. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (ontinued)
EEEHWE 2 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) EITEME (b) Performance obligations
HE R EE G Sale of pharmaceutical products
BHEENRRZNESEERFE The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
Ao AR — BRI EIORE pharmaceutical products and payment is generally due within 90 to
180 RMEIH - R BT AT 180 days from delivery, except for new customers, where payment
ENRT-R+_A=+—H o in advance is normally required. The amounts of transaction prices
BEEHTENES(RKEITHID allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
ABIT)NXZEHEOT partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:
R+=B=+—8
As at 31 December
ZEZEF —E-hF
2020 2019
AR TR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEHBERAE KNS Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue:
—FQR Within one year 186,354 316,995
H fth It A Other income
e —TNHF
2020 2019
AR TR AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
F B A Interest income 135,728 169,707
& 5 85 () Sale of distribution rights (i) 9,300 13,348
i 25 U (i) R&D income (ii) 13,386 21,370
REMERLEHEY Gross rental income from investment property
T & W A 28 5 (i) operating leases (iii) 7,433 6,662
Hity Others 6,713 2,317
172,560 213,404

242 VY 3R B8 BE4 % 5= B A5 R A /] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



B 7% ¥k 2% B 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE-_T-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. U s HWw ARz (%)  26. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

HibU A #) Other income (continued)
(i) HEDHEENEMISEHE AP (i) The geographical market of all the sale of distribution rights is Mainland
A - BRI EGEIRERAGERE China. The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
NEBET YEEERBATAR are rendered and advances are normally required before rendering
RERBAIFAMKIE - HE D #H the services. Sale of distribution rights contracts is for periods of five
BOEHNHERAEF - RN+ A years. The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
=t+—H SBEEHRTEONERB performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
(REBITHBAORBIT)INRZE December are as follows:
BT
R+=-—A=+—AH
As at 31 December
—E-%F —T-NF
2020 2019
AR TR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEH G RRAEMK AN SR Amounts expected to be recognised as other income:
—FR Within one year 275 9,300
—Fi& After one year = 275
275 9,575
TREINRARIRE BHEERIL R The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the
WEBUHAEGHNEAB IR S current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities at
o the beginning of the reporting period:
—E-EF —T-NF
2020 2019
AR TR ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAREEHNAHEEERNUWE © Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
& o i Sale of distribution rights 9,300 13,348
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26. W s HWw AR W (%)  26. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
HibU A #) Other income (continued)

(i) WMBEHEANMBRDTSHAEFEA (ii)
o BRAIFE TS ARG B BE R
MET —RERFEZRBHE30
B AR R e

(i) EHEBERHERERKESHE (iii)
7 —RENFEREHE0RR
N -HEBANDHTAT :

The geographical market of all the R&D income is Mainland China. The
performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered and
payment is generally due within 30 days from the date of billing.

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered
and payment is generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. An
analysis of rental income is as follows:

—B-%F —E-NF
2020 2019
AR T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
i & ™ 5 Geographical markets
B Hong Kong 6,597 5,912
h B A Hh Mainland China 836 750
7,433 6,662
Hihg & - F58 Other gains - net

—B-%F —E-NF
2020 2019
AR T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
I 4 Bh (i) Government grants (i) 156,228 401,155

RIEHEBE AR ZEEN Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate
U g5 (P31 13) (Note 13) 80,488 -
FE 5 I Exchange gains 7,272 19,629

BRATEFAEBEZNEREEN Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value
N EWE (FE) through profit or loss 2,683 (18,599)
s B B B~ B A Uk 25 (B RE38(a)) Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38(a)) 2,830 -
Hm Others 118 (8)
249,619 402,177

() BT B e 4 1 5 AT Y EX B3 () The total government grants represented the subsidies received from the

B SSBR R R o

local government and no specific conditions were attached to them.
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27. EXPENSES BY NATURE

BE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=Z+—HBLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

—E-%F —T-NF
2020 2019
AR TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
mRER Research expenses 399,472 322,356
HNEBER R B External research expenses 139,026 44,748
[GRENI N Raw materials used 368,255 311,218
B MR ERERTFEZ L Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work in progress 68,044 60,885
ME  BELRREITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 215,580 223,149
TREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 21,465 23,160
EEBFIHXZ Employee benefit expenses
TERF® Wages and salaries 501,370 446,565
& F Welfares 66,937 108,442
LAR& 19 B E A B9 5k (M9 5E30) Share-based payments (Note 30) 23,176 353
EEE#H Amortisation of intangible assets 28,180 96,402
AEREEE () Impairment losses of goodwill (Note 9) = 2,843,903
mREERMEREE (M E10) Impairment losses of intangible assets (Note 10) = 759,615
CRAEREATENORERERSE Impairment losses of investment accounted for using
(PFEE13) the equity method (Note 13) = 91,521
ME  BEREEREEE(ME6) Impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment (Note 6) - 276,464
HEXEH Professional fee 86,622 58,595
MAERAX Office expenses 57,514 46,940
18 Ko B n & Tax surcharges 66,089 74,773
Z IR X Travelling expenses 16,706 29,364
EHMALZ Transportation expenses 28,970 24,357
IKERMEESEE Utilities and property management fee 8,822 9,687
HERX Rental expenses 5,336 255
EEREHEAS Advertising and promotional expenses 43,722 14,736
Z A B & Auditor’s remuneration 5,000 5,500
EBBERX Entertainment expenses 10,793 13,661
RITFERE Bank charges 1,267 6,361
Hits Others 9,241 7,114
SHERA - DR ITEAIY « Total cost of sales, distribution expenses, administrative
MELFAERES  HEMEXR expenses, research and development expenses,
BIERE AR other expenses and impairment losses 2,171,587 5,900,124
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2&%%&%&ﬁﬁk§%ﬁ 28.

BE LR -
ORMEARRAR(REES

(a) ~ (b)

BB R EHMEDIE383(1)

Ma B ROE2RI RBEEERER
THRABFRFHFMLT :

(a) BAFHITESE
FRXNFRLEHNTEENR

DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the

Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

(a)

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year

W were as follows:

LREEED

i R REBA X

Equity-settled
we share option st
Fee expense Total
AR TR ARET T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

—E-TF 2020

FEERE Mr. Patrick Sun 368 216 584
ot Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 368 216 584
KE L Dr. Zhu Xun 280 216 496
1,016 648 1,664

VAR 45 B 1Y

AR RE R 2

Equity-settled
e share option st
Fee expense Total
ARETT AR T T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

—E-NF 2019

FEELE Mr. Patrick Sun 362 - 362
e Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 362 - 362
KA Dr. Zhu Xun 280 - 280
1,004 - 1,004

FABMERMBIIFENTEES
REMME(ZZ—NE : &) -

There were no other emoluments payable to the

executive directors during the year (2019: Nil).
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28. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

B ) (continued)
(b) BITESRIFHITES (b) Executive directors and non-executive directors
Hi e R
BiRe BYFE UREEEN
Bl RN Other R X
Pension allowances Equity-settled
e scheme and benefits share option st
Salaries  contribution in kind expense Total
AR TR ARBT T AR®T R AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-TF 2020
HITES Executive directors:
B EE Dr. Che Fengsheng 10,000 - - - 10,000
204 B A Dr. Guo Weicheng 6,000 - = = 6,000
RAMBEEE A& Dr. Zhang Jionglong 893 16 = = 909
R AL E Mr. Choi Yiau Chong 3,211 16 - 431 3,658
PR 3 3% 22 & Ms. Chen Yanling 1,161 19 455 287 1,922
21,265 51 455 718 22,489
FEHITES - Non-executive director:
SHEELRE Mr. Kim Jin Ha - = = = =
21,265 51 455 718 22,489
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

28. EERERITHAEMNE  28. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
B ) (continued)
(b) HITESRIEHTES (7) (b) Executive directors and non-executive directors
(continued)
H b 7 B &
BRE B &=
FHEIH K Other
Pension allowances
e scheme and benefits 5T
Salaries contribution in kind Total
AR T T ARBT T ARBF T AR®EF T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
—E-NEF 2019
WITES - Executive directors:
BISAE Dr. Che Fengsheng 10,000 - - 10,000
2 4 B A Dr. Guo Weicheng 6,000 - - 6,000
ok I BE B A& Dr. Zhang Jionglong 1,165 16 - 1,181
BB A Mr. Choi Yiau Chong 3,167 16 - 3,183
PR #e 3o 2 + Ms. Chen Yanling 1,142 16 270 1,428
21,474 48 270 21,792
JEHMITES - Non-executive director:
SHEE LA Mr. Kim Jin Ha - - - -
21,474 48 270 21,792
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29. EBREHEER 29. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FHN hEemEaFEELENEES The five highest paid employees during the year included four directors (2019:
—E-NFOB)EE HEFEMHS four directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 28 above.
BN EXKE28 - FANB TR (= Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2019: one)
TE—NF: —R)WHFEARRESTHNR highest paid employee who is not a director of the Company are as follows:

BHEENFMFBIHNT

—EZEF —E-hF
2020 2019
ARBT T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EXF<€  FEEME - EM#A K& Basic salaries, housing allowances, other allowances and
BEWF &= benefits in kind 1,246 1,253
LARR 1D B E i 89 1 3 Share-based payments 425 .
1,671 1,253
FMMNFATHENESHES GEE The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
ERFESITHRAB) ABLOT : whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:
—EZEH —ZE-hF
2020 2019
1,500,0017% 7T % 2,000,000/ 7T HKD1,500,001-HKD2,000,000 1 1
BE-_Z_ZTFR-_FT—NF+=A For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no payments had been
=t+—HIEFE AEBITEREEY made by the Group to the directors or the highest paid individuals in respect of
O A TR ESI E A E L inducement to join or compensation for loss of office, and no directors or the
BmXARIE  TEESsiSa 5 highest paid individuals waived any of the emoluments.

ATHERBEMEEAME -
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30. LR BEBRBMTRK

MREZEZEREEERD

250

1.

5] #8 IR #E 5T &
(a) KRR E

RARNERERREIRH
HE-ArAETFTRR
(BlPlenty Gold Enterprises
Limited ([Plenty  Gold])
BREABERDBEMNE
E)ERZ=ZZE—ZF+A
Zt+HBRM - IEERHT
2[R ER M SZEFT &1 ] =k
[#%Et8)) - R-T—=%F
—A=-+AHB  AXFK
% — IR 3 (BIMSPEA Pharma
Holdings B.V.) & (g 8§
MR EEGE - XA A
(REBEREZBESK IO
LA 15 5T 22 7 - mAPlenty
Goldz ¥ #B)EEBZ T
AXFEAN BREEER®D
HEAERFERERG -
Plenty Gold * B )% 7 5
REPMEWEE (ERETH
MERTA)EDHERRE
i & #£ 33,750,000 f& & 2
Alf% 5 : MMSPEA Pharma
Holdings B.V.78 % & #& H
%8 413,750,000 J& A< A 7 i%
o TAZERMHBXTEA
N AR EE B IR G5 =E A &
NEAANENEE - EB
&1 s &S R H B R
EARBIRENRERS
WA iREE S R K
BlETEFBRG -

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

1.

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. Share
Options Plan
(a) Share award scheme

An award scheme for the purpose of

management of the Group (the “Employee Share Award Scheme”
or the “Scheme”) has been adopted by certain shareholders of
the Company (namely, Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited (“Plenty
Gold”), Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng) on 25
October 2010. On 25 January 2013, another shareholder of the
Company (namely, MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V.) also participated
in the Employee Share Award Scheme. Trustee Co (a private
trust company established in the British Virgin Islands and wholly
owned by Plenty Gold) has been appointed as the trustee to hold
the reserved shares under the Employee Share Award Scheme.
Plenty Gold, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng, as settlors
of a trust, have reserved and set aside a total of 33,750,000
shares; and MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. has reserved and set
aside an additional 3,750,000 shares, all of which are being
held by the Trustee Co as trustee for the Employee Share Award
Scheme. The Employee Share Award Scheme involves granting
existing shares held by Trustee Co., and no new shares will be

issued pursuant to the Employee Share Award Scheme.
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1.
3
(a)

MEREEEZREBAERLQ
BRE S E)

K 2EB 2 (&)
RZZEZZFNAZ+RX
PIN/NETEEE - N/
T—+F+ 5=+ 0B HEH
AR S MESER
2 HE 4 ££94,656,000
AR B AR A - AREAR
AIRAHP EREE0.01E T
/994,656,000 0% I 3/ A% 15 -
WEBFF AR AW -

l:l/\

AN BVR 458 R A B 45
HOBROINZHHRE
SAERESREMMRS - M
HE BRI EREDER D
KEEEBROER - AR
AR %R SR ) RE
FEEITHARL AR E
FAREROZBEME &

BREFI 3T 55 AR 4
pe-

RigMEE R RE S - £
BNETASERERR
B AT AR S E R B
EHRLHARAREEER
o #O AR A 22 R fEm B A LE B
B EEENZTEARBF
B R AR BB DS EH
B -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_Z-_THE+-_A=+—HLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

1. Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. Share
Options Plan (continued)

(a)

Share award scheme (continued)

On 26 August 2020, the Company granted a total of 94,656,000
share options to the eligible participants of the Company to
subscribe for a total of 94,656,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 24 October 2017,
subject to the acceptance by the grantees.

The Company measures the services received from its employees
in accordance with the requirements applicable to equity-
settled share-based payment transactions, with a corresponding
increase recognised in equity as a contribution from the major
shareholders. No new shares will be issued by the Company under
the Employee Share Award Scheme and there is no dilution impact
on the earnings per share calculation as a result of the Employee

Share Award Scheme.

Under the Employee Share Award Scheme, awards were granted
to the eligible employees of the Group, which are exercisable into
the specific number of shares of the Company, held by Trustee
Co., designed in each financial year during the period from the
grant date up to the expiry date of the relevant awards granted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

30. ARG AERNN R 30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
1. REBEEZEZREEBRL 1. Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. Share
AERESTE(#) Options Plan (continued)
(a) IR 2 (%) (a) Share award scheme (continued)
ERTAEEETEENR The summary of the share awards granted to certain employees of
HEBEBENT the Group is as follows:

sHRH ERHER
RBMOTEEBRT #E(T6)

Exercise price Number of
in HK$ per awards granted
REBH Grant date share award (thousands)
—E—-—F=A=1H( 20 March 2012 (i) 3.19 14,150
ZE-=FNAAZTEH® 27 September 2013 (i) 3.19 19,750
ZE—=F+AZ=+—H(>) 21 October 2013 (i) 0.7 2,050
—T-TE N\ A=+ xAi) 26 August 2020 (i) 0.97 94,656
130,606

i Rr= E NENA () On 28 June 2016, the Group modified the share award

iy AN = BN scheme. The remaining 31,448,172 share options, which

HET Hx 1 52 B & were granted to but not yet exercised by 234 employees,

glo-BRT234%E were replaced by new share awards with an exercise price

EERETEOHRT of HK$1.57 per share award.

31,448,172 1 B8 IS 4%
BB R0 EE (1T
FEEAETREDER
1.577 70 ) UK o

iy RZZTE=ZZFHF)N\A (i) Exercise price of share option granted on 26 August 2020 is
ZHRABREHER HK$0.97 per share.
EITRERTRER M
0.977% 7T
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1. MRBEZRREEARA
B RS 8 ()
(b) 175 RE 5

DA T B B A AR T B F
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HE_ZT_TF+-_A=+—-HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

1. Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. Share
Options Plan (continued)
(b) Share award movements

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme

REITE - during the year:
—z-®5 —E-A%F
2020 2019

SRR MR TR 1D B
EYTHEERT BREHE EHTHEESBT ERiEHE
Average (F4) Average (F%)
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
in HK$ per options in HK$ per options
share award (thousands) share award (thousands)
R—F—8 At 1 January 1.57 964 1.57 1,272
B’ Granted 0.97 94,656 - -
[BEGREd Exercised - - 1.57 (308)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 0.98 95,620 1.57 964

VAT A 4R R i AR AT (R B B £
RE) 2 BIE A B R TTEE

Share awards outstanding at the end of the year had the following
expiry date and exercise price:

BRERORB ERHERTEN EREERERITEN
THEEST RORBEE (T4) REEE (F4)
Exercise price Number of Number of outstanding
in HK$ per outstanding awards vested and exercisable
BE B Expiry date share award granted (thousands) awards (thousands)
ZE-EF —E-NF ZEBZEF —E-NF
2020 2019 2020 2019
—EZ—F"A=+/UH 28 June 2021 1.57 964 964 - -
—ZE=ZF4F N\ A=+ HH 25 August 2030 0.97 94,656 - - -
95,620 964 - -
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30. ARG BERNS R

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

1. REZEEZEREERERA 1. Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. Share
TERESTE (2 Options Plan (continued)
(b) K17 IEE%EE &) (b) Share award movements (continued)
R-ZE-_TF+-_A=+— Out of the 95,620,000 (2019: 964,000) outstanding awards, no
A 795,620,000 (==& (2019: Nil) awards were exercisable at 31 December 2020.
—LF :964,00013 ) R1T{E
HEF  m(ZZE-NEF:
m)RECEITE -
FR - RAEERLSHE®D During the year, total expenses amounting to RMB6,047,000
HEMAGEERREME (2019: RMB353,000) were charged to the consolidated statement
MR ER T HERTARE of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for share awards
6,047,000C( = — N ¢ granted to employees with a corresponding change in equity.
A R ¥ 353,0007T) @ ¥ H%
EamANEREEES -
(c) Rit7E@H 2 FlE (c) Fair value of share awards
RARREEGRITESEE The executive directors of the board of the Company have used
AZEAEXETEREEB the binomial model to determine the fair value of the awards
HAXHENHER L EBNA granted, which is to be expensed over the vesting period.
FE A RREESHITE Significant judgement on parameters, such as risk-free rate,
EAEA-ZEAEABENX dividend yield and expected volatility, is required to be made by
HonmE A E - REEK the executive directors of the board of the Company in applying
FEHFIEE28EHEZ H the binomial model, of which the inputs are summarised below.
- ZE2HOBAEUEY
mEmT o
g 33 —E-RF
RNA=+XB RAINAZ+NH
BENRGED BOORMERD
2020 2016
Share awards Share awards
granted on granted on
26 August 28 June
RELBHNEHE Closing price at the grant date 0.903 7T 1.607% 7T
HK$0.90 HK$1.60
I B M) Risk-free rate 0.44% 0.64%
g B & Dividend yield 1.71% 2.14%
8 525 R (i) Expected volatility (i) 44.81% 41.38%

(i)  REIRHREDRH
BAERETENTEY
BIE - TR AR DA
B FiEBRERE
R H K IBEE ©

(i) The expected volatility, measured as the standard deviation
of expected share price returns, is determined based on the
average daily trading price volatility of the shares of the
Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

2. HMEYRBEBERAIARK 2. Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Share Incentive
73 B st & Scheme
RZE_TFENA_F+/,H & On 26 June 2020, the shareholders’ meeting of Xuanzhu Biological
MEMRBEER AR ([EHT] - A Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xuanzhu”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
AEBE-—REAEZEWNBRRA) of the group) passed a resolution to adopt an employee share award
BEASEBE —HREE UK plan (“Xuanzhu Share Incentive Scheme”) consisting of non-listed
e EEETREIMERSCRY restricted shares, which does not involve issue of new shares by
EEHEMBEITHHBRD) NEBR Xuanzhu. 79,695,000 restricted shares of the Company were approved
7 4% B 51 &1 ([ & 17 B 19 2% B 51 for eligible employees to subscribe at the price of RMB1.57 per share
gl - ARBIHESEBIRES A and the grant date was August 24, 2020. These granted restricted shares
R AR 157 T ERR have a contractual term of three years.
479,695,000 % [R | £ B 17 - 1%
BEBA-_ZT-_FTF/N\A=-+TN
H ZEREBREERNOE LD
HR=%F-
DA TR D B4R IR EF AT AR (D 1 B The following share units were granted and outstanding under the
AERNEANEN B RETE Xuanzhu Share Incentive Scheme during the year:
PR il 1%
gRR 5 IR 5 & B
RBEARYET (&)
Subscription Number of
price RMB restricted shares
per share (thousands)
wn—HA—H At 1 January = =
RERFH Granted during the year 1.57 79,695
WR+ZA=+—H At 31 December 1.57 79,695
HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—H For the year ended 31 December 2020, no share has been forfeited since
IEFE BERMERLERE the grant.
L e
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30. UGB AEBRNS R 30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

2. HUMEYREBERAAR 2. Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Share Incentive
m BB & m) Scheme (continued)
REH B BRIBEETIR G B E T The fair value of the restricted shares granted under the Xuanzhu Share
205 AR B ER () B R FE TS Incentive Scheme as at the grant date was determined using the market-
FAMSEEERNET - AFE value model. The fair value and corresponding inputs into the model
RERGABEENE ABENT were as follows:
Loy
% 17 % B &t &1
Xuanzhu

Share Incentive

Scheme
REBBHREESR(ARET) Grant date share price (RMB) 1.72
REEARET) Subscription price (RMB) 1.57
HAPR Term 4.3%F
4.3 years
| b A 2 Risk-free rate 2.93%
A Volatility 49.93%
B —_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—H For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has recorded share-
FE KEBCBRESEREN based compensation expenses of RMB15,452,000 in relation to the

A% 17 8 B 51 21 8 LA B 19 A B0t 4m Xuanzhu Share Incentive Scheme.
EEBHAAARKI5452,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

3. EMEALEYREFRA 3. Jilin Huisheng Biological Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
7] % 10 %4 B 51 & Share Incentive Scheme
RZE-ZEF+—A+=8" On 13 November 2020, the shareholders’ meeting of lilin Huisheng
EMBEAEMREER QB[S Biological Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“lilin Huisheng”) passed a resolution
MEADBREASEA —HRE to adopt an employee share award plan (“Jilin Huisheng Share Incentive
= UIRAE S IE TR SR Scheme”) consisting of non-listed restricted shares, which does not
BRSREMRBAETONR involve issue of new shares by Jilin Huisheng. 27,950,000 restricted
)R E B th BB & &l ([ F AR shares of the Company were approved for eligible employees to
BARGSEFE]) o RAEH subscribe at the price of RMB1.33 per share and the grant date was on
HEEBEREEUNTGRIENMARKE 13 November 2020. These granted restricted shares have a contractual
1.33 7T &9 8 18 R % 27,950,000 A% term of four years.
Ru ke KREBHR-ZTZ
TFE+—A+=H ZERLR
R B & QBRI F o
AT B 1) B 1B 18 & MR AR 0 The following share units were granted and outstanding under the Jilin
B ERFARD B RETT Huisheng Share Incentive Scheme during the year:
&
BRBROIEE RIERGHAE
AR®T (F&)
Subscription Number of
price RMB restricted shares
per share (thousands)
n—HA—H At 1 January = =
RERF T Granted during the year 1.33 27,950
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1.33 27,950

Bz _ZTF+_-_A=+—H
IEFEE - BERDERLEBER
U o

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no share has been forfeited since

the grant.
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30. UGB AEBRNS R 30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

3. EMEALEYREFRA 3. Jilin Huisheng Biological Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
ARMBEEE 2 Share Incentive Scheme (continued)
REHBPRESAEARMD A The fair value of the restricted shares granted under the Jilin Huisheng
BY R 81 % H AR SRR D B A F Share Incentive Scheme as at the grant date was determined using the
BENEAMESEEREEE -2 market-value model. The fair value and corresponding inputs into the
B R A8 B AR AE FE B B A BER 0 model were as follows:

T :
EMEH KRG
B Et &
Jilin Huisheng
Share
Incentive
Scheme
REYBHERZEEBR(ARKIT) Grant date share price (RMB) 1.89
REBEARE T Subscription price (RMB) 1.33
HABR Term 415
4.1 years
2 a1 B ) Risk-free rate 3.04%
B 8 Volatility 38.12%
HEz—_Z-_ZTF+=-A=+—H For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has recorded share-
ILFE AEEEHGER_-Z based compensation expenses of RMB1,677,000 in relation to the 2020
ZTEEMNEARG BB EN Jilin Huisheng Share Incentive Scheme.
NI RERBEEARARE
1,677,0007T °
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31. FRBHBAX

AEBHE_T_TER_T—NF

31. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

8175 5 < Y ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=Z+—HBLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

The income tax expense of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020

T A=+ —HBIEFEMNEREAS S and 2019 is analysed as follows:
Hig AN
—B-%F —E-NF
2020 2019
AR® TR ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BVERRR IR - Current tax:

F I RHE Provision for the year 147,200 485,812
B BR 754 18 48 #E Total current tax 147,200 485,812
EERIR - Deferred tax:

TR ERESERER Origination and reversal of temporary differences 71,840 (340,424)

I8 B Provision for withholding tax = 145,000
iR 3E 7 78 48 58 ([ 71 24) Total deferred tax (Note 24) 71,840 (195,424)
BEKEEGE/RBX Income tax expense from continuing operations 219,040 290,388
BIEEETS ST X (M3E32)  Income tax expense from discontinued operations (Note 32) = -

219,040 290,388
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

31. FRB B X ) 31. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq)
7R 52 [ R A A % A/ (518 ) B9 B 7B ER 4R The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before tax differs from the theoretical
AEEARAHEERFMNEERRFHE amount that would arise from using the statutory tax rate applicable to profits
WIEmEFE TR - &AW of the consolidated entities as follows:
ZEZEF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR®T T ARKEFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 250 A A/ (5 48) Profit/(loss) before tax 730,927 (2,466,923)
KEBESEER From continuing operations 765,844 (2,422,955)
RECDKRIEELEER From discontinued operations (34,917) (43,968)
BB EB E25% Tax calculated at the PRC applicable statutory tax rate
(ZE2E—NF : 25% )T EME of 25% (2019: 25%) 182,732 (616,731)
THBEEMNHBELE : Tax effects of:
- BASLAARERNTEEIE — Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (24,858) (888)
-BEEERBRENTE — Effect of tax concessions and exemption (197,422) (177,036)
— AT R S - Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 16,029 807,026
-EBBE AT MAENEMNER - Profits attributable to associates and joint ventures 4,131 1,798
- EEMBIA — Income not subject to tax (7,750) -
- KHRELHEIBEEMTIEIE . - Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset
was recognised 246,178 131,219
—S%TEMME AREFE T BB AT - Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the distributable
A 5 Be BB A R £ profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries - 145,000
FrigBim = Income tax expense 219,040 290,388
BREMNSK Bermuda profits tax
REBENEZAEE R BAMMNEM The Group was not subject to any taxation in this jurisdiction during the year
MB(ZZT—NF &) - (2019: Nil).
EENEH Hong Kong profits tax
EANGBBRDREFNEESBEELENG Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)
STERTE A AR E165% (ZF—N on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.
F 165%) IR EE - HfbiEey e Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
AR R B IE IR AN B PR TEB R prevailing in the countries (or jurisdictions) in which the Group operates.

(ZAEER)NBRITHRERGTE -
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31.

EHRMAZ

B R PTS (TR B 2
B
PEGEAMGHERRBARAEENA
ARFPEELNERBRA(ERED
Bk B 2 TS BLR B S AT 4R o
CEMBBMER)HRRME -

REENTENERRREDREEMN
BRRIRIL R 25%EE R BREEMF
Bi e

AR EE TR RGBSR %
MER - Bl REMBRRAR-F=
BERZB-AFOEEREBERE
15%=tHH2 5 o

REBANVPHFENB
IRIRE AT BB ER - NP BIK Y8
RAIMEZZTENF-—A—HEEED
Sw A E AN IR B TR AR B R BAN10%
I o MR EER BB TMAK
VERRHPEEEBITLNEEHG
ZHR G SIRE - BIBEETEMBI XA
10%M ZE5% °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.

HE-_T-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT")

PRC CIT is provided on the assessable income of the companies now
comprising the Group derived from the PRC, adjusted for those items which are
not assessable or deductible for the PRC CIT purposes.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group have determined and paid the corporate
income tax in accordance with the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC at the
tax rate of 25%.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group were qualified as high-tech enterprises.
Accordingly, those subsidiaries’ corporate income tax for 2020 and 2019 was
provided at the rate of 15%.

PRC withholding tax on retained earnings

According to applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends distributed by a
company established in the PRC to a foreign investor with respect to profits
derived after 1 January 2008 are subject to a 10% withholding tax. If a
foreign investor is incorporated in Hong Kong and meets the conditions or
requirements under the double taxation arrangement entered into between the
PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant withholding tax rate will be reduced to 5%
from 10%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

32. BERIEREXEK 32. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
RZZEZZEFNA+THHE  ARAEE On 15 June 2020, the Company's resolution on disposals of Chonghui
EBEREABERAR(IERE]) kEAKRE Investment Limited (“Chonghui”) and Tengwei Investment Limited (“Tengwei")
BRAR(EAERBETLXES - was duly passed. During the year, Chonghui and Tengwei were disposed of,
FRN - EREEREAKHE  TRAEER and excluded from the annual financial statements of the Group.
FEMBIRE TR -
HE_Z-NF+A=+—BILFE The results of the discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December
kE=ZZ=TF—-A—HELEHHH 2019 and the period from 1 January 2020 to the disposal date are presented
MEREREEBOEEZ22WT below:
BE-ZZE-Z2F
—A—HB=Z
& B H B
The period from
1 January 2020
to the date —E-hF
of disposal 2019
AR®T T ARKEFTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 8,868 8,661
5 & AR AR Cost of sales (3,354) (3,065)
X Expenses (36,971) (54,234)
MBHEX Finance expenses - (156)
RAEDEVEMELEEER Share of profits and losses of investments accounted
for using the equity method (3,460) 4,826
BB AT B 1R Loss before tax (34,917) (43,968)
FREH Income tax:
A BB B AT R A Related to pre-tax profit = -
BN/ N S 1R Loss for the period/year (34,917) (43,968)
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32. ERLEREXEK )

ERIEGEEEBEEANR S REFEN
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HE_ZT_TF+-_A=+—-HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

32. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operations are as follows:

B

ﬁ —_ 7 —= q—:

—A—RB=Z

& B H R

The period from

1 January 2020
to the date —E—-hF
of disposal 2019
ARET T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KEEE Operating activities 9,390 (8,199)
KEETH Investing activities (22,639) (12,257)
& EE Financing activities 145,800 6,250
BeEmACRE) F5 Net cash inflow/(outflow) 132,551 (14,206)

REBKRIEEEEBRERE Basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued

BHEBREBEB(EBRARED) operations (RMB cents per share) (0.3) (0.4)

ERIE2EBNEARBEEERER

MFEFEER

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued
operations are based on:

L B ¥
~B-AE
A3

The period from
1 January 2020

to the date of T—NF
disposal 2019
AR EBERFEARMLER Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
(AR®ETFIT) of the Company (RMB'000) (29,187) (35,817)
EEREAREESEEMA Weighted average number of ordinary shares
B/ A E BTSRRI in issue during the period/year for basic and
TR e (FRR) diluted loss per share calculation (thousands) 9,465,682 9,468,079
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33. BRER/ (FE) 33. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(a) ER (a) Basic
BREABF (EE)ZRARA T Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss)
BEAEMER (BE)BRAFAE attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number
BT B NEFL Y REBEE - of ordinary shares in issuance during the year.
—E-EF —T-NF
2020 2019
FESRERBRR (EE)MA Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders
KRB ERERFEA AEIMEEAR/  of the Company, used in the basic earnings/(loss)
(BE)(ARBTT) per share calculation (RMB’000)
REFELEER From continuing operations 502,569 (2,717,515)
KEDKRIEEEEK From discontinued operations (29,187) (35,817)
RAB L BEEREBE ARERF  Profit/loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders
(BE)(ARBTIT) of the Company (RMB’'000) 473,382 (2,753,332)
EREAREFN (EE)FTAE%TT  Weighted average number of ordinary shares
LB N HRE (TR in issue for basic earnings/(loss) per share (thousands) 9,465,682 9,468,079
FRERAEF (EE) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (RMB cents per share)
(BRAR®S)
F N A (EE) For profit/(loss) for the year 5.0 (29.1)
BEBEEERN R (EE) For profit/(loss) for the continuing operations 5.3 (28.7)
(b) ## (b) Diluted
RZZBZZFR-_T-NAFAEL There was no dilution to earnings/(loss) per share for year 2020 and
BEEECBESERAR  WUE 2019 because there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares existing.
BREMN (EE)#E - SR#EE The diluted earnings/(loss) per share amount equalled to the basic
B/ (EE)BERGREARET earnings/(loss) per share amount.
/(E18) -
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34. g

RZEBEZEFR_ZFT-NFRNHEE
B A AR ¥1,419,852,0007 & A R #
60,987,0007C - EEEEH - HE-T
—EFE+ A=+ —BLFEREERS
BB A AR #123,054,0007T @ HEBRA
ANREERRBFRE LEGHE -

RERZARIAERKE TARBER AN

B 7% ¥k 2% B 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE-_T-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2020 and 2019 were RMB1,419,852,000 and
RMB160,987,000, respectively. A final cash dividend for the year ended 31
December 2020 of RMB123,054,000 was recommended by the Board and
will be subject to approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Dividends approved and paid to owners of the Company during the year:

BB
ZEZEF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE L —FESRIT AR Final 2019 dividend of RMB1.3 (2018: RMB1.3)
“E-NFREKEARBE139  cents per ordinary share for the previous year,
(ZZ2—N\F: AR®135) paid during the year 123,054 123,124
FRIR &R EEBREBK Special cash dividend of RMB10.6 (2019: Nil) cents per
AREE106D (ZE—NF : &) ordinary share 1,003,362 -
FRAERKEZESREBR Interim dividend of RMBO.1 (2019: RMBO0.4)
FRERRE ARE01S cents per ordinary share, declared and
—ZT-NF AR¥04%) paid during the year 9,466 37,863
BFRIReRESRERR Special cash dividend of RMB3.0 (2019: Nil) cents per
AREIOD(ZE—NF - &) ordinary share 283,970 -
1,419,852 160,987
FRNEZZARAIRE - Dividends proposed by the Company for the year:
—E_FF —ZT—-hF
2020 2019
AR TR ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEABHRRETRT AR Proposed final cash dividend of RMB1.3
AR®135 (2019: RMB1.3) cents per ordinary share
ZZE-NF AR¥13%) 123,054 123,054
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

35. REELENBRE

35. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

—E-EHE —ET-NF
2020 2019
AR¥ T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B B A A/ (518 ) Profit/(loss) before tax 730,927 (2,466,923)
- REFELE — From continuing operations 765,844 (2,422,955)
- RERIEEE — From discontinued operations (34,917) (43,968)
KLATIER AE - Adjustments for:
-ME - BERREINE — Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 218,028 226,292
-REWENE — Depreciation of investment properties 7,381 6,575
-EmEEEEH — Amortisation of intangible assets 28,742 97,015
-BmERESRE — Impairment losses of goodwill = 2,843,903
-EEEERERIE — Impairment losses of intangible assets = 759,615
- FRAERETED — Impairment losses of investment accounted
RERME for using the equity method - 91,521
-WE BEREBREREE — Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment - 276,464
-RAREENE — Depreciation of right-of-use assets 24,130 24,815
- EEEREREARD — Share of losses of investments accounted for
KREER using the equity method 16,524 7,190
- HEYE  BENMKREREIEG - Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (i) 1,936 6,745
- BAFEFABRNESHMEER - (Gain)loss on changes in fair value of financial assets
NEE (W) /EE at fair value through profit or loss (2,683) 18,599
-BIEHEBML AT ZERNWE - Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate (80,488) -
-HERB RTINS — Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (72,307) -
— FAH o Yz 7 B AR Y WU Wi — Gain on acquisition recognised in other gains
(B 538(a)) (Note 38(a)) (2,830) -
-HEEFEENEIE — Loss on disposal of intangible assets 13,141 -
— LARR 19 7 B 69 1 3R — Share-based payments 23,176 353
- MERX — Interest expense 1,700 2,460
- A B A — Interest income (56,016) (133,095)
BEESEPNEERSRE Operating cash flow before working capital changes 851,361 1,761,529
HEAERAEED Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
-FE — Inventories (65,323) (108,478)
-EBShHMEWERER — Trade and other receivables (269,516) 235,095
-8B 5 Rk H M ERERR - Trade and other payables (75,178) 39,162
KEEAXNR Cash generated from operations 441,344 1,927,308
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35. REELXEWIRE ») 35. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)
(i) REARERERT  HED (i) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
¥ BMELRENMBSRER property, plant and equipment comprise:
=
—B-%F —E-NF
2020 2019
AR®T R ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REFE Net book amount 7,448 8,908
HEVME WMELRHNEIE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,936) (6,745)
HEME  BMERZHEMNFTSHIE  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 5,512 2,163
36. REREREBRMHEE 36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(@) ERFBRERS (a) Major non-cash transactions
FAN-AEBE@ABSLHESE During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
NRMEFHERHNEAEE and lease liabilities of RMB23,358,000 and RMB2,523,000, respectively,
ERHEABENFRESATED T in respect of prepaid land lease payments and lease arrangements for
& AR % 23,358,000 & A R buildings (2019: The Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
2,523,000 (=T — &« &% and lease liabilities of RMB58,233,000 and RMB2,595,000, respectively,
EEBEMN L HmEENRNEF in respect of prepaid land lease payments and lease arrangements for
HEZHNERAREEREES buildings).

BOFRREREDAIRARYE
58,233,000 7T 2 A & # 2,595,000
JT) e
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36. mEBEERERMT 2

CASH FLOWS (continued)

() ERFRERZ (4)
(a) BEZEBFELHE

(@) Major non-cash transactions (continued)
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

EZE activities
—E-EHF 2020
H fth & 5K HEEE RITEM
Other Lease Bank
borrowings liabilities borrowings
ARBT T AR TR AR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZTZZTF—H—H At1January 2020 9,000 9,950 -
MERSREELEMNES Changes from financing cash flows 23,000 (3,431) 704,103
MEE New leases - 2,523 _
FERX Interest expense - 279 =
& E A A Disposals of subsidiaries = (5,370) =
U B8 — K M B 2 &) B9 3 1 Increase arising from acquisition of a subsidiary - - 15,000
S e S
+-—A=+—H At 31 December 2020 32,000 3,951 719,103
—=_hE 2019
E b {8 5K HEAG
Other Lease
borrowings liabilities
ARETT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RZE-NF+_A=+—8H At 31 December 2018 97,300 -
PR AN B R B 7% i & E Al
ENE A0 Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 - 10,947
RZZE—h&—HA—H At 1 January 2019 97,300 10,947
MERSREELENEY Changes from financing cash flows (88,300) (4,014)
FHE New leases - 2,595
RSN Interest expense - 422
RZFT—-—hE+=-_A=+—8H At 31 December 2019 9,000 9,950
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(a) EXFRERF#H)
(b) HELRZHABE

FARERERNEERS
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Major non-cash transactions (continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash

M BEAT flows is as follows:
—EZEHF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR TR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KEESA Within operating activities 2,434 2,523
REEFA Within financing activities 3,431 4,014
5,865 6,537
37. &g 37. COMMITMENTS
RBEHRANERBF AT EARNFAE : The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period:
R+=B=+-—8
As at 31 December
—EZEHF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR TR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE AR EE - Contracted, but not provided for:
W - HERFK Property, plant and equipment 650,478 284,296
EREE-ETPERAR Intangible assets — product development in progress 62,016 94,790
712,494 379,086
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

8. ¥ &t

(a)

WELEtRBEABEERSE
PR A K db 5B AN B B 1L
BREMAERDFA
RZEZZFTF—HA=+—H &
£ E AR B A R #46,500,0007T
WL R AR R ERER A A
([EBE AR ) R4k R AN 8 (L
BRMABEBRAR(HAEE]E
100% M54 - ZZ QR AR HE
bR KRIELET AR - BP9
FEEMBHORMRYE - NEE
BEAXBRBERMAS - EMTSH
D8RR RS 7 T U B AR R
BRBAEE - BUEBREAR
¥ 46,500,000 0 7B AR & 2 N &
t RZEZTFE+_A=+—
HifRZ AT o

B AR R R B AR 2R UEE B AT
HAEELBENRFERD

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION

(a)

Acquisition of Beijing Lianben Technology
Development Co., Ltd. and Beijing Lianben
Pharmaceutical Chemical Technology Co., Ltd.

On 31 January 2020, the Group acquired a 100% equity interests
in Beijing Lianben Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“Lianben
Technology”) and Beijing Lianben Pharmaceutical Chemical Technology
Co., Ltd.

Mainland China that are specialised in the technology service of chemical

(“Lianben Chemical”), two unlisted companies based in

materials, at a consideration of RMB46,500,000. The Group has acquired
Lianben Technology and Lianben Chemical to expand the existing
product portfolio, increase market share and enhance competitiveness.
The total purchase consideration of RMB46,500,000 was to be settled in
cash and remained outstanding at 31 December 2020.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Lianben
Technology and Lianben Chemical as at the date of acquisition were as
follows:

1 UK BE R 7R 2R
NEE
Fair value

recognised on

acquisition
ARBFT
RMB’000
ME - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 6,917
BmVEE Intangible assets 90
RekReFEBED Cash and cash equivalents 7,499
B 5 & H b e W R 5K Trade and other receivables 66,150
FE Inventories 7,223
B REMEMNERR Trade and other payables (13,643)
aHaElRe) Contract liabilities (current) (9,746)
JE A P15 70 Income tax payable (160)
FrEERITE R Interest-bearing bank borrowings (15,000)
Ei-Q/N ?@—J HAIEEFEERE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 49,330
A Lt U 25 P R A UK B Uk =S (B 5E26) Gain on acquisition recognised in other gains (Note 26) (2,830)
AER & B Satisfied by cash 46,500
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(a)

WEBEtRBEANREERA
R R B A B 2 (L
ERMABRAE (#)

RREBE - B85 &H e
HE R TFE A ARKE6,150,000

HEMNBOEER -

WEBAMZ B AMEENE S
mEDMT

8175 5 < Y ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_ZT_TF+-_A=+—-HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a)

Acquisition of Beijing Lianben Technology
Development Co., Ltd. and Beijing Lianben
Pharmaceutical Chemical Technology Co., Ltd.
(continued)

The fair value of the trade and other receivables as at the date of
acquisition amounted to RMB66,150,000 being the same as their gross

contractual amount.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of Lianben
Technology and Lianben Chemical is as follows:

ARBF T

RMB’'000

BT W B 3R & R BR AT 4 R Cash and bank balance acquired 7,499
SFARBEEBFSESRENIRE  Netinflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash flows from

RESEBYMRAFE investing activities 7,499

(b)

BREBE HE_T_TF+=
A=+—BLFE BARZERE
GBI RAEE TR K S
AR ¥198,716,0007T & 4R A i
A R #6,899,0007T °

MR FVETWE  AIRERR
@K—%—%¢+—ﬂ:+fa
LEFEMNRELEEBEE G
55 Bl A AR214,224,0007T
& AR #8,474,0007T °

g B8 5 MOEE
7
RZEZTF=A=+—H" $
FEEEERBBLECIAERA
(TEMEE]) 0% HE - %Q
AA—BURPERNMEHIELT
AR HEFRE(CEME - K&
EAREAREERMAS - EMW
BB RRESH T mUES M
BB omHENEEREARR
16,800,000 7T A 7] & MR 3@ )+ &
B ZAT o

fETHERR

(b)

Since the acquisition, Lianben Technology and Lianben Chemical
contributed RMB198,716,000 to the Group's
RMB6,899,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2020.

revenue and

Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue
and profit contributed to the continuing operations of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 would have been RMB214,224,000 and
RMB8,474,000, respectively.

Acquisition of Jilin Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd.

On 31 March 2020, the Group acquired a 60% equity interest in Jilin
Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Aotong”), an unlisted company based
in Mainland China that is specialised in the manufacture of chemical
materials. The Group has acquired Jilin Aotong to expand the existing
product portfolio, increase market share and enhance competitiveness.
The purchase consideration of RMB16,800,000 for the acquisition was in
form of capital injection to Jilin Aotong.
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38. (&6t 38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(b) WEBESMBEBEBNLLIERAD (b) Acquisition of Jilin Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd. (continued)
(&)
HRB BN IS B A BRI E E R The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Jilin Aotong as
BEMNAFENT : at the date of acquisition were as follows:
17 Ui B A R 2R A6
NEE
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
ARKEFT
RMB’'000
LS S Property, plant and equipment 9,756
FTRELE Right-of-use assets 14,551
BehkBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2
B 5 & H b e YR 5K Trade and other receivables 20,719
FE Inventories 2,098
B 5 REMEMNER Trade and other payables (22,954)
EHaEORe) Contract liabilities (current) (1,510)
FER TSR Income tax payable (9,263)
BATEABAEEFELA Total identifiable net assets at fair value 13,399
o SRR S Less: Non-controlling interests (5,360)
e i B 1 g B Goodwill on acquisition 8,761
AR & B Satisfied by cash 16,800
RUWER  B5KHEMERE The fair value of the trade and other receivables as at the date of
FH A FERARK20,719,000 acquisition amounted to RMB20,719,000 being the same as their gross
T BEABSFEER - contractual amount.
EERAFEETEHIRBEME The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected synergy
BNEENMERTHEAERD and other benefits from combining the assets and activities of Jilin
BENMNEGEHAHESLNTER Aotong with those of the Group. The goodwill is not deductible for
W E s R B AR o BB income tax purposes.

BB E SRR -
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HE_ZT_TF+-_A=+—-HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(b) WEBESMBEBEBNLLIERAD (b) Acquisition of Jilin Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd. (continued)
B (&)
HWEENRERNIRS RENI An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of Jilin Aotong
mR is as follows:
ARBF T
RMB’'000
BT W B 3R & R BR AT 4 R Cash and bank balance acquired 2
FFARBEDRERENHE SR Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash flows from
ReFBWRAFEE investing activities 2

(o)

BRERE BE-_ZT_TF+
A=+ —-BLFE HMHEA
DARAEBEERKREARYE
560,000 M ELF A BEARE
11,451,0007C °

MR FVETWE  AIREER
HEz—_Z-_FTF+-A=+—H
IFFENBBEREEBRERE
Bi5 Rl A ARKS851,0000T XA
K #12,078,0007T °

FA - AKBETKT THEBEAR
HA0%EH Y RE R RER

A R #10,000,0007T - HE-F
—ZEF+ZA=+—H X&KH
A EHWEBI00% B -

U B 5 MR B 4L T R A
3

RZZEZZFEFAA=+AH &
B AR E A R%6,000,0007T U &
EMEBLCIBER QB ([HHE
¥ ) M60%AE - Z AR A —H
MNRPREANHIELET AR &
PIRELEME - AEEAEKX
BEEMBES  EBNWHEOHER
ReasF hmKEBSTHREE R
—E-TF  BUREREEEH
S

(c)

Jilin Aotong contributed RMB560,000 to the
Group's revenue and incurred RMB11,451,000 to the consolidated loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Since the acquisition,

Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the year, revenue
and loss added to the continuing operations of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 would have been RMB851,000 and
RMB12,078,000, respectively.

During the year, the Group completed the remaining 40% of the equity
acquisition of Jilin Aotong at a cash consideration of RMB10,000,000. As
at 31 December 2020, the Group held 100% equity of Jilin Aotong.

Acquisition of Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd.

On 30 September 2020, the Group acquired a 60% equity interest in
Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Jiahui”), an unlisted company based
in Mainland China that is specialised in the manufacture of chemical
materials, at a consideration of RMB6,000,000. The Group has acquired
Jilin Jiahui to expand the existing product portfolio, increase market
share and enhance competitiveness. Total purchase consideration was

fully paid in 2020.
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38. (&6t 38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(0 WEBEMEELIBRA (c) Acquisition of Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd. (continued)
(&)
EMEBERKEAATHENEER The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Jilin Jiahui as at
BENAFENT : the date of acquisition were as follows:
P Uk B8 B HE 2R
NEE
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
ARBF T
RMB’'000
M BEREE Property, plant and equipment 22,852
FTRELE Right-of-use assets 6,284
BehkBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 7
B 5 Rk H M E AR K Trade and other receivables 10,376
FE Inventories 18,020
B REMEMNER Trade and other payables (25,492)
EHaE(Ry) Contract liabilities (current) (27,963)
ERRER Income tax payable ()
BEATEAEINEEFEHER Total identifiable net assets at fair value 4,082
o IEERER Less: Non-controlling interests (1,633)
U B B 9 R Goodwill on acquisition 3,551
AR & (8 T Satisfied by cash 6,000
RKEE 85 &EMEWKE The fair value of the trade and other receivables as at the date of
HEY R FE R/ AKR10,376,000 acquisition amounted to RMB10,376,000 being the same as their gross
T EAERNBSEMER - contractual amount.
ERRAEEIZEFYR B HMHE The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected synergy
BHEEREREDERERS and other benefits from combining the assets and activities of Jilin Jiahui
BEREBERDAGHELNTER with those of the Group. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax
R R E AR o BB purposes.

BHmE NATHRE -
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(c) Acquisition of Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd. (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of Jilin Jiahui is

mE as follows:
ARKEFT
RMB’'000
BT W B 3R & R BR AT 4 R Cash and bank balance acquired 7
BERNRE Cash paid (6,000)
FAREEHRERENRER Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash flows from
REEEMRDFE investing activities (5,993)

BRER HE-_T-_TF+=
A=+—BLFE HTHER
AAEBEEARABERARE
1,977,0007C °

fi 7O F A EFTURE - IR R ER
BE_FT_TF+-_A=1—H
HEENRBALCEXRBERIR
AR ¥4,277,0007T

Since the acquisition, Jilin Jiahui incurred RMB1,977,000 to the
consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the year, loss
added to the continuing operations of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 would have been RMB4,277,000.
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39. HEK B AR NER

(a) HEEE
FAN - AEBEUREARE
143,400,000 7T [A] B B A ECFS
Development Holding Limited (/&
BEABEREER)EETHER
FENEHER FHALESE
FEEREREITOT

39. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Disposal of Chonghui

During the year, the Group transferred its entire interest in Chonghui
to a related party, CFS Development Holding Limited, which is wholly-
owned by Dr. Che Fengsheng, for a consideration of RMB143,400,000.
An analysis of the net gain and cash outflow in respect of the disposal of
Chonghui is as follows:

ARBEF T
RMB’000
W - WEREHE Property, plant and equipment 40,060
FREEE Right-of-use assets 104,810
EmREE Intangible assets 6,528
HEMIERBEE Other non-current assets 5,106
BAFEFAEBENLSREECRE) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (current) 129
FE Inventories 6,370
FRERETENKRE Investment accounted for using the equity method 66,637
BAFEFAEBZHNEREE (FERE) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (non-current) 5,500
B 5 & H b EUER R Trade and other receivables 51,482
ReERBLEED Cash and cash equivalents 155,329
HEAEG Lease liabilities (5,370)
HEMIERBEE Other non-current liabilities (169,340)
B RHEMERNER Trade and other payables (182,640)
I 12 AR 2 Non-controlling interests 3,603
HILHERNEEFE Net assets derecognised 88,204
HESEBERHRE Consideration for disposal of Chonghui 143,400
O R E R R Y w Gain on derecognition of Chonghui 55,196
ERLEEERNES RO : Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of Chonghui:
KRR eRE Cash consideration received 143,400
HENRESRRESEEDYD Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (155,329)
HEHEBRESAE2FE Net cash flow on disposal (11,929)

276 U IR B EE i AR S @ B R A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



B 7% ¥k 2% B 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE-_T-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

30. HEWEB AT N ER® 39. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)y HERA (b) Disposal of Tengwei
FRN AEBEHERAEANSZ During the year, the Group transferred its entire interest in Tengwei to
a0 #E = ¥ 3 T B B 5 Weicheng a related party, Weicheng Investment Holding Limited, which is wholly-
Investment Holding Limited ( F3 20 owned by Dr. Guo Weicheng, for a consideration of RMB136,200,000.
HWEEZERB) RERAR An analysis of the net gain and cash inflow in respect of the disposal of
#136,200,0007T ° 1 &I A KK Tengwei is as follows:

B#RERESRAFEITEAT :

ARBEF T
RMB’000
FREREFENRE Investment accounted for using the equity method 116,089
WAFEFABEZNESMEEGERS)  Finandal assets at fair value through profit or loss (non-current) 3,000
BIFERNEEFE Net assets derecognised 119,089
HEEANRE Consideration for disposal of Tengwei 136,200
TR R WS Gain on derecognition of Tengwei 17,111
MEEBANRESREDN : Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of Tengwei:
BEWRERE Cash consideration received 129,500
HPEZRERRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of -
HEZREREFHE Net cash flow on disposal 129,500
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40. R 5

AEEMNSRIERBRRAEFAE
R BEE RMEBENAZTEL
Eo

RAEE Ty & 0 N ELRE R 5 BRI T

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate controlling shareholders of the Group are Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr.
Guo Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong and Mr. Meng Xianhui.

Name and relationship with related parties are as follows:

# 18 E2RES

Name Relationship
BISFEE BExglE

Dr. Che Fengsheng Chairman of the Board
Weicheng Investment Holding Limited ER 20 4 Uk B8 A 1

Weicheng Investment Holding Limited

—HEBER

Renfang Medical

bR

Beijing Ruiye

BERE

Tonghua Tianshi

)

Pharmadax (Foshan)
EEEEYRMABRAR (N EEE])

Shanghai Lide Biotech Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Lide")

Sihuan Strides (HK) Limited ([ Sihuan Strides ])

Sihuan Strides (HK) Limited (”Sihuan Strides”)

Controlled by Dr. Guo Weicheng
REENHE QA
Associate of the Group
REB M E QA
Associate of the Group
REBE SR A
Associate of the Group
REENHE QT
Associate of the Group
REBE M E QA
Associate of the Group
REENEEE

Joint venture of the Group
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continueq)

IR 5 Kt In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial

HE—

balances as at 31 December 2020:

8175 5 < Y ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E_TFE+ A=+ —RALEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

statements, the Group had the following transactions during the year and

T
—EZEF T—-h%F
2020 2019
ARE T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
M) B & N BB B B B RS Purchase of R&D service from an associate
- b - Shanghai Lide 93 29
R EEE QBT B HA Interest income from associates
- b R E — Beijing Ruiye 7,058 3,554
- @I RE — Tonghua Tianshi 2,928 3,062
9,986 6,616
M N El B (M sE15%17) Loan to associates (Notes 15 and 17)
- @k?&ﬁ() - Tonghua Tianshi (i) 78,033 75,105
B AR ()) — Pharmadax (Foshan) (i) 120,000 120,000
B ()] — Beijing Ruiye (i) 156,770 106,014
— = 77 B () - Renfang Medical (i) 2,412 667
357,215 301,786
WA LD ER Amount due from a joint venture
— Sihuan Strides — Sihuan Strides 675 -
JE L L fth BA B 5 SRIE (BT E17) Amounts due from other related parties (Note 17)
- B A+ B8 A ) — Dr. Che Fengsheng (i) 9,600 9,600
— Weicheng Investment Holding — Weicheng Investment Holding Limited (iii)
Limited (iii) 6,700 -
16,300 9,600
() REEHRMBEEQERNF () Details of the loans to associates as at the end of the reporting period
BRI REM 15517 are disclosed in Notes 15 and 17 to the Financial Statements.
(i) EREFAEERBBHAEZRE (i) The amount due from Dr. Che Fengsheng is repayable on demand.
i .
(i) F&{IWeicheng Investment Holding (i)~ The amounts due from Weicheng Investment Holding Limited is the

Limited®) SRIB R H & B R T
RE AR —FREE -

remaining consideration of disposal of Tengwei and repayable in a year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

40.

BB S w)
ZEEEAAEENOMSEEMT :

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continueq)

Details of key management compensation during the year are as follows:

—EZEH —E-hF
2020 2019
AR®T T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEERF Short-term employee benefits 25,137 25,707
NEREE 2 ERERS Equity-settled share option expense 1,791 -
TNGBEEBEEANTHELE Total compensation paid to key management personnel 26,928 25,707
REAFRHRESEREN BHEZZTZ Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
ZFE+_A=Z+—RALFE  AEEW December 2020, the Group has not conducted any other connected transaction
EETANEMAEET EMARNETE or continuing connected transaction (as defined under the Listing Rules) which
RN EEEZRENBERHRIF is subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the Listing Rules.
BHREEXZ(ERR EMREN) -
411. €eMIEDE 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY
RIEHK  SERSRHRTAENEES The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at
BN : the end of the reporting period are as follows:
RZZEZEF+=-R=+—8H As at 31 December 2020
SRMEE Financial assets
RAFETA
REBERE BaNeREE
STEMESBMEE  Financial assets
Financial at fair value
assets at through et
amortised cost profit or loss Total
AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BAFEFTAERD Financial assets at fair value
cREE through profit or loss = 528,836 528,836
Z 5 & H e W R 1E Trade and other receivables excluding
(TBIEFELE) prepayments 820,922 - 820,922
HEMEnRB&EE Other non-current assets excluding
(TBEAER) prepayments 353,770 - 353,770
RekReEED Cash and cash equivalents 4,604,041 - 4,604,041
5,778,733 528,836 6,307,569
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SHEE
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY (continueq)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at
the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued)

—B(#& As at 31 December 2020 (continued)
Financial liabilities

R 8 A
TENEREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

AR® T
RMB’000
EmER(TREHRESR) Other borrowings excluding lease liabilities 32,000
FFERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 719,103
BESNEMENREB(TNEBIEIESLBAE) Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities 1,766,019
2,517,122
R-B—-AFE+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2019
STRMEE Financial assets
BAFEEA
REER A BahemEE
AENEREE Financial assets
Financial at fair value
assets at through wEt
amortised cost profit or loss Total
AR T T ARETT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
EBEATFEHABRDY Financial assets at fair value
EREE through profit or loss - 322,556 322,556
& 5 KA Ah e K IE Trade and other receivables excluding
(B ¥EFE R FR) prepayments 513,191 - 513,191
HM3EnRs&EE Other non-current assets excluding
(TBEBEMNK) prepayments 332,460 - 332,460
HERBEELZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 5,117,143 - 5,117,143
5,962,794 322,556 6,285,350
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1. eI ESE = 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY (continued)
RBEEHR  SEHeRIANERS The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at
BT (&) the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued)

—hWF+—A=+—8(#&) As at 31 December 2019 (continued)
ﬁ nﬂﬁﬁ Financial liabilities
RE A AR
ENemAaE
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

ARKEFTT
RMB’000
HEx(TeEHEaR) Other borrowings excluding lease liabilities 9,000
B hHMEMNRB(TBEIELMEBIE) Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities 1,852,411
1,861,411
42. REHA AR EIF 42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
RNEBNRBEHEREHEEZ ARE HE The Group had no significant events after the reporting period up to the date
R EEAEIR o of this report.
43. Lt BB 43. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
ARG ABELEMEZERERL The comparative condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
EEHEY  BURAERNCKRILER comprehensive income has been re-presented as if the operations discontinued
BN EERGE LD & - during the current year had been discontinued at the beginning of the

comparative year.
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44, XD 7 B AR OR &R 44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
R+=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—EZEHF ZE-NF
2020 2019
AR¥T T AREETF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
gE ASSETS
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
LE & Property, plant and equipment 10 3
TREEE Right-of-use assets 3,423 4,892
RHTERAANEKE Investments in subsidiaries 213,081 208,617
216,514 213,512
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
H fth jE U ER 3K Other receivables 187 418
[ NGIE @ Amounts due from subsidiaries 7,730,024 9,601,483
Be MBS EED Cash and cash equivalents 444,831 24,529
8,175,042 9,626,430
WEE TOTAL ASSETS 8,391,556 9,839,942
R EQUITY
[N Share capital 78,186 78,186
& 19 5 (B Share premium 4,084,846 4,084,846
H4th () Other reserve (i) 28,655 22,608
R B8 & F() Retained earnings (i) 4,159,493 5,612,504
mER TOTAL EQUITY 8,351,180 9,798,144
=R LIABILITIES
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEAE Lease liabilities 3,569 4,985
Hh FE S BRX Other payables 36,807 36,813
maE TOTAL LIABILITIES 40,376 41,798
EEREERE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,391,556 9,839,942
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44. XN B B MR R & ) 44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
() AAFREMEERRBZAFBEZ () A summary of the Company's other reserves and retained earnings is as
mR follows:
UBRGHAEED
Xtk
Share-based BERGHE REBRF
payment Capital Retained
reserve reserve earnings
AR T AR®T T AR® T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZE—-—h&F—H—H At 1 January 2019 - 22,608 1,177,078
F 1N 5 A Profit for the year - - 4,596,413
A& 2 (K 5E34) Dividends (Note 34) - - (160,987)

RZE—hhE+A=+—8HEK At 31 December 2019 and

—EEF—H—H 1 January 2020 - 22,608 5,612,504
FEEIE Loss for the year = = (33,159)
EERMDEEEE Employee share award scheme

-EERBER — Value of employee services 6,047 = =
% 8 (M 3E34) Dividends (Note 34) - = (1,419,852)
RZZE_ZF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 6,047 22,608 4,159,493
45. #t & B B K 45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RZZEZ—F=ZA=Z+=H  HHERE The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board
HETgHEREREDL - of directors on 23 March 2021.
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